


NOTICE is hereby given that 31st Annual General MeeƟ ng (AGM) of the Members of the Company will be held on Thursday, 24th September 
2015 at 10.00 a.m. at Bhasha Bhavan, NaƟ onal Library Auditorium, Near Alipore Zoo at Belvedere Road, Kolkata - 700 027, to transact the 
following business :

Ordinary Business :

1. To receive, consider and adopt : 

 (a)  the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the fi nancial year ended 31st  March, 2015 and the Reports of 
Board of Directors and Auditors thereon; 

 (b)  the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the fi nancial year ended 31st March, 2015 and the Report of 
the Auditors thereon.

2. To confi rm and declare interim dividend paid on equity shares of the Company, as fi nal dividend, for the fi nancial year 2014-15.

3. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Sunil Kumar Agrawal (DIN : 00091784), who reƟ res by rotaƟ on and being eligible off ers himself for 
re-appointment.

4. To raƟ fy the appointment of auditors and fi x their remuneraƟ on and in this connecƟ on to consider and if thought fi t, to pass with or 
without modifi caƟ on(s), the following ResoluƟ on as an Ordinary ResoluƟ on :

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of SecƟ ons 139, 141, 142 and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 (the “Act”) read with allied rules of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modifi caƟ on(s) or 
re-enactment thereof for the Ɵ me being in force), the Company hereby raƟ fi es the appointment of M/s. SRB & Associates, Chartered 
Accountants (Firm RegistraƟ on No. 310009E), as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold offi  ce from the conclusion of this 
meeƟ ng unƟ l the conclusion of the Annual General MeeƟ ng to be held for the fi nancial year 2015-16 on such remuneraƟ on as may be 
determined by the Board of Directors based on the recommendaƟ on of the Audit CommiƩ ee, in addiƟ on to the reimbursement of all 
out-of-pocket expenses in connecƟ on with the audit of the fi nancial statements of the Company.”

Special Business :

5. To consider, and if thought fi t, to pass, with or without modifi caƟ on(s) the following ResoluƟ on as an Ordinary ResoluƟ on :

 “RESOLVED THAT in conformity with the provisions of SecƟ ons 149, 152, 161(1) and other applicable provisions, if any, of Companies 
Act, 2013 read with Rules made thereunder (including any statutory modifi caƟ on(s) or re-enactments thereof for the Ɵ me being in 
force), Mr. Vineet Agrawal (DIN : 00441223) who was appointed as an AddiƟ onal, Non-ExecuƟ ve Director of the Company with eff ect 
from 23rd November, 2014 and who holds offi  ce upto the date of this Annual General MeeƟ ng and who is eligible for appointment 
and in respect of whom the Company has received a noƟ ce in wriƟ ng alongwith a deposit of Rs. 1,00,000/- in terms of SecƟ on 160 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 from a Member proposing his candidature for the offi  ce of Director, be and is hereby appointed as a Non-
ExecuƟ ve Director of the Company whose period of offi  ce shall be liable to determinaƟ on by reƟ rement by rotaƟ on.”

6. To consider, and if thought fi t, to pass, with or without modifi caƟ on(s), the following ResoluƟ on as an Ordinary ResoluƟ on:

 “RESOLVED THAT in conformity with the provisions of SecƟ on 149, 152, 161(1) and other applicable provisions, if any, of Companies 
Act, 2013 read with Rules made thereunder (including any statutory modifi caƟ on(s) or re-enactments thereof for the Ɵ me being in 
force), Mr. Varun Agrawal (DIN : 00441271) who was appointed as an AddiƟ onal, Non-ExecuƟ ve Director of the Company with eff ect 
from 23rd November, 2014 and who holds offi  ce upto the date of this Annual General MeeƟ ng and who is eligible for appointment 
and in respect of whom the Company has received a noƟ ce in wriƟ ng alongwith a deposit of Rs. 1,00,000/- in terms of SecƟ on 160 
of the Companies Act, 2013 from a Member proposing his candidature for the offi  ce of Director, be and is hereby appointed as a 
Non-ExecuƟ ve Director of the Company whose period of offi  ce shall be liable to determinaƟ on by reƟ rement by rotaƟ on.”

NOTICE OF 31ST ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Registered Offi  ce : Bikaner Building, 3rd Floor, 8/1 Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata- 700 001
Phone No.: +91-33-2231 0050; Fax No.: +91-33-2230 0336; Email : info@manaksia.com; Website : www.manaksia.com

Corporate IdenƟ ty Number: L74950WB1984PLC038336
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7. To consider, and if thought fi t, to pass, with or without modifi caƟ on(s), the following ResoluƟ on as a Special ResoluƟ on :

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of SecƟ ons 196, 197, 198, 203 and other applicable provisions, if any, of Companies Act, 
2013 read with Schedule V and the Rules made thereunder (including any statutory modifi caƟ on(s) or re-enactments thereof for the 
Ɵ me being in force), applicable clauses of ArƟ cles of AssociaƟ on of the Company and subject to any other approvals, if any, approval 
of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the appointment of Mr. Suresh Kumar Agrawal (DIN : 00520769), as Managing Director 
of the Company, liable to reƟ re by rotaƟ on, for a period of 3 (three) years with eff ect from 23rd November, 2014 on such terms and 
condiƟ ons as set out in the Explanatory Statement annexed to this NoƟ ce with liberty to the Board of Directors (the “Board”) to alter 
and vary the terms and condiƟ ons of the said appointment in such manner as may be agreed between the Board and Mr. Suresh Kumar 
Agrawal provided that such variaƟ on or increase, as the case may be, is within the overall limits as prescribed under SecƟ on 197 and/
or Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director or Company Secretary of the Company be and is hereby authorised to take all such steps as may 
be necessary, proper and expedient to give eff ect to this ResoluƟ on.”

8. To consider, and if thought fi t, to pass, with or without modifi caƟ on(s), the following ResoluƟ on as a Special ResoluƟ on : 

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of SecƟ ons 196, 197, 198, 203 and other applicable provisions, if any, of Companies Act, 
2013 read with Schedule V and the Rules made thereunder (including any statutory modifi caƟ on(s) or re-enactments thereof for the 
Ɵ me being in force), applicable clauses of ArƟ cles of AssociaƟ on of the Company and subject to any other approvals, if any, approval of 
the Company be and is hereby accorded to the appointment of Mr. Basudeo Agrawal (DIN : 00438754), as Whole-Ɵ me Director of the 
Company, liable to reƟ re by rotaƟ on, for a period of 3 (three) years with eff ect from 23rd November, 2014 on such terms and condiƟ ons 
as set out in the Explanatory Statement annexed to this NoƟ ce with liberty to the Board of Directors (the “Board”) to alter and vary the 
terms and condiƟ ons of the said appointment in such manner as may be agreed between the Board and Mr. Basudeo Agrawal provided 
that such variaƟ on or increase, as the case may be, is within the overall limits as prescribed under SecƟ on 197 and/or Schedule V of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director or Company Secretary of the Company be and is hereby authorised to take all such steps as may 
be necessary, proper and expedient to give eff ect to this ResoluƟ on.” 

9. To consider, and if thought fi t, to pass, with or without modifi caƟ on(s), the following ResoluƟ on as a Special ResoluƟ on :

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of SecƟ ons 196, 197, 198, 203 and other applicable provisions, if any, of Companies Act, 
2013 read with Schedule V and the Rules made thereunder (including any statutory modifi caƟ on(s) or re-enactments thereof for the 
Ɵ me being in force), applicable clauses of ArƟ cles of AssociaƟ on of the Company and subject to any other approvals, if any, approval of 
the Company be and is hereby accorded to the appointment of Mr. Mahabir Prasad Agrawal (DIN : 00524341), as Whole-Ɵ me Director 
of the Company, liable to reƟ re by rotaƟ on, for a period of 3 (three) years with eff ect from 23rd November, 2014 on such terms and 
condiƟ ons as set out in the Explanatory Statement annexed to this NoƟ ce with liberty to the Board of Directors (the “Board”) to alter 
and vary the terms and condiƟ ons of the said appointment in such manner as may be agreed between the Board and Mr. Mahabir 
Prasad Agrawal provided that such variaƟ on or increase, as the case may be, is within the overall limits as prescribed under SecƟ on 197 
and/or Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director or Company Secretary of the Company be and is hereby authorised to take all such steps as may 
be necessary, proper and expedient to give eff ect to this ResoluƟ on.”

Regd. Offi  ce :   By Order of the Board of Directors
Bikaner Building, 3rd Floor
8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700 001 Raj Kumar Banthia
Date : 3rd August, 2015 Company Secretary

NOTES : 

(1) A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ABOVE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON A 
POLL INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND SUCH PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER. PROXIES, IN ORDER TO BE EFFECTIVE, MUST BE DEPOSITED 
DULY COMPLETED AND SIGNED AND RECEIVED BY THE COMPANY NOT LESS THAN 48 HOURS BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE 
MEETING. A PROXY FORM IS ENCLOSED WITH THIS NOTICE.
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(2) A PERSON SHALL NOT ACT AS PROXY FOR MORE THAN 50 (FIFTY) MEMBERS AND HOLDING IN THE AGGREGATE NOT MORE THAN 
10% OF THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS. A PERSON HOLDING MORE THAN 10% OF THE 
TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS MAY APPOINT A SINGLE PERSON AS PROXY AND SUCH PERSON 
SHALL NOT ACT AS PROXY FOR ANY OTHER PERSON OR SHAREHOLDER. 

(3) Members/Proxies should bring the AƩ endance Slip duly fi lled in together with their copies of Annual Report to the MeeƟ ng. 

(4) The proxy holder shall prove his idenƟ ty at the Ɵ me of aƩ ending the MeeƟ ng.

(5) Members who hold shares in dematerialised form are requested to furnish their Client ID and DP ID Nos. for easy idenƟ fi caƟ on of 
aƩ endance at the MeeƟ ng.

(6) Members who hold shares in physical form in mulƟ ple folios in idenƟ cal names or joint names in the same order of names are requested 
to send the share cerƟ fi cates to the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent for consolidaƟ on into single folio.

(7) When a member appoints a proxy and both the member and proxy aƩ end the meeƟ ng, the proxy stands automaƟ cally revoked.

(8) RequisiƟ on for inspecƟ on of proxies shall have to be made in wriƟ ng by members enƟ tled to vote on any resoluƟ on three days before 
the commencement of the meeƟ ng.

(9) Proxies shall be made available for inspecƟ on during twenty four hours before the Ɵ me fi xed for the commencement of the meeƟ ng 
and ending with the conclusion of the meeƟ ng.

(10) Corporate members are required to send to the company a cerƟ fi ed copy of the Board ResoluƟ on, pursuant to SecƟ on 113 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 authorizing their representaƟ ve to aƩ end and vote at the Annual General MeeƟ ng.

(11) The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 17th September, 2015 to 21st 
September, 2015 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of Annual General MeeƟ ng.

(12) Pursuant to the provisions of SecƟ on 205A and 205C of the Companies Act, 1956 as amended from Ɵ me to Ɵ me and/or relevant 
corresponding provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 once noƟ fi ed, the fi nal dividend for the year ended March 31, 2007 and earlier 
years remaining unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven years from the date of transfer of the same to the unpaid dividend account, 
has been transferred to the Investor EducaƟ on and ProtecƟ on Fund established by the Central Government. No claim shall lie against 
the Investor EducaƟ on and ProtecƟ on Fund or the Company in respect of individual amount(s) so credited to the Investor EducaƟ on 
and ProtecƟ on Fund.

(13) The Explanatory Statement pursuant to SecƟ on 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of Item Nos. 5 to 9, which sets out details 
relaƟ ng to Special Business at the meeƟ ng, is annexed hereto. 

(14) Shareholders holding shares in physical form are requested to noƟ fy to the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, quoƟ ng 
their folio number, any change in their registered address with PIN CODE/mandate/bank details and in case the shares are held in 
dematerialised form, this informaƟ on should be passed on to their respecƟ ve Depository ParƟ cipants. 

(15) Shareholders who have not so far encashed their Dividend Warrants for the accounƟ ng years ended 31st March, 2008, 2009, 2010 and 
2011  and Interim Dividend Warrants for accounƟ ng year ended 31st March, 2014 and 2015 may immediately approach the Company/
its Registrar for revalidaƟ on of unclaimed Dividend Warrants atleast 10 days before they are due for transfer to the Investor EducaƟ on 
and ProtecƟ on Fund (the IEPF) established by the Central Government. Members who have not encashed their refund of Follow on 
Public Off er for the year 2007-08 are also requested to immediately approach the Company/its Registrar for refund of applicaƟ on 
money atleast 10 days before they are due for transfer to the Investor EducaƟ on and ProtecƟ on Fund (the IEPF) established by the 
Central Government.

 The Company has transferred the unpaid or unclaimed dividends declared up to fi nancial years 2006-07, from Ɵ me to Ɵ me on due 
dates, to the Investor EducaƟ on and ProtecƟ on Fund (the IEPF) established by the Central Government. Pursuant to the provisions of 
Investor EducaƟ on and ProtecƟ on Fund (Uploading of informaƟ on regarding unpaid and unclaimed amounts lying with companies) 
Rules, 2012, the Company has uploaded the details of unpaid and unclaimed amounts lying with the Company as on September 
26, 2014 (date of last Annual General MeeƟ ng) on the website of the Company (www.manaksia.com), as also on the website of the 
Ministry of Corporate Aff airs. 

(16) The SecuriƟ es and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has made it mandatory for all companies to use the bank account details furnished by 
the depositories for deposiƟ ng dividends. Dividend will be credited to the Members’ bank account through NECS wherever complete 
core banking details are available with the Company. In cases where the core banking details are not available, dividend warrants will 
be issued to the Members with bank details printed thereon as available in the Company’s records. 
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(17) As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 the facility for making/varying/cancelling nominaƟ ons is available to individuals, 
holding shares in the Company. NominaƟ ons can be made in Form SH.13 and any variaƟ on/cancellaƟ on thereof can be made by giving 
noƟ ce in Form SH.14, prescribed under the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 for the purpose. The Forms can be 
obtained from the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent/Company. 

(18) As required by SecuriƟ es and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) vide its Circular, the shareholders are requested to furnish a copy of the 
PAN card to the Company/Registrar and Share Transfer Agent while sending the shares held in physical form for transfer, transmission, 
transposiƟ on and deleƟ on of name of the deceased shareholder(s). 

(19) Members holding shares in physical form who have not registered their e-mail addresses so far, are requested to register their e-mail 
address for receiving all communicaƟ ons including Annual Reports, NoƟ ces and Circulars etc. from the Company electronically. 
However, where the shares are held by the members in dematerialized form, the same has to be communicated to his/her Depository 
ParƟ cipant for the purpose of receiving any of the aforesaid documents in electronic form. 

(20) Members holding shares in electronic form may note that bank parƟ culars registered against their respecƟ ve depository accounts will 
be used by the Company for payment of dividend. The Company or its Registrar and Share Transfer Agent cannot act on any request 
received directly from the members holding shares in electronic form for any change of bank parƟ culars or bank mandates. Such 
changes are to be advised only to the Depository ParƟ cipant of the members.

(21) Members holding shares in electronic form are requested to inƟ mate immediately any change in their address or bank mandates to 
their Depository ParƟ cipants with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical form are 
requested to advise any change in their address or bank mandates immediately to the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, 
Link InƟ me India Pvt. Ltd at 59C, Chowringhee Road, 3rd Floor, Kolkata – 700 020.

(22) Members are requested to contact the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, Link InƟ me India Pvt. Ltd for reply to their 
queries/redressal of complaints, if any, or contact Mr. Raj Kumar Banthia, Company Secretary at the Registered Offi  ce of the Company 
(Phone : +91-33-2231 0050; Email : investor.relaƟ ons@manaksia.com).

(23) Disclosure pursuant to Clause 49 of the LisƟ ng Agreement with the Stock Exchanges, Secretarial Standard, with respect to Directors 
seeking re-appointment/appointment in the forthcoming Annual General MeeƟ ng is set out in the Annexure to this NoƟ ce. 

(24) Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying noƟ ce/explanatory statement are open for inspecƟ on by the members at the 
AGM and such documents will also be available for inspecƟ on in physical or in electronic form at the registered offi  ce and copies 
thereof shall also be available for inspecƟ on in physical or electronic form at the Corporate Offi  ce on all working days, except Saturdays, 
from 11.00 a.m. to 1.00 p.m. up to the date of the ensuing Annual General MeeƟ ng. Further, the noƟ ce of the 31st Annual General 
MeeƟ ng along with requisite documents and the Annual Report for the fi nancial year 2014-15 shall also be available on the Company’s 
website, www.manaksia.com.

(25) Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained under SecƟ on 170 of the Companies Act, 2013 
and Register of Contracts and Arrangements in which Directors are interested maintained under SecƟ on 189 of the Companies Act, 
2013 shall be made available at the commencement of the meeƟ ng and shall remain open and accessible to the members during the 
conƟ nuance of the meeƟ ng. 

(26) Members desiring any informaƟ on on the Audited Accounts and business operaƟ ons of the Company for the fi nancial year 2014-15 
are requested to write to the Company Secretary at the Registered Offi  ce at least 10 days before the meeƟ ng so as to enable the 
Management to keep the informaƟ on ready at the MeeƟ ng.

(27) Members are requested to send proper documentary evidence of bonafi de benefi ciary for the unclaimed IPO shares lying in the demat 
suspense account with the Company. 

(28) Pursuant to LisƟ ng Agreement and SecƟ ons 20, 101 and 136 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant rules made thereunder, the 
Companies can serve Annual Report and other communicaƟ ons through electronic mode to those members who have registered their 
email address either with the Company or with the Depository.  Accordingly, Annual Report for the year ended 31st March 2015 shall 
be sent electronically to all the members whose email address has been registered with the Company/Depository ParƟ cipants unless 
any member has requested for a hard copy of the same. Even aŌ er registering for e-communicaƟ on, members are enƟ tled to receive 
such communicaƟ on in physical form, upon receipt of request for the same, by post/courier free of cost.

(29) VoƟ ng through electronic means 

 I. In compliance with the provisions of SecƟ on 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and 
AdministraƟ on) Rules, 2014 as amended by the Companies (Management and AdministraƟ on) Amendment Rules, 2015 and 
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Clause 35B of the LisƟ ng Agreement, the Company is pleased to provide its members facility to exercise their right to vote on 
resoluƟ ons proposed to be considered at the Annual General MeeƟ ng (AGM) by electronic means and the business may be 
transacted through e-voƟ ng services. The facility of casƟ ng the votes by the members using an electronic voƟ ng system from a 
place other than venue of the AGM (“remote e-voƟ ng”) will be provided by NaƟ onal SecuriƟ es Depository Limited (NSDL). 

 II.  The facility for voƟ ng through polling paper shall be made available at the AGM and the members aƩ ending the meeƟ ng who have 
not cast their vote by remote e-voƟ ng shall be able to exercise their right at the meeƟ ng through polling paper. 

 III. The members who have cast their vote by remote e-voƟ ng prior to the AGM may also aƩ end the AGM but shall not be enƟ tled to 
change or cast their vote again. 

 IV. The remote e-voƟ ng period commences on 21st September, 2015 (9:00 a.m.) and ends on 23rd September, 2015 (5:00 p.m.). 
During this period members’ of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off  
date of 17th September, 2015, may cast their vote by remote e-voƟ ng. A person who is not a member as on the cut-off  date should 
treat this NoƟ ce for informaƟ on purposes only. The remote e-voƟ ng module shall be disabled by NSDL for voƟ ng thereaŌ er and 
the facility shall forthwith be blocked. Once the vote on a resoluƟ on is cast by the member, the member shall not be allowed to 
change it subsequently.

 V. The process and manner for remote e-voƟ ng are as under : 

  A. In case a Member receives an email from NSDL [for members whose email IDs are registered with the Company/Depository 
ParƟ cipant(s)] : 

   (i) Open email and open PDF fi le viz; “Manaksia.e-voƟ ng.pdf” with your Client ID or Folio No. as password. The said PDF 
fi le contains your user ID and password/PIN for remote e-voƟ ng. Please note that the password is an iniƟ al password. 

   (ii) Launch internet browser by typing the following URL: hƩ ps://www.evoƟ ng.nsdl.com/ 

   (iii) Click on Shareholder - Login 

   (iv) Put user ID and password as iniƟ al password/PIN noted in step (i) above. Click Login. If you are already registered with 
NSDL for e-voƟ ng, you can use your exisƟ ng user ID and password for casƟ ng your vote. 

   (v) Password change menu appears. Change the password/PIN with new password of your choice with minimum 8 digits/
characters or combinaƟ on thereof. Note new password. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with 
any other person and take utmost care to keep your password confi denƟ al. 

   (vi) Home page of remote e-voƟ ng opens. Click on remote e-voƟ ng: AcƟ ve VoƟ ng Cycles. 

   (vii) Select “E VoƟ ng Event Number (EVEN)” of “Manaksia Limited” for casƟ ng your vote.

   (viii) Now you are ready for remote e-voƟ ng as Cast Vote page opens. 

   (ix) Cast your vote by selecƟ ng appropriate opƟ on and click on “Submit” and also “Confi rm” when prompted. 

   (x) Upon confi rmaƟ on, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed. 

   (xi) Once you have voted on the resoluƟ on, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

   (xii) InsƟ tuƟ onal shareholders and bodies corporate (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned 
copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board ResoluƟ on/ Authority leƩ er etc. together with aƩ ested specimen 
signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the ScruƟ nizer through e-mail to 
vkandco@vinodkothari.com with a copy marked to evoƟ ng@nsdl.co.in 

  B. In case a Member receives physical copy of the NoƟ ce of AGM [for members whose email IDs are not registered with the 
Company/Depository ParƟ cipant(s) or requesƟ ng physical copy] : 

   (i) IniƟ al password is provided as below/at the boƩ om of the AƩ endance Slip for the AGM : 

    EVEN (Remote E-VoƟ ng Event Number)  USER ID    PASSWORD/PIN

   (ii) Please follow all steps from Sl. No. (ii) to Sl. No. (xii) above, to cast vote. 

 VI. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked QuesƟ ons (FAQs) for Members and remote e-voƟ ng user manual for 
Members available at downloads secƟ on of www.evoƟ ng.nsdl.com or call on Phone No.: +91-22-2499 4600.
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 VII. If you are already registered with NSDL for remote e-voƟ ng then you can use your exisƟ ng user ID and password/PIN for casƟ ng 
your vote.

 VIII. You can also update your mobile number and e-mail id in the user profi le details of the folio which may be used for sending future 
communicaƟ on(s).

 IX. The voƟ ng rights of members shall be in proporƟ on to their shares of the paid up equity share capital of the Company as on the 
cut-off  date of 17th September, 2015. In case of joint holders, only one of the joint holders may cast his vote.

 X. Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and become member of the Company aŌ er dispatch of the noƟ ce and holding 
shares as of the cut-off  date i.e. 17th September, 2015 may obtain the login ID and password by sending a request at evoƟ ng@
nsdl.co.in or kolkata@linkinƟ me.co.in. 

  However, if you are already registered with NSDL for remote e-voƟ ng then you can use your exisƟ ng user ID and password for 
casƟ ng your vote. If you forgot your password, you can reset your password by using “Forgot User Details/Password” opƟ on 
available on www.evoƟ ng.nsdl.com or contact NSDL at the Phone No.: +91-22-2499 4600. 

 XI.  Your Login id and password can be used by you exclusively for e-voƟ ng on the resoluƟ ons placed by the Companies in which you 
are a shareholder.

 XII.  Login to e-voƟ ng website will be disabled upon 5 (Five) unsuccessful aƩ empts to key in the correct password, in such an event, 
you will need to go through “Forgot User Details/Password” opƟ on available on the website of NSDL i.e. www.evoƟ ng.nsdl.com 
to reset the same.

 XIII. A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of benefi cial owners maintained by the depositories 
as on the cut-off  date of 17th September, 2015  shall only  be enƟ tled to avail the facility of remote e-voƟ ng as well as voƟ ng at 
the AGM through polling paper.

 XIV. Mrs. AdiƟ  Jhunjhunwala (Membership No. 26988, CP No. 10144), Partner of M/s. Vinod Kothari & Company, PracƟ sing Company 
Secretaries, Kolkata has been appointed as the ScruƟ nizer for providing facility to the members of the Company to scruƟ nize the 
remote e-voƟ ng and polling process in a fair and transparent manner.

 XV. The Chairman shall, at the AGM, at the end of discussion on the resoluƟ ons on which voƟ ng is to be held, allow voƟ ng with the 
assistance of scruƟ nizer, by use of  “Polling Paper” for all those members who are present at the AGM but have not cast their votes 
by availing the remote e-voƟ ng facility.

 XVI. The ScruƟ nizer shall aŌ er the conclusion of voƟ ng by poll at the general meeƟ ng, will fi rst count the votes cast at the meeƟ ng and 
thereaŌ er unblock the votes cast through remote e-voƟ ng in the presence of  at least two witnesses not in the employment of the 
Company and shall make, not later than 48 (Forty Eight) hours of the conclusion of the AGM, a Consolidated ScruƟ nizer’s Report 
of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or a person authorized by him in wriƟ ng, who shall countersign 
the same and declare the result of the voƟ ng forthwith.

 XVII. The Results declared along with the ScruƟ nizer’s Report shall be placed on the Company’s website www.manaksia.com and on 
the noƟ ce board of the Company at its registered offi  ce as well as its Corporate Offi  ce and on the website of NSDL within 48 (Forty 
Eight) hours of passing of the resoluƟ ons at the AGM of the Company and communicated to the Stock Exchanges where the 
Company’s shares are listed. Subject to receipt of requisite number of votes, the resoluƟ ons set out in the NoƟ ce shall be deemed 
to be passed on the date of the AGM.

(30)  Brief Profi le of Mr. Sunil Kumar Agrawal, disclosure required under Clause 49 of the LisƟ ng Agreement and Secretarial Standard is  set 
out as annexure to this NoƟ ce.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Item No. 5 

The Board of Directors upon the recommendaƟ on of the NominaƟ on & RemuneraƟ on CommiƩ ee, appointed Mr. Vineet Agrawal as an 
AddiƟ onal Director on 23rd November, 2014 in terms of SecƟ on 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. In terms of the provisions of SecƟ on 
161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Vineet Agrawal will hold offi  ce upto the date of ensuing Annual General MeeƟ ng.

The Company has received a NoƟ ce in wriƟ ng under the provisions of SecƟ on 160 of the Companies Act, 2013, along with a deposit of 
Rs. 1,00,000/- proposing the candidature of Mr. Vineet Agrawal for the offi  ce of Director. 

The Board of Directors of your Company recommends the resoluƟ on in relaƟ on to appointment of Mr. Vineet Agrawal for the offi  ce of Non-
ExecuƟ ve Director liable to reƟ re by rotaƟ on, for the approval by the shareholders of the Company.
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Brief Profi le of Mr. Vineet Agrawal, Disclosure required under Clause 49 of the LisƟ ng Agreement and Secretarial Standard is set out as the 
annexure to this NoƟ ce.

Pursuant to provisions of SecƟ on 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 the extent of shareholding of Mr Vineet Agrawal and his relaƟ ves is 
provided below :

Name of Director/KMP/Relatives Extent of shareholding in the Company (%)

Basudeo Agrawal 14.50

Vineet Agrawal 3.69

Shobha Devi Agrawal 1.99

Anuradha Agrawal 0.10

Basudeo Agrawal (HUF) 0.71

Except Mr. Vineet Agrawal and his relaƟ ves, no other Director and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relaƟ ves is concerned 
or interested, fi nancial or otherwise, in said resoluƟ on set out at Item No. 5 except to the extent of their shareholding.

Item No. 6

The Board of Directors upon the recommendaƟ on of the NominaƟ on & RemuneraƟ on CommiƩ ee, appointed Mr. Varun Agrawal as an 
AddiƟ onal Director on 23rd November, 2014 in terms of SecƟ on 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. In terms of the provisions of SecƟ on 
161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Varun Agrawal will hold offi  ce upto the date of ensuing Annual General MeeƟ ng.

The Company has received a NoƟ ce in wriƟ ng under the provisions of SecƟ on 160 of the Companies Act, 2013, along with a deposit of 
Rs. 1,00,000/- proposing the candidature of Mr. Varun Agrawal for the offi  ce of Director. 

The Board of Directors of your Company recommends the resoluƟ on in relaƟ on to appointment of Mr. Varun Agrawal for the offi  ce of 
Director liable to reƟ re by rotaƟ on, for the approval by the shareholders of the Company.

Brief Profi le of Mr. Varun Agrawal, Disclosure required under Clause 49 of the LisƟ ng Agreement and Secretarial Standard is set out as the 
annexure to this NoƟ ce.

Pursuant to provisions of SecƟ on 102(1) of the Companies Act 2013, the extent of shareholding of Mr Varun Agrawal and his relaƟ ves is 
provided below:

Name of Director/KMP/Relatives Extent of shareholding in the Company(%)

Suresh Kumar Agrawal 14.35

Varun Agrawal 4.22

Chandrakala Agrawal 1.90

Suresh Kumar Agrawal (HUF) 0.52

Except Mr. Varun Agrawal and his relaƟ ves, no other Director and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relaƟ ves is concerned 
or interested, fi nancial or otherwise, in the said resoluƟ on set out at Item No. 6 except to the extent of their shareholding.

Item No. 7

The Members of the Company had in the Annual General MeeƟ ng held on 28th December, 2010 approved appointment of Mr. Suresh Kumar 
Agrawal as Whole-Ɵ me Director of the Company for a period of 5 years with eff ect from 1st January, 2011. Subsequently, looking at the 
ability, experƟ se and contribuƟ on of Mr. Suresh Kumar Agrawal towards the performance of the Company, based on the recommendaƟ on of 
NominaƟ on & RemuneraƟ on CommiƩ ee of the Company, the Board of Director of the Company at its meeƟ ng held on 23rd November, 2014  
appointed him as Managing Director of the Company for a period of 3 years with eff ect from 23rd November, 2014, subject to the approval 
of the members. 

The main terms and condiƟ ons of appointment of Mr. Suresh Kumar Agrawal (hereinaŌ er referred to as `Managing Director’) are given 
below:

1. The Company appoints Mr. Suresh Kumar Agrawal as Managing Director of the Company for a period of 3 years commencing from 23rd 
November 2014 on the terms and condiƟ ons hereinaŌ er expressed which Mr. Suresh Kumar Agrawal accepts. 



8

2. Mr. Suresh Kumar Agrawal shall unless prevented by ill health and save while on leave, throughout the said term devote the whole 
of his Ɵ me, aƩ enƟ on and abiliƟ es to the business of the Company and in all respects conform to and comply with the direcƟ ons and 
regulaƟ ons made by the Board or any CommiƩ ee of the Board thereof from Ɵ me to Ɵ me.

3. For his services hereunder, Mr Suresh Kumar Agrawal shall be enƟ tled to receive a remuneraƟ on not exceeding Rs. 5,00,000/- per 
month as may be mutually decided between Mr. Suresh Kumar Agrawal and the Board of Directors of the Company. The annual 
increment will be as decided by the Board of Directors.  

4. The Board may from Ɵ me to Ɵ me entrust to Mr. Suresh Kumar Agrawal such of the powers exercisable by it as it thinks fi t and may 
confer such powers for such Ɵ me and to be exercised for such objects and purposes and upon such terms and condiƟ ons and with 
restricƟ ons as it may think expedient.

5.  Mr. Suresh Kumar Agrawal shall ipso facto and immediately cease to be the Managing Director if he ceases to hold the offi  ce of Director 
for any cause.

6. Mr. Suresh Kumar Agrawal shall comply with the Company’s Code of Conduct and other codes and policies framed by the Company 
from Ɵ me to Ɵ me.

7.  The appointment may be terminated by either party by giving 3 (Three) months noƟ ce of such terminaƟ on or salary in lieu thereof or 
by mutual consent.

8.  The terms and condiƟ ons of appointment including remuneraƟ on of the Managing Director may be altered and varied from Ɵ me to 
Ɵ me during his tenure of appointment by the Board in such manner as may be mutually agreed, subject to such approvals as may be 
required and subject to the same being in accordance and within the limits specifi ed in Schedule V and other applicable provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013, or any statutory modifi caƟ on(s) or re-enactment thereof as may be applicable at the relevant Ɵ me.

9.  If any quesƟ on shall arise between the parƟ es hereto or between the Company and the Executors or Administrators or heirs of Mr 
Suresh Kumar Agrawal as to the interpretaƟ on of this Agreement the same shall be referred to a single arbitrator in case the parƟ es 
agreed upon otherwise each party shall appoint one arbitrator and the two appointed arbitrators shall appoint the third arbitrator who 
shall act as the presiding arbitrator. Any award made shall be fi nal and binding on the parƟ es.

The Board of Directors of your Company recommends the resoluƟ on in relaƟ on to appointment of Mr. Suresh Kumar Agrawal as Managing 
Director liable to reƟ re by rotaƟ on, for the approval by the shareholders of the Company.

Brief Profi le of Mr. Suresh Kumar Agrawal, Disclosure required under Clause 49 of the LisƟ ng Agreement and Secretarial Standard is set out 
as the annexure to this NoƟ ce.

Pursuant to provisions of SecƟ on 102(1) of the Companies Act 2013, the extent of shareholding of Mr. Suresh Kumar Agrawal and his relaƟ ves 
is provided below:

Name of Director/KMP/Relatives Extent of shareholding in the Company(%)

Basudeo Agrawal 14.50

Suresh Kumar Agrawal 14.35

Mahabir Prasad Agrawal 8.31

Varun Agrawal 4.22

Chandrakala Agrawal 1.90

Suresh Kumar Agrawal (HUF) 0.52

Except Mr. Suresh Kumar Agrawal and his relaƟ ves, no other Director and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relaƟ ves is 
concerned or interested, fi nancial or otherwise, in the said resoluƟ on set out at Item No. 7 except to the extent of their shareholding.

Item No. 8

Based on the recommendaƟ on of the NominaƟ on & RemuneraƟ on CommiƩ ee, the Board of Directors at its meeƟ ng held on 23rd November, 
2014 appointed Mr. Basudeo Agrawal as AddiƟ onal, Whole-Ɵ me Director of the Company, liable to reƟ re by rotaƟ on, for a period of 3 (Three) 
years with eff ect from 23rd November, 2014 on such terms and condiƟ ons as approved by the Board, subject to the approval of the members. 

In terms of the provisions of SecƟ on 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Basudeo Agrawal will hold offi  ce upto the date of ensuing Annual 
General MeeƟ ng.
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The Company has received a NoƟ ce in wriƟ ng under the provisions of SecƟ on 160 of the Companies Act, 2013, along with a deposit of 
Rs. 1,00,000/- proposing the candidature of Mr. Basudeo Agrawal for the offi  ce of Director.

Subsequently, looking at the ability, experƟ se and contribuƟ on of Mr. Basudeo Agrawal, the Board of Directors at its meeƟ ng held on 3rd 
August, 2015 proposed to the members of the Company to revise the terms and condiƟ ons of appointment of Mr. Basudeo Agrawal to the 
eff ect of increase in remuneraƟ on from Rs. 2,50,000/- to Rs. 4,50,000/- per month with eff ect from 1st October, 2015. Other terms and 
condiƟ ons of appointment of Mr. Basudeo Agrawal will remain same.

The main terms and condiƟ ons of appointment of Mr. Basudeo Agrawal (hereinaŌ er referred to as `Whole-Ɵ me Director’) are given below:

1. The Company appoints Mr. Basudeo Agrawal as Whole Ɵ me Director of the Company for a period of 3 years commencing from 17th 
November, 2014 on the terms and condiƟ ons hereinaŌ er expressed which Mr. Basudeo Agrawal accepts. 

2. Mr. Basudeo Agrawal shall unless prevented by ill health and save while on leave, throughout the said term devote the whole of 
his Ɵ me, aƩ enƟ on and abiliƟ es to the business of the Company and in all respects conform to and comply with the direcƟ ons and 
regulaƟ ons made by the Board or any CommiƩ ee of the Board thereof from Ɵ me to Ɵ me.

3. For his services hereunder, Mr Basudeo Agrawal shall be enƟ tled to receive a remuneraƟ on not exceeding Rs. 4,50,000/- per month as 
may be mutually decided between Mr. Basudeo Agrawal and the Board of Directors of the Company. The annual increment will be as 
decided by the Board of Directors.  

4.  Minimum RemuneraƟ on: Where in any fi nancial year during the currency of the tenure as Whole-Ɵ me Director, the Company has 
no profi ts or its profi ts are inadequate, the Company will pay to the Director, remuneraƟ on by way of salary, benefi ts, perquisites, 
allowances etc as minimum remuneraƟ on subject to the limits specifi ed in SecƟ on II of Part II of Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013. 

5.  Mr. Basudeo Agrawal shall not be enƟ tled to any siƫ  ng fee for aƩ ending meeƟ ngs of the Board and/ or CommiƩ ees thereof. His offi  ce 
shall be liable to determinaƟ on by reƟ rement of Directors by rotaƟ on. 

6. The Board may from Ɵ me to Ɵ me entrust to Mr. Basudeo Agrawal such of the powers exercisable by it as it thinks fi t and may confer 
such powers for such Ɵ me and to be exercised for such objects and purposes and upon such terms and condiƟ ons and with restricƟ ons 
as it may think expedient.

7.  Mr. Basudeo Agrawal shall ipso facto and immediately cease to be the Whole-Ɵ me Director if he ceases to hold the offi  ce of Director 
for any cause.

8. Mr. Basudeo Agrawal shall comply with the Company’s Code of Conduct and other codes and policies framed by the Company from 
Ɵ me to Ɵ me.

9.  The appointment may be terminated by either party by giving 3 (Three) months noƟ ce of such terminaƟ on or salary in lieu thereof or 
by mutual consent.

10.  The terms and condiƟ ons of appointment including remuneraƟ on of the Whole- Ɵ me Director may be altered and varied from Ɵ me to 
Ɵ me during his tenure of appointment by the Board in such manner as may be mutually agreed, subject to such approvals as may be 
required and subject to the same being in accordance and within the limits specifi ed in Schedule V and other applicable provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013, or any statutory modifi caƟ on(s) or re-enactment thereof as may be applicable at the relevant Ɵ me.

11.  If any quesƟ on shall arise between the parƟ es hereto or between the Company and the Executors or Administrators or heirs of 
Mr. Basudeo Agrawal as to the interpretaƟ on of this Agreement the same shall be referred to a single arbitrator in case the parƟ es 
agreed upon otherwise each party shall appoint one arbitrator and the two appointed arbitrators shall appoint the third arbitrator who 
shall act as the presiding arbitrator. Any award made shall be fi nal and binding on the parƟ es.

The Board of Directors of your Company recommends the resoluƟ on in relaƟ on to appointment of Mr. Basudeo Agrawal as Whole-Ɵ me 
Director liable to reƟ re by rotaƟ on, for the approval by the shareholders of the Company.

Brief Profi le of Mr. Basudeo Agrawal, Disclosure required under Clause 49 of the LisƟ ng Agreement and Secretarial Standard is set out as the 
annexure to this NoƟ ce.

Pursuant to provisions of SecƟ on 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the extent of shareholding of Mr Basudeo Agrawal and his relaƟ ves is 
provided below :
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Name of Director/KMP/Relatives Extent of shareholding in the Company (%)
Basudeo Agrawal 14.50
Suresh Kumar Agrawal 14.35
Mahabir Prasad Agrawal 8.31
Vineet Agrawal 3.69
Shobha Devi Agrawal 1.99
Anuradha Agrawal 0.10
Basudeo Agrawal (HUF) 0.71

Except Mr. Basudeo Agrawal and his relaƟ ves, no other Director and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relaƟ ves is 
concerned or interested, fi nancial or otherwise, in the said resoluƟ on set out at Item No. 8 except to the extent of their shareholding.

Item no. 9

Mr. Mahabir Prasad Agrawal was appointed as Non-ExecuƟ ve Director of the Company on 5th September, 1995. Based on the recommendaƟ on 
of NominaƟ on & RemuneraƟ on CommiƩ ee of the Company, the Board of Directors of the Company at its meeƟ ng held on 23rd November, 
2014  appointed him as Whole-Ɵ me Director of the Company for a period of 3 years with eff ect from 23rd November, 2014, subject to the 
approval of the members. 

Subsequently, looking at the ability, experƟ se and contribuƟ on of Mr. Mahabir Prasad Agrawal, the Board of Directors at its meeƟ ng held 
on 3rd August, 2015 proposed to the members of the Company to revise the terms and condiƟ ons of appointment of Mr. Mahabir Prasad 
Agrawal to the eff ect of increase in remuneraƟ on from Rs. 2,50,000/- to Rs. 4,50,000/- per month with eff ect from 1st October, 2015. Other 
terms and condiƟ ons of appointment of Mr. Mahabir Prasad Agrawal will remain same.

The main terms and condiƟ ons of appointment of Mr. Mahabir Prasad Agrawal (hereinaŌ er referred to as `Whole-Ɵ me Director’) are given 
below:

1. The Company appoints Mr. Mahabir Prasad Agrawal as Whole-Ɵ me Director of the Company for a period of 3 (Three) years commencing 
from 23rd November 2014, on the terms and condiƟ ons hereinaŌ er expressed which Mr. Mahabir Prasad Agrawal accepts. 

2. Mr. Mahabir Prasad Agrawal shall unless prevented by ill health and save while on leave, throughout the said term devote the whole 
of his Ɵ me, aƩ enƟ on and abiliƟ es to the business of the Company and in all respects conform to and comply with the direcƟ ons and 
regulaƟ ons made by the Board or any CommiƩ ee of the Board thereof from Ɵ me to Ɵ me.

3. For his services hereunder, Mr. Mahabir Prasad Agrawal shall be enƟ tled to receive a remuneraƟ on not exceeding Rs. 4,50,000/- per 
month as may be mutually decided between Mr. Mahabir Prasad Agrawal and the Board of Directors of the Company. The annual 
increment will be as decided by the Board of Directors.  

4.  Minimum RemuneraƟ on : Where in any fi nancial year during the currency of the tenure as whole-Ɵ me Director, the Company has 
no profi ts or its profi ts are inadequate, the Company will pay to the Director, remuneraƟ on by way of salary, benefi ts, perquisites, 
allowances etc. as minimum remuneraƟ on subject to the limits specifi ed in SecƟ on II of Part II of Schedule V to the Companies Act, 
2013. 

5.  Mr. Mahabir Prasad Agrawal shall not be enƟ tled to any siƫ  ng fee for aƩ ending meeƟ ngs of the Board and/ or CommiƩ ees thereof. His 
offi  ce shall be liable to determinaƟ on by reƟ rement of Directors by rotaƟ on. 

6.      The Board may from Ɵ me to Ɵ me entrust to Mr. Mahabir Prasad Agrawal such of the powers exercisable by it as it thinks fi t and may 
confer such powers for such Ɵ me and to be exercised for such objects and purposes and upon such terms and condiƟ ons and with 
restricƟ ons as it may think expedient.

7.  Mr. Mahabir Prasad Agrawal shall ipso facto and immediately cease to be the Whole-Ɵ me Director if he ceases to hold the offi  ce of 
Director for any cause.

8.      Mr. Mahabir Prasad Agrawal shall comply with the Company’s Code of Conduct and other codes and policies framed by the Company 
from Ɵ me to Ɵ me.

9.  The appointment may be terminated by either party by giving 3 (Three) months noƟ ce of such terminaƟ on or salary in lieu thereof or 
by mutual consent.

10.  The terms and condiƟ ons of appointment including remuneraƟ on of the Whole-Ɵ me Director may be altered and varied from Ɵ me to 
Ɵ me during his tenure of appointment by the Board in such manner as may be mutually agreed, subject to such approvals as may be 
required and subject to the same being in accordance and within the limits specifi ed in Schedule V and other applicable provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013, or any statutory modifi caƟ on(s) or re-enactment thereof as may be applicable at the relevant Ɵ me.
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11.  If any quesƟ on shall arise between the parƟ es hereto or between the Company and the Executors or Administrators or heirs of Mr 
Mahabir Prasad Agrawal as to the interpretaƟ on of this Agreement the same shall be referred to a single arbitrator in case the parƟ es 
agreed upon otherwise each party shall appoint one arbitrator and the two appointed arbitrators shall appoint the third arbitrator who 
shall act as the presiding arbitrator. Any award made shall be fi nal and binding on the parƟ es.

Mr. Mahabir Prasad Agrawal is at the helm of the Company and also guiding force since incorporaƟ on of the Company. He has a vast 
experience of around 48 years in packaging industry. Mr. Mahabir Prasad Agrawal has aƩ ained an age of 77 years and keeping in view his 
experƟ se, ability, contribuƟ on and also the good health possessed by him, the Board of Directors recommend his appointment as Whole-
Ɵ me Director.

The Board of Directors of your Company recommends the resoluƟ on in relaƟ on to appointment of Mr. Mahabir Prasad Agrawal as Whole-
Ɵ me Director liable to reƟ re by rotaƟ on, for the approval by the shareholders of the Company.

Brief Profi le of Mr. Mahabir Prasad Agrawal, Disclosure required under Clause 49 of the LisƟ ng Agreement and Secretarial Standard is set out 
as the annexure to this NoƟ ce.

Pursuant to provisions of SecƟ on 102(1) of the Companies Act 2013, the extent of shareholding of Mr Mahabir Prasad Agrawal and his 
relaƟ ves is provided below :

Name of Director/KMP/Relatives Extent of shareholding in the Company (%)
Mahabir Prasad Agrawal 8.31
Basudeo Agrawal 14.50
Suresh Kumar Agrawal 14.35
Sunil Kumar Agrawal 2.47
Sushil Kumar Agrawal 1.30
Kanta Devi Agrawal 0.74
Mahabir Prasad Agrawal (HUF) 0.71
Manju Agrawal 0.74

Shailaja Agrawal 0.76

Except Mr. Mahabir Prasad Agrawal and his relaƟ ves, no other Director and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relaƟ ves is 
concerned or interested, fi nancial or otherwise, in the said resoluƟ on set out at Item No. 9 except to the extent of their shareholding.

Disclosure as required under Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 for item no. 7, 8 and 9 of the noƟ ce is given hereunder:

I. General InformaƟ on :–

Nature of Industry Manufacturing/Trading

Date or expected date of Commercial ProducƟ on N.A. since the Company has already commenced its business
acƟ viƟ es

In case of new Companies, expected date of 
commencement of acƟ viƟ es as per project approved 
by fi nancial insƟ tuƟ ons appearing in the prospectus

N.A.

   
 Financial performance :–

ParƟ culars For the year ended

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013

Total Revenue 2426.55 59740.33 123261.02

Total Expenses 1529.45 56770.18 117239.94

Net Profi t 737.06 2300.52 2750.80

Paid up Capital 1310.68 1310.68 1310.68

Reserves & Surplus 6707.52 7357.63 50807.80

(Rs. in Lacs)
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Foreign Investments or collaboraƟ ons, if any – There is no direct foreign investment in the Company except to the extent shares held 
by Foreign InsƟ tuƟ onal Investors (FII) and NRI (Rep & Non Rep) acquired through secondary market. There is no foreign collaboraƟ on 
in the Company.

II. InformaƟ on about the Appointees 

ParƟ culars Suresh Kumar Agrawal Basudeo Agrawal Mahabir Prasad Agrawal

Background details Set out in the Explanatory 
Statement to item no. 7 and 
annexure to this NoƟ ce.

Set out  in the Explanatory 
Statement to Item No. 8 and 
annexure to this NoƟ ce.

Set out  in the Explanatory 
Statement to Item No. 9 and 
annexure to this NoƟ ce.

Past RemuneraƟ on /Last 
drawn RemuneraƟ on (Rs. in 
Lacs)

60.00 p.a – –

RecogniƟ on and Awards – – –

Job profi le and his suitability Mr. Suresh Kumar Agrawal 
was the Whole-Ɵ me Director 
of the Company. Based on 
the recommendaƟ on of 
NominaƟ on & RemuneraƟ on 
CommiƩ ee of the Company 
he has been appointed as 
Managing Director of the 
Company by the Board of 
Directors at its meeƟ ng held 
on 23rd November, 2014.

He is entrusted with 
substanƟ al powers of 
management subject to the 
superintendence, control 
and direcƟ on of the Board of 
Directors of the Company. The 
rich experience of Mr. Suresh 
Kumar Agrawal is well suited 
for the posiƟ on of Managing 
Director

On the recommendaƟ on of 
NominaƟ on & RemuneraƟ on 
CommiƩ ee of the Company 
Mr. Basudeo Agrawal has 
been appointed as Whole-
Ɵ me Director of the Company 
by the Board of Directors 
at its meeƟ ng held on 23rd 
November, 2014.

He has vast experience in 
overall management and 
factory administraƟ on as well 
as  in Metal packaging and 
allied operaƟ ons.

Mr. Mahabir Prasad Agrawal 
was a Non-ExecuƟ ve Director 
of the Company. Based on his 
rich experƟ se of around 48 
years in the packaging industry 
and on the recommendaƟ on of 
NominaƟ on & RemuneraƟ on 
CommiƩ ee of the Company he 
has been appointed as Whole-
Ɵ me Director of the Company 
by the Board of Directors 
at its meeƟ ng held on 23rd 
November, 2014.

He looks aŌ er day to day 
operaƟ ons of the Company 
and also assists the Managing 
Director of the Company.

RemuneraƟ on proposed 
(Rs. in Lacs)

60.00 p.a. 54.00 p.a. 54.00 p.a.

ComparaƟ ve remuneraƟ on 
profi le with respect to industry, 
size of the Company, profi le of 
the posiƟ on and person

The remuneraƟ on being paid 
by the Company is in line with 
the remuneraƟ on being paid 
to its Managing Director by 
the companies of comparable 
size.

The remuneraƟ on being paid 
by the Company is in line with 
the remuneraƟ on being paid to 
its managerial personnel by the 
companies of comparable size.

The remuneraƟ on being paid by 
the Company is in line with the 
remuneraƟ on being paid to its 
managerial personnel  by the 
companies of comparable size.
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ParƟ culars Suresh Kumar Agrawal Basudeo Agrawal Mahabir Prasad Agrawal

Pecuniary relaƟ onship directly 
or indirectly with the Company 
or relaƟ onship with the 
managerial personnel, if any

Mr. Suresh Kumar Agrawal 
holds 9402740 equity shares 
in the Company. Apart from 
receiving remuneraƟ on as 
stated above and dividend as 
the member of the Company, 
Mr. Suresh Kumar Agrawal 
does not have any other 
pecuniary relaƟ onship with 
the company or with the 
managerial personnel of the 
Company.

Mr. Basudeo Agrawal holds 
9500115 equity shares in the 
Company. Apart from receiving 
remuneraƟ on as stated above 
and dividend as the member 
of the Company, Mr. Basudeo 
Agrawal does not have any 
other pecuniary relaƟ onship 
with the company or with the 
managerial personnel of the 
Company.

Mr. Mahabir Prasad Agrawal 
holds 5448245 equity shares 
in the Company. Apart from 
receiving remuneraƟ on as 
stated above and dividend as 
the member of the Company, 
Mr. Mahabir Prasad Agrawal 
does not have any other 
pecuniary relaƟ onship with the 
company or with the managerial 
personnel of the Company.

III. Other informaƟ on: 

 1) Reasons of loss or inadequate profi ts: 

  The Hon’ble CalcuƩ a High Court, vide its Order dated March 24, 2014 (cerƟ fi ed copy received by the Company on November 
19, 2014), has approved the Scheme of Arrangement between Manaksia Limited and Manaksia Steels Limited, Manaksia 
Industries Limited, Manaksia Coated Metals & Industries Limited and Manaksia Aluminium Company Limited and their respecƟ ve 
shareholders for demerger and transfer of undertakings of Manaksia Limited (Transferor Company) into the 4 (Four) Transferee 
Companies viz. Manaksia Steels Limited, Manaksia Industries Limited, Manaksia Coated Metals & Industries Limited and Manaksia 
Aluminium Company Limited under SecƟ ons 391 to 394 of the Companies Act, 1956. The Scheme became eff ecƟ ve from 23rd 
November, 2014 with the appointed date of 1st October, 2013. Transfer of undertakings of the Company to the demerged 
companies has resulted in inadequacy of profi ts.

 2) Steps taken or proposed to be taken for improvement : 

  The Company is taking all possible steps to improve its performance. The Company is exploring various avenues for improving 
its boƩ omline. The company is also making certain strategic changes which would result in further cost reducƟ on and thereby 
contribuƟ ng to the profi tability in the years to come. 

 3) Expected increase in producƟ vity and profi ts in measurable terms : 

  The steps taken/proposed to be taken for improvement are expected to make a posiƟ ve impact on growing revenue and containing 
costs. This is expected to improve the performance and the profi tability of the Company in coming years.

IV.  Disclosures : 

 Disclosures pursuant to Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013, is contained in the explanatory statement to the respecƟ ve resoluƟ ons 
and also in the Corporate Governance Report which is annexed to the Directors Report for the year 2015. 

Regd. Offi  ce :   By Order of the Board of Directors
Bikaner Building, 3rd Floor
8/1, Lal Bazar Street
Kolkata – 700 001 Raj Kumar Banthia
Date : 3rd August, 2015 Company Secretary
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PURSUANT TO CLAUSE 49 OF THE LISTING AGREEMENT AND SECRETERIAL STANDARD THE BRIEF PARTICULARS OF THE DIRECTORS TO BE APPOINTED/
RE-APPOINTED ARE AS UNDER :

Name of the Director Vineet Agrawal Varun Agrawal Basudeo Agrawal Suresh Kumar 
Agrawal

Mahabir Prasad 
Agrawal

Sunil Kumar Agrawal

Director 
IdenƟ fi caƟ on 
Number

 00441223  00441271  00438754  00520769 00524341  00091784

Date of Birth / Age 24.03.1976                                                 
39 years

09.10.1982                       
33 years

30.05.1949                            
66 years

28.07.1953                             
62 years

05.07.1938                               
77 years

11.12.1961                        
54 years

Date of fi rst Appoint-
ment on the Board

23.11.2014 23.11.2014 23.11.2014 01.01.1998 05.09.1995 02.09.2000

Qualifi caƟ ons Commerce Graduate Commerce Graduate Commerce Graduate Chemical Engineer Commerce Graduate Commerce Graduate
Terms and condiƟ ons 
of appointment or 
re-appointment

He is being appointed 
as Non-ExecuƟ ve 
Director of the 
Company

He is being appointed 
as Non-ExecuƟ ve 
Director of the 
Company

Provided in the 
Explanatory 
Statement of the 
NoƟ ce dated 3rd 
August, 2015

Provided in the 
Explanatory 
Statement of the 
NoƟ ce dated 3rd 
August, 2015

Provided in the 
Explanatory 
Statement of the 
NoƟ ce dated 3rd 
August, 2015

He is being appointed 
as Non-ExecuƟ ve 
Director of the 
Company

Details of remune-
raƟ on sought to be 
paid (Rs. in Lacs)

NA NA 54.00 p.a. 60.00 p.a. 54.00 p.a. NA

Last RemuneraƟ on 
Drawn (Rs. in Lacs)

NA NA NA 60.00 p.a. NA 30.00 p.a.

ExperƟ se ExperƟ se in 
markeƟ ng of value 
added steel and 
aluminium products. 

ExperƟ se in 
markeƟ ng of value 
added steel and 
aluminium products. 

Vast experience in 
overall management 
and factory 
administraƟ on and 
has vast experƟ se in 
Metal packaging and 
allied operaƟ ons. 

Vast Experience 
and knowledge in 
overall business 
management, in 
manufacturing, 
internaƟ onal business 
and markeƟ ng.

Vast Experience of 
around 48 years in 
packaging industry

Wide Experience 
and knowledge in 
overall business 
management, in 
manufacturing 
and factory 
administraƟ on.

Directorship held 
in other Companies 
including Foreign 
Companies

1.  Manaksia 
Aluminium 
Company Ltd.

2.  Manaksia Steels 
Ltd.

3.  Agrim Steel 
Industries Ltd.

4.  Anuradha Trexim 
Pvt. Ltd.

5.  Krishna Devlo 
Consultancy Pvt. 
Ltd.

6.  Manaksia Overseas 
Ltd.

7.  Mark Steels Ltd.
8.  Seaview 

Tradecomm Pvt. 
Ltd.

9.  Titanic 
Manufacturing 
Company Pvt. Ltd.

10. Maxell SecuriƟ es    
       Ltd.
11. Sweka Caps Pvt. 
       Ltd.
12. Manaksia Ferro   
       Industries Ltd.

1.  Manaksia Ferro 
Industries Ltd.         

2.  Manaksia Steels 
Ltd.

3.  Krishna Devlo Con-
sultancy Pvt. Ltd.

4.  Fixopan Manage-
ment Pvt. Ltd.

5.  Crest Steel & 
Alloys Pvt. Ltd.

6.  Sampark 
Rolling Stocks & 
Containers Pvt. 
Ltd.

7.  Rainbow 
Manufacturing Co. 
Pvt. Ltd.

8.  Seaview 
Tradecomm Pvt. 
Ltd.

9.  Titanic 
Manufacturing 
Company Pvt. Ltd.

1.  Manaksia 
Aluminium 
Company Ltd.

2.  Manaksia Ferro 
Industries Ltd.

3.  Manaksia 
Overseas Ltd.

4.  Godson Exports 
Private Ltd.

5.  Shree Sanyogita 
Commercial Pvt. 
Ltd.

6.  Vinayak Enclave & 
Developer Pvt. Ltd.

1.  Manaksia Steels 
Ltd.

2.  Manaksia 
Overseas Ltd.

3.  Seaview 
Tradecomm Pvt. 
Ltd.

4.  Rainbow 
Manufacturing Co. 
Pvt. Ltd.

1.  Manaksia  
     Overseas Ltd.                                                
2.  Vinayak Enclave 
     & Developer Pvt. 
     Ltd.             
3.  Godson
     Exports Pvt. Ltd.                                                
4.  PurushoƩ am 
     Barter Pvt. Ltd.                                      
5.  Shree Sanyogita 
     Commercial Pvt. 
     Ltd.         

1.  Athena Minerals 
and Steel Pvt. Ltd.

2.  Manaksia Cements 
Pvt. Ltd.

3.  Manaksia Coated 
Metals & Industries 
Ltd.

4.  Manaksia 
Aluminium 
Company Ltd.

5.  PurushoƩ am Barter 
Pvt. Ltd.

6.  SSM Advance 
Materials Pvt. Ltd.

7.  SSQ Exports Pvt. 
Ltd.

ANNEXURE
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Name of the Director Vineet Agrawal Varun Agrawal Basudeo Agrawal Suresh Kumar 
Agrawal

Mahabir Prasad 
Agrawal

Sunil Kumar Agrawal

Membership/
Chairmanship of the 
CommiƩ ee of other 
Public Companies 

1.  Member of  
     Stakeholders   
     RelaƟ onship
     CommiƩ ee -  
     Manaksia   
     Aluminium 
    Company Limited                          
2. Member of 
    NominaƟ on &  
    RemuneraƟ on 
    CommiƩ ee- 
    Manaksia Steels 
    Limited

1.  Member of 
     Stakeholders 
     RelaƟ onship 
     CommiƩ ee - 
     Manaksia Steels 
     Limited

 1.  Member of 
      NominaƟ on & 
      RemuneraƟ on 
      CommiƩ ee - 
      Manaksia 
      Aluminium 
      Company Limited

1.  Member of Audit 
     CommiƩ ee        
     -  Manaksia 
     Steels Limited                                      
2. Member of 
    Stakeholders    
    RelaƟ onship 
    CommiƩ ee-   
    Manaksia Steels 
    Limited

None 1.  Member of Audit 
     CommiƩ ee- 
     Manaksia   
      Aluminium 

Company Limited                                                                    
2.  Member of 
     Stakeholders 
     RelaƟ onship 
     CommiƩ ee 

- Manaksia 
Aluminium 
Company Limited                                                  

3.  Member of 
NominaƟ on & 
RemuneraƟ on 
CommiƩ ee- 
Manaksia Coated 
Metals & Industries 
Limited                                                                         

4.  Member of 
Stakeholders 
RelaƟ onship 
Commitee - 
Manaksia Coated 
Metals & Industries 
Limited

Membership/
Chairmanship of the 
CommiƩ ee of the 
Board of Directors of 
the Company

None None None 1.  Member of 
     Stakeholders 
     RelaƟ onship 
     CommiƩ ee                             
2.  Member 
     of  CommiƩ ee 
     of Directors                                     
3.  Member of 
     Corporate Social 
     Responsibilty 
     CommiƩ ee                 

1.  Member 
     of CommiƩ ee   
     of Directors                                         
2. Member of 
    Audit CommiƩ ee                                         
3. Member of 
    Stakeholders 
    RelaƟ onship 
    CommiƩ ee                                      
4. Chairman of 
    Corporate Social 
    Responsibility   
    CommiƩ ee                                             

1.  Member of 
CommiƩ ee of 
Directors 

2.  Member of 
NominaƟ on and 
RemuneraƟ on 
CommiƩ ee

Number of Shares 
Held

2416245 2766930 9500115 9402740 5448245 1616060

RelaƟ onship with 
other Directors and 
other Key Managerial 
Personnels of the 
Company

Mr. Basudeo Agrawal- 
Father

Mr. Suresh Kumar 
Agrawal- Father

Mr. Mahabir Prasad 
Agrawal- Brother                                       
Mr. Suresh Kumar 
Agrawal- Brother                             
Mr. Vineet Agrawal- 
Son

Mr. Mahabir Prasad 
Agrawal- Brother                                       
Mr. Basudeo 
Agrawal- Brother                                            
Mr. Varun Agrawal- 
Son

Mr. Basudeo 
Agrawal- Brother                                       
Mr. Suresh Kumar 
Agrawal- Brother                             
Mr. Sunil Kumar 
Agrawal- Son

Mr. Mahabir Prasad 
Agrawal- Father

Number of Board 
meeƟ ngs aƩ ended 
during the year 

– – 1 6 6 6
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Dear Shareholders,

Your Directors are pleased to present the Thirty First Annual Report on the business and operaƟ ons of the Company together with the 
Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2015.

FINANCIAL RESULTS   (` in lacs)

ParƟ culars STANDALONE CONSOLIDATION

2014-15 2013-14 2014-15 2013-14

Total Revenue 2426.55 59740.33 113190.40 168560.64

Profi t Before Tax 897.10 2970.15 11325.79 19969.65

Less : Provisions for TaxaƟ on 160.04 669.63 941.22 868.72

Net Profi t 737.06 2300.52 10343.29 19132.26

Balance brought forward from previous 
year

3351.21 3361.37 89146.34 76863.75

Total Amount available for appropriaƟ on 4088.27 4661.89 99489.63 90457.02

AppropriaƟ ons :

Dividend on Equity Shares 1310.68 1310.68 1310.68 1310.68

Surplus Carried to Balance Sheet 2777.59 3351.21 98178.95 89146.34

Total 4088.27 4661.89 99489.63 90457.02

STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS AND FUTURE OUTLOOK

Kindly refer to `Management Discussion and Analysis Report’ which forms part of the Annual Report.

CHANGES IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS

There has been no change in the nature of business of the Company. 

DIVIDEND

The Board in its meeƟ ng held on 14th February, 2015 had declared Interim Dividend of 100% i.e. Rs.2/- per share on face value of Rs.2/- per 
equity share aggregaƟ ng to Rs.1310.68 Lacs. The said dividend was paid to the shareholders enƟ tled thereto, on and aŌ er 25th February, 
2015. The Board of the Company has not recommended any further dividend for the fi nancial year 2014-15 and the Interim Dividend paid 
would be the fi nal dividend for the Financial Year 2014-15. 

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

During the year under review your Company has not transferred any amount to General Reserve.

SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT

The Hon’ble CalcuƩ a High Court vide its Order dated 24th March, 2014 has sancƟ oned the Scheme of Arrangement under the provisions of 
SecƟ on 391 to 394 of the Companies Act, 1956 for demerger of Aluminium Undertaking, Coated Metals and Mosquito Coil Undertakings, 
Steel Undertaking and Packaging Undertaking of Manaksia Limited on a going concern basis. The cerƟ fi ed copy of the Order sancƟ oning 
the Scheme was received by the Company on 19th November, 2014 and the Company has duly fi led the said Order with the Registrar of 
Companies, West Bengal, on 23rd November, 2014. The Scheme has become eff ecƟ ve on and from the date of fi ling with the Registrar of 
Companies.

SHARE CAPITAL

The paid up Share Capital as at 31st March, 2015 stood at Rs. 1310.68 Lacs. During the year under review, the Company has not issued shares 
with diff erenƟ al voƟ ng rights nor has granted any stock opƟ ons or sweat equity.

DETAILS PERTAINING TO SHARES IN SUSPENSE ACCOUNT

Details of shares held in the demat suspense account as required under Clause 5A I and 5A II of the LisƟ ng Agreement forms part of the 
Corporate Governance Report.

OPERATIONS AND BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

Kindly refer Management Discussion and Analysis Report, which forms part of the Annual Report. 

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review, as sƟ pulated under Clause 49 of the LisƟ ng Agreement forms part 
of this Annual Report.

DETAILS RELATING TO MATERIAL VARIATIONS

During the year under review there is no material variaƟ ons as no prospectus or leƩ er of off er has been issued.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED 
BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE COMPANY TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE 
REPORT

There is no such material changes and commitments aff ecƟ ng the fi nancial posiƟ on of the company.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETRUN

The extract of Annual Return as on 31st March, 2015 in the prescribed Form MGT-9, pursuant to SecƟ on 92(3) of the Companies Act, 
2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and AdministraƟ on) Rules, 2014 forms part of this Directors’ Report and marked as 
Annexure- “A”.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Pursuant to Clause 49 of the LisƟ ng Agreement with the Stock Exchanges, Report on the Corporate Governance along with a cerƟ fi cate from 
the Auditors of the Company confi rming compliance with the condiƟ ons of the Corporate Governance is annexed as Annexure-“B”.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

The details of numbers of meeƟ ngs of Board held during the Financial Year 2014-15 forms part of the Corporate Governance Report.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Directors of your Company, hereby confi rm, pursuant to the provisions of SecƟ on 134 (3) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of 
fi nancial year under review :

a) That in the preparaƟ on of the annual accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2015, all the applicable accounƟ ng standards prescribed 
by the InsƟ tute of Chartered Accountants of India have been followed along with proper explanaƟ ons relaƟ ng to material departures, 
if any;

b) That the Directors have adopted such accounƟ ng policies and have applied them consistently and have made judgements and esƟ mates 
in a reasonable and prudent manner so as to give a true and fair view of the state of aff airs of the Company as at the end of the Financial 
Year 2014-15 and of the profi t of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2015;

c) That the Directors have taken proper and suffi  cient care for the maintenance of adequate accounƟ ng records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for prevenƟ ng and detecƟ ng fraud and other 
irregulariƟ es;

d) That the annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis;

e) That the Directors have laid down internal fi nancial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal fi nancial controls are 
adequate and are operaƟ ng eff ecƟ vely;

f) That the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems 
are adequate and operaƟ ng eff ecƟ vely.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

In order to align with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and the LisƟ ng Agreement your Company has appointed Mr Ajay Kumar 
Chakraborty, Dr Kali Kumar Chaudhuri and Mrs Smita Khaitan as Independent Directors of the Company for a term of 5 (Five) years in the 
Annual General MeeƟ ng of the Company held on 26th September 2014 and shall hold offi  ce upto the conclusion of the Annual General 
MeeƟ ng of the Company to be held in the calendar year 2019. 

The Company has received declaraƟ ons from all the Independent Directors of the Company confi rming that they meet the criteria of 
independence as laid down under SecƟ on 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the LisƟ ng Agreement.

DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

During the year under review Mr. Basant Kumar Agrawal, Managing Director and Mr Sushil Kumar Agrawal, Whole-Ɵ me Director of the 
Company have resigned from the Directorship of the Company with eff ect from conclusion of Board MeeƟ ng held on 23rd November, 
2014. The Board in its meeƟ ng held on 23rd November, 2014, based on the recommendaƟ on of NominaƟ on & RemuneraƟ on CommiƩ ee, 
has changed the terms of appointment of Mr. Suresh Kumar Agrawal by changing his designaƟ on from Whole-Ɵ me Director to Managing 
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Director of the Company subject to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing Annual General MeeƟ ng of the Company. The Board in its 
meeƟ ng held on 23rd November, 2014 based on the recommendaƟ on of NominaƟ on & RemuneraƟ on CommiƩ ee has changed the terms 
of appointment including remuneraƟ on of Mr. Mahabir Prasad Agrawal by changing his designaƟ on from Non-ExecuƟ ve Director to Whole-
Ɵ me Director of the Company for a period of 3 years, subject to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing Annual General MeeƟ ng of the 
Company. The Board in its meeƟ ng held on 23rd November, 2014 has approved change in terms of appointment of Mr. Sunil Kumar Agrawal 
by changing his designaƟ on from Whole-Ɵ me Director to Non-ExecuƟ ve Director of the Company. 

The Board in its meeƟ ng held on 23rd November, 2014 based on the recommendaƟ on of NominaƟ on & RemuneraƟ on CommiƩ ee has 
appointed Mr. Basudeo Agrawal as AddiƟ onal Director of the Company designated as Whole-Ɵ me Director of the Company for a period of 3 
years subject to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing Annual General MeeƟ ng of the Company. 

The Board in its meeƟ ng held on 23rd November, 2014 based on the recommendaƟ on of NominaƟ on & RemuneraƟ on CommiƩ ee  has 
appointed Mr Vineet Agrawal and Mr. Varun Agrawal as AddiƟ onal Directors of the Company.  

During the year under review, Mr. Anubhav Maheshwari has resigned as Company Secretary of the Company and Mr. Raj Kumar Banthia has 
been appointed as Company Secretary of the Company. 

In accordance with the provisions of SecƟ on 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the  ArƟ cles of AssociaƟ on of the Company, Mr. Sunil 
Kumar Agrawal, Director of the Company, reƟ re by rotaƟ on at the ensuing Annual General MeeƟ ng and being eligible off ers himself for re-
appointment.

The brief Resume/ Profi le of the Directors recommended by the Board for appointment/ re-appointment forms part of NoƟ ce convening the 
31st Annual General MeeƟ ng.

STATUTORY AUDITORS & AUDITORS’ REPORT

At the 30th Annual General MeeƟ ng held on 26th September, 2014 the members approved appointment of Messers SRB & Associates, 
Chartered Accountants, (RegistraƟ on No. 310009E) to hold offi  ce from the conclusion of the 30th Annual General MeeƟ ng unƟ l the conclusion 
of the 33rd Annual General MeeƟ ng, (subject to raƟ fi caƟ on of the appointment by the members, at every Annual General MeeƟ ng held aŌ er 
the 30th Annual General MeeƟ ng) on such remuneraƟ on as may be fi xed by the Board, apart from reimbursement of out of pocket expenses 
as may be incurred by them for the purpose of audit.

In accordance with SecƟ on 139 of the Act, members are requested to raƟ fy the appointment of the Auditors to hold offi  ce from the conclusion 
of the 31st Annual General MeeƟ ng Ɵ ll the conclusion of the 32nd  Annual General MeeƟ ng. 

There are no observaƟ ons (including any qualifi caƟ on, reservaƟ on, adverse remarks or disclaimer) of the Auditors in their Audit Report 
that may call for any explanaƟ on from the Directors. The specifi c notes forming part of the accounts referred to in Auditor’s Report are self- 
explanatory and give complete informaƟ on. 

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS

Pursuant to the provisions of SecƟ on 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and RemuneraƟ on of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors of the Company had appointed M/s. Vinod Kothari & Company, PracƟ sing Company Secretaries 
to conduct Secretarial Audit of the Company for the Financial Year 2014-15. 

The Secretarial Audit Report for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2015, forms part of the Directors Report and annexed as Annexure-“C”. 

The Secretarial Auditors Report addressed to the shareholders of the Company, does not contain any qualifi caƟ on. 

COST AUDITORS 

Pursuant to SecƟ on 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, in terms of the Central Government’s approval, the Board of Directors on the recommen-
daƟ on of the Audit CommiƩ ee appointed M/s. B Mukhopadhyay & Co, Cost Accountants, B-20, AmaravaƟ , Sodepur, Kolkata- 700 110, as the 
Cost Auditors for the Aluminium and Steel Products manufactured by the Company during the Financial Year 2014-15.

The Cost Audit Report for the fi nancial year 2013-14, in respect of Aluminium and Steel Products was duly approved by the Board of Directors 
within the Ɵ me sƟ pulated under the Companies Act, 2013 and relevant rules made thereunder. However, there was delay in submission 
of the Cost Audit Report in the requisite forms with  the Ministry of Corporate Aff airs (MCA) due to diffi  culty arising in understanding the 
modaliƟ es for fi ling the Form. 

The Hon’ble CalcuƩ a High Court vide its Order dated 24th March, 2014 had sancƟ oned the Scheme of Arrangement for demerger of 
Aluminium Undertaking, Coated Metals and Mosquito Coil Undertakings, Steel Undertaking and Packaging Undertaking of Manaksia Limited 
on a going concern basis. AŌ er the said Scheme being eff ecƟ ve the provisions of SecƟ on 148 and Cost Audit Rules are not applicable on your 
Company.

FRAUD REPORTING 

There was no fraud reported by the Auditors of the Company to the Audit CommiƩ ee or the Board of Directors during the year under review.
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PARTICUALARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS 

The Company has not given any loans, made any investments or given any guarantee during the fi nancial year 2014-15 as sƟ pulated under 
SecƟ on 186 of Companies Act, 2013.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACT OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

All transacƟ ons entered into with Related ParƟ es for the year under review were on arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business 
and that the provisions of SecƟ on 188 read with the Companies (MeeƟ ngs of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 are not aƩ racted. Thus, 
disclosure in Form AOC-2 is not required. Further there are no materially signifi cant related party transacƟ ons during the year under review 
made by the Company with Promoters, Directors or Key Managerial Personnel or other Designated persons which may have a potenƟ al 
confl ict with the interest of the Company at large.

All Related Party TransacƟ ons are approved by the Audit CommiƩ ee prior to the transacƟ on. Related Party TransacƟ ons of repeƟ Ɵ ve nature 
are approved by the Audit CommiƩ ee on omnibus basis for one fi nancial year at a Ɵ me. All omnibus approvals are reviewed by the Audit 
CommiƩ ee on a quarterly basis.

The policy on Related Party TransacƟ ons as approved by the Board of Directors of the Company may be accessed on the Company’s website 
www.manaksia.com and the weblink thereto hƩ p://www.manaksia.com/inv-corp--policies.php.

DETAILS OF CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The details required pursuant to the provisions of SecƟ on 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 relaƟ ng to ConservaƟ on of Energy, Technology AbsorpƟ on and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo forms part of 
this Directors Report and marked as Annexure-“D”.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk Management is the process of idenƟ fi caƟ on, assessment and prioriƟ zaƟ on of risks followed by coordinated eff orts to minimize, monitor 
and miƟ gate the probability and/or impact of unfortunate events or to maximize the realisaƟ on of opportuniƟ es.

The Company has structured Risk Management Policy, designed to safeguard the organizaƟ on from various risks through adequate and 
Ɵ mely acƟ ons. The Company manages, monitors and reports on its risks and uncertainƟ es that can impact its ability to achieve its objecƟ ves. 
The major risks have been idenƟ fi ed by the Company and its miƟ gaƟ on process/ measures have been formulated.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company pursuant to the requirement of the provisions of SecƟ on 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Clause 49 of the LisƟ ng 
Agreement has in place Audit CommiƩ ee comprising of 4 (Four) members, Mr. Ajay Kumar Chakraborty - Independent Director (Chairman), 
Dr. Kali Kumar Chaudhuri - Independent Director, Mrs. Smita Khaitan - Independent Director and Mr. Mahabir Prasad Agrawal – ExecuƟ ve 
Director. The detailed terms of reference of the CommiƩ ee is provided in the Corporate Governance Report. The Board has accepted all the 
recommendaƟ ons made by the Audit CommiƩ ee.

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

As required by the provisions of SecƟ on 178(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Clause 49 of the LisƟ ng Agreement the Company has 
in place the NominaƟ on & RemuneraƟ on CommiƩ ee comprising of 4 (Four) Directors, Mr. Ajay Kumar Chakraborty - Independent Director 
(Chairman), Dr Kali Kumar Chaudhuri - Independent Director, Mrs. Smita Khaitan - Independent Director and Mr. Sunil Kumar Agrawal – Non-
execuƟ ve Director. The detailed terms of reference of the CommiƩ ee is provided in the Corporate Governance Report. 

The Company pursuant to provisions of SecƟ on 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the LisƟ ng Agreement and upon 
recommendaƟ on of NominaƟ on & RemuneraƟ on commiƩ ee has devised a policy on RemuneraƟ on of Directors and  Key Managerial 
Personnel. The said policy forms part of the Directors Report and marked as Annexure-“E”.

FamiliarizaƟ on programme undertaken for Independent Directors is provided at the following weblink: hƩ p://www.manaksia.com/
management-team.php. 

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

As required by the provisions of SecƟ on 178(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the provisions of Clause 49 of the LisƟ ng Agreement the 
Company has in place the Stakeholders RelaƟ onship CommiƩ ee comprising of 3 (Three) members, Mrs. Smita Khaitan - Independent Director 
(Chairman), Mr. Suresh Kumar Agrawal – Managing Director and Mr. Mahabir Prasad Agrawal – Whole-Ɵ me Director.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) forms integral part of the way the Company conducts its business and is primarily concerned to 
provide social, environmental and economic benefi ts to the communiƟ es and geographies in which it operates. The CSR acƟ viƟ es are inter-
alia, focused on rural development including livestock development and health care . The details and areas of expenditure spent on CSR 
forms part of this report and marked as Annexure-“F”.
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The Hon’ble CalcuƩ a High Court, vide its order dated March 24, 2014 (cerƟ fi ed copy received by the Company on November 19, 2014), has 
approved the Scheme of Arrangement between Manaksia Limited and Manaksia Steels Limited, Manaksia Industries Limited, Manaksia 
Coated Metals & Industries Limited and Manaksia Aluminium Company Limited and their respecƟ ve shareholders for demerger and transfer 
of undertakings of Manaksia Limited (Transferor Company) into the 4 (Four) Transferee Companies viz. Manaksia Steels Limited, Manaksia 
Industries Limited, Manaksia Coated Metals & Industries Limited and Manaksia Aluminium Company Limited under SecƟ ons 391 to 394 of 
the Companies Act, 1956. The Scheme became eff ecƟ ve from 23rd November, 2014 with the appointed date of 1st October, 2013. All the 
manufacturing undertakings of the Company were transferred to the demerged companies from the appointed date of 1st October, 2013. 
Accordingly, during the year the Company had carried on only trading acƟ viƟ es. Pursuant to such trading acƟ viƟ es during the year 2014-
15, the Company has generated a trading income of Rs. 64.11 lacs only. The Company spent Rs. 7.41 lacs towards its CSR acƟ viƟ es. Out of 
the total budgeted amount of Rs. 45.16 Lacs, Rs. 37.75 Lacs remains unspent. Your Company would like to submit that this being the fi rst 
year of structured implementaƟ on of CSR iniƟ aƟ ves, considerable Ɵ me was spent on deciding on the CSR projects and puƫ  ng systems in 
place to ensure eff ecƟ ve implementaƟ on of CSR iniƟ aƟ ves. Consequently, only a part of the year was available for implementaƟ on of CSR 
projects. Hence, the Company was unable to spend Rs. 37.75 Lacs out of the  allocated amount of Rs. 45.16 Lacs during the FY 2014-2015. 
The Company is commiƩ ed to the underlying intent of CSR and is opƟ misƟ c of meeƟ ng its obligaƟ ons under SecƟ on 135 of Companies Act, 
2013 and thereby make a posiƟ ve impact on the society.

BOARD EVALUATION 

Pursuant to requirement of the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the LisƟ ng Agreement, the NominaƟ on & RemuneraƟ on 
CommiƩ ee of the Board has laid down the criteria for evaluaƟ on of the ExecuƟ ve Directors, Non-ExecuƟ ve Directors, Board as a Whole and 
the CommiƩ ees of the Board, in a structured quesƟ onnaire form aŌ er taking into consideraƟ on various aspects of the Board funcƟ oning, 
composiƟ on of the Board and its CommiƩ ees, culture, execuƟ on, diligence, integrity, awareness and performance of specifi c laws, duƟ es, 
obligaƟ ons and governance. 

The performance evaluaƟ on of the Board and its commiƩ ees was carried out. The performance evaluaƟ on of the Independent Directors 
was also completed. The performance evaluaƟ on of the Chairman and the Non-Independent Directors was carried out by the Independent 
Directors in their separate meeƟ ng. The Board of Directors expressed their saƟ sfacƟ on with the evaluaƟ on process. 

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

During the year under review pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement as sancƟ oned by the Hon’ble CalcuƩ a High Court vide its Order dated 
24th March, 2014, 4 (Four) Indian Subsidiary Companies and 2 (Two) Foreign Subsidiary Companies ceased to be Subsidiary Companies of 
your Company. 

During the year under review 4 (Four) wholly owned Indian Subsidiary Companies viz. Manaksia Aluminium Company Limited, Manaksia 
Coated Metals & Industries Limited, Manaksia Industries Limited and Manaksia Steels Limited have ceased to be subsidiary companies with 
the Scheme becoming eff ecƟ ve.

Further, 1 (One) wholly owned Foreign Subsidiary Company viz. Euroasian Ventures FZE and 1 (One) Step down Foreign Subsidiary Company 
viz. Euroasian Steels LLC have also ceased to be subsidiary companies with the Scheme becoming eff ecƟ ve.    

Pursuant to the provisions of SecƟ on 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the 
details containing salient features of the fi nancial statement of subsidiary companies /associate companies/ joint ventures in Form AOC-1 
forms part of this Annual Report.

The details of performance of the Subsidiary Companies is as follows :

Indian Subsidiaries :

 Mark Steels Limited

 The Revenue of the Company for FY 2015 stood at Rs. 10787.71 Lacs (Previous Year: Rs. 8738.07 Lacs). During the year, the company 
had a net profi t of Rs. 137.58 Lacs (Previous Year: Rs. 130.93 Lacs).

 Manaksia Overseas Limited

 The company had a net loss of Rs. 0.30 Lacs in FY 2015 (Previous Year: net loss of Rs. 0.16 Lacs).  

 Manaksia Ferro Industries Limited

 The Revenue of the Company for FY 2015 stood at Rs. 3.00 Lacs (Previous Year: NIL). During the year, the company had a net loss of 
Rs. 0.19 Lacs (Previous Year: net loss of Rs. 0.18 Lacs).         

Foreign Subsidiaries :

 MINL Limited

 The Revenue of the Company for the year ended 31st December 2014 stood at Naira 259914.91 Lacs (equivalent to Rs. 94514.51 Lacs). 
During the year ended 31st Deccember 2014, the company had a net profi t of Naira 34380.61 Lacs (equivalent to Rs. 12502.04 Lacs). 
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 Jebba Paper Mills Limited

 This Company is subsidiary of MINL Limited. The Revenue of the Company for the year ended 31st December 2014 stood at Naira 
32049.50 Lacs (equivalent to Rs. 11654.36 Lacs). During the year ended 31st Deccember 2014, the company had a net profi t of Naira 
5234.42 Lacs (equivalent to Rs. 1903.42 Lacs).

 Dynatech Industries Ghana Limited

 The Revenue of the Company for the year ended 31st December 2014 stood at CEDI 385.63 Lacs (equivalent to Rs. 7331.32 Lacs). 
During the year ended 31st Deccember 2014, the company had a net loss of CEDI 27.70 Lacs (equivalent to Rs. 526.66 Lacs).

DEPOSITS

The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits during the Financial Year 2014-15 in terms of Chapter V of the Companies Act, 
2013.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS, COURTS AND TRIBUNALS

The Company has not received any signifi cant or material orders passed by any regulatory authority, court or tribunal which shall impact the 
going concern status and Company’s operaƟ ons in future.  

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company has in place adequate internal fi nancial controls with reference to fi nancial statements. To commensurate the internal fi nancial 
control with its size, scale and complexiƟ es of its operaƟ ons the Company on the recommendaƟ on of Audit CommiƩ ee has appointed M/s. 
S K Agrawal & Company, Chartered Accountants, as Internal Auditor of the Company.

The Audit CommiƩ ee reviews the report submiƩ ed by the Internal Auditors. The Audit CommiƩ ee of the Board of Directors acƟ vely reviews 
the adequacy and eff ecƟ veness of the internal control systems with regard to –

1. Systems have been laid to ensure that all transacƟ ons are executed in accordance with management’s general and specifi c authorizaƟ on. 
There are well-laid manuals for such general or specifi c authorizaƟ on.

2. Systems and procedures exist to ensure that all transacƟ ons are recorded as necessary to permit preparaƟ on of fi nancial statements 
in confi rmity with generally accepted accounƟ ng principles or any other criteria applicable to such statements, and to maintain 
accountability for aspects and the Ɵ mely preparaƟ on of reliable fi nancial informaƟ on.

3. Access to assets is permiƩ ed only in accordance with management’s general and specifi c authorizaƟ on. No assets of the Company are 
allowed to be used for personal purposes, except in accordance with terms of employment or except as specifi cally permiƩ ed.

4. The exisƟ ng assets of the Company are verifi ed/ checked at reasonable intervals and appropriate acƟ on is taken with respect to any 
diff erences, if any.

5. Proper systems are in place for prevenƟ on and detecƟ on of frauds and errors and for ensuring adherence to the Company’s policies.

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY/ VIGIL MECHANISM

In Compliance with the provisions of SecƟ on 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the LisƟ ng Agreement, the Company 
has framed a Whistle Blower Policy to establish a vigil mechanism for Directors and employees to report genuine concerns about actual or 
suspected unethical behavior, mal pracƟ ce, wrongful conduct, discriminaƟ on, sexual harassment, fraud, violaƟ on of the Company polices 
including Code of Conduct without fear of reprisal/retaliaƟ on. The Whistle Blower Policy/Vigil Mechanism has also been uploaded on 
Company’s website www.manaksia.com.

DISCLOSURES UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITON & REDRESSAL) ACT 2013

There has been no such case fi led or pending during the year under review.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

The disclosure pertaining to remuneraƟ on and other details as required under the provisions of SecƟ on 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and RemuneraƟ on of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 forms part of the Directors 
Report and marked as Annexure-“G”.

During the period under review no employee of the Company drew remuneraƟ on in excess of the limits specifi ed under the provisions of 
SecƟ on 197(12) of the Companies Act, read with Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and RemuneraƟ on of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014 and hence no disclosure is required to be made in the Annual Report.

CREDIT RATING 

AŌ er the implementaƟ on and execuƟ on of the Scheme of Arrangement as sancƟ oned by the Hon’ble CalcuƩ a High Court vide its Order 
dated 24th March, 2014, the Company does not have any outstanding borrowings as on 31st March 2015. Accordingly, your Company was 
not required to obtain credit raƟ ngs from the concerned credit raƟ ng agencies.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT

In compliance with the provisions of Companies Act 2013, and LisƟ ng Agreement with the Stock Exchanges, a consolidated fi nancial statement 
of the Company and all its subsidiary companies is aƩ ached. The consolidated fi nancial statements has been prepared in accordance with 
the applicable AccounƟ ng Standards  issued by the InsƟ tute of Chartered Accountants of India and shows the fi nancial resources, assets, 
liabiliƟ es, income, profi ts and other details of the Company and its subsidiary companies.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Company conƟ nues its relentless focus on strengthening compeƟ Ɵ on in all its businesses. It is the endeavour of your Company to deploy 
resources in a balanced manner so as to secure the interest of the shareholders in the best possible manner in the short, medium and long 
terms.

Your Directors convey their grateful appreciaƟ on for the valuable patronage and co-operaƟ on received and goodwill enjoyed by the Company 
from its esteemed customers, commercial associates, banks, fi nancial insƟ tuƟ ons, Government AuthoriƟ es, other stakeholders and the 
media.

Your Directors also wish to place on record their deep sense of appreciaƟ on to all the employees at all levels for their commendable team-
work, professionalism and enthusiasƟ c contribuƟ on towards the working of the Company during the year under review.

Your Directors look forward to the future with hope and convicƟ on.

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

 
Place : Kolkata Ajay Kumar Chakraborty
Date  : 3rd August, 2015 Chairman
 DIN : 00133604



ANNUAL REPORT

2014-15 9

ANNEXURE - A

Form No. MGT-9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on the Financial Year ended 31.03.2015

[Pursuant to secƟ on 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies 
(Management and AdministraƟ on) Rules, 2014]

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS

(i) CIN : L74950WB1984PLC038336

(ii) RegistraƟ on Date : 27/12/1984

(iii) Name of the Company : Manaksia Limited

(iv) Category/Sub-Category of the Company : Public Company Limited by Shares/Indian Non-Government 
Company

(v) Address of the Registered offi  ce and contact details : Bikaner Building,
8/1 Lal Bazar Street, 3rd Floor
Kolkata- 700 001, West Bengal
Tel: 033-2231 0050, Fax: 033-2230 0336

(vi) Whether listed company : Yes

(vii) Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and 
Share  Transfer Agent, if any

: Link InƟ me India Pvt. Ltd.
59C, Chowringhee Road
Kolkata-700 020
Tel: 033-2289 0540, Fax: 033-2289 0539

II.  PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

 (All the business acƟ viƟ es contribuƟ ng 10% or more of the total turnover of the Company shall be stated)

SI. 
No.

Name and DescripƟ on of main 
Products/ Services

NIC Code of the 
Product/Service

% to Total Turnover of 
the Company

1 Sale of other machinery and equipment 4659 100%

III.  PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

SL. 
No.

Name and Address of the Company CIN / GLN Holding/ Subsidiary/ 
Associate

% of Shares 
Held

Applicable 
SecƟ on

1. MINL Ltd

21/23 Abimbola Street, Isolo 
Industrial Estate, Isolo, Lagos

NA Subsidiary Company 100% SecƟ on 2(87)

2.         Jebba Paper Mills Ltd (Subsidiary of 
MINL Ltd)
21/23 Abimbola Street, Isolo 
Industrial Estate, Isolo, Lagos

NA Subsidiary Company 100% SecƟ on 2 (87)

3 Dynatech Industries Ghana Ltd
Cedar House, 2ND Floor 13, Samara 
Road, Asylum Down, PO Box GP 242, 
Accra, Ghana

NA Subsidiary Company 100% SecƟ on 2 (87)

4 Mark Steels Ltd (Subsidiary of 
Manaksia Ferro Industries Ltd)
2A Ganesh Chandra Avenue, 1st Floor, 
Kolkata- 700 013

U27107WB2001PLC093630 Subsidiary Company 70% SecƟ on 2 (87)
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SL. 
No.

Name and Address of the Company CIN / GLN Holding/ Subsidiary/ 
Associate

% of Shares 
Held

Applicable 
SecƟ on

5 Manaksia Ferro Industries Ltd
Bikaner Building, 3rd Floor, 
8/1 Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata- 700 001

U27100WB2010PLC144410 Subsidiary Company 100% SecƟ on 2 (87)

6 Manaksia Overseas Ltd
Bikaner Building, 3rd Floor, 
8/1 Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata- 700 001

U51909WB2010PLC144664 Subsidiary Company 100% SecƟ on 2 (87)

IV.  SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

 A)   Category-wise Share Holding

Category of Shareholders No of Shares held at the  beginning of the year No of Shares held at the end of the year % Change 
during 

the Year
Demat Physical Total % of Total 

Shares
Demat Physical Total % of Total 

Shares

A. Promoters
1. Indian

a) Individual/ HUF 41255940 – 41255940 62.953 41255940 – 41255940 62.953 0
b) Central Govt – – – – – – – – –
c) State Govt(s) – – – – – – – – –
d) Bodies Corp. – – – – – – – – –
e) Banks/FI – – – – – – – – –
f) Any other – – – – – – – – –
Sub-total (A)(1) 41255940 – 41255940 62.953 41255940 – 41255940 62.953 0

B. Public Shareholding
1. InsƟtuƟons

a) Mutual Funds – – – – – – – – –
b) Banks/FI 19208 – 19208 0.029 19208 – 19208 0.029 0
c) Central Govt – – – – – – – – –
d) State Govt(s) – – – – – – – – –
e) Venture Capital Funds – – – – – – – – –
f) Insurance Companies – – – – – – – – –

g) FIIs 211334 – 211334 0.321 21648 – 21648 0.033 (0.288)
h) Foreign Venture Capital 

Funds
– – – – – – – – –

i) Others (specify) – – – – – – – – –
Sub-total (B)(1) 230542 – 230542 0.350 40856 – 40856 0.062 (0.288)

2. Non-InsƟtuƟons
a) Bodies Corp.

i) Indian 15928482 15928482 24.306 15854037 15854037 24.192 (0.114)

ii) Overseas – – – – – – – – –

b) Individuals

i) Individual 
shareholders holding 
nominal share capital 
upto Rs. 1 lakh

6387319 57259 6444578 9.834 5469033 309 5469342 8.346 (1.488)

ii) Individual share-
holders holding 
nominal share capital 
in excess of  
Rs. 1 lakh

1535710 – 1535710 2.343 2774724 – 2774724 4.234 1.891
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Category of Shareholders No of Shares held at the  beginning of the year No of Shares held at the end of the year % Change 
during the 

YearDemat Physical Total % of Total 
Shares

Demat Physical Total % of Total 
Shares

c) Others (Specify)

Non Resident Indians 
(Rep)

43237 - 43237 0.066 35223 - 35223 0.054 (0.012)

Non Resident Indians 
(Non Rep)

11761 - 11761 0.018 14367 - 14367 0.022 0.004

Foreign NaƟonals - - - - - - - - -

Clearing Members 83800 - 83800 0.128 89561 - 89561 0.138 0.010

Trusts - - - - - - - - -

Foreign Bodies – D R - - - - - - - - -

Sub Total (B)(2) : 23990309 57259 24047568 36.695 24237254 309 24236945 36.985 0.290

Total Public Shareholding 
(B)=(B)(1)+ (B)(2)

24220851 57259 24278110 37.047 24277801 309 24278110 37.048 0.001

C. Shares held by Custodian for 
GDRs & ADRs

- - - - - - - - -

Grand Total (A+B+C) 65476791 57259 65534050 100.00 65533741 309 65534050 100.00 0

 (B)  Shareholding of Promoters

Sl 
No

Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning 
of the Year

Shareholding at the end 
of the Year

% Change 
in Share 
holding 

during the 
Year 

No. of 
Shares

% of Total 
Shares 
of the 

Company

% of Shares 
Pledged/ 
encum-
bered to 

total shares

No. of 
Shares

% of Total 
Shares 
of the 

Company

% of Shares 
Pledged/ 
encum-
bered to 

total shares

1 Basudeo Agrawal 8224385 12.550 - 9500115 14.496 - 1.946

2 Suresh Kumar Agrawal 8127010 12.401 - 9402740 14.348 - 1.947

3 Mahabir Prasad Agrawal 4172515 6.367 - 5448245 8.314 - 1.947

4 Basant Kumar Agrawal 3363130 5.132 - 0 0 - (5.132)

5 Varun Agrawal 2766930 4.222 - 2766930 4.222 - 0

6 Vineet Agrawal 2416245 3.687 - 2416245 3.687 - 0

7 Karan Agrawal 1797185 2.742 - 1797185 2.742 - 0

8 Sunil Kumar Agrawal 1616060 2.466 - 1616060 2.466 - 0

9 Shobha Devi Agrawal 1305560 1.992 - 1305560 1.992 - 0

10 Chandrakala Agrawal 1244810 1.899 - 1244810 1.899 - 0

11 Sushil Kumar Agrawal 852875 1.301 - 852875 1.301 - 0

12 Shailaja Agrawal 497810 0.760 - 497810 0.760 - 0

13 Manju Agrawal 487125 0.743 - 487125 0.743 - 0

14 Kanta Devi Agrawal 482060 0.736 - 482060 0.736 - 0

15 Basant Kumar Agrawal(HUF) 464060 0.708 - 0 0 - (0.708)

16 Basudeo Agrawal (HUF) 464060 0.708 - 464060 0.708 - 0

17 Mahabir Prasad Agrawal (HUF) 464060 0.708 - 464060 0.708 - 0

IV.  SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

 A)   Category-wise Share Holding (Contd.)
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Sl 
No

Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning 
of the Year

Shareholding at the end 
of the Year

% Change 
in Share 
holding 

during the 
Year 

No. of 
Shares

% of Total 
Shares 
of the 

Company

% of Shares 
Pledged/ 
encum-
bered to 

total shares

No. of 
Shares

% of Total 
Shares 
of the 

Company

% of Shares 
Pledged/ 
encum-
bered to 

total shares

18 Sunil Kumar  Agrawal (HUF) 393750 0.601 - 393750 0.601 - 0

19 Anirudha Agrawal 1374560 2.097 - 1374560 2.097 - 0

20 Sushil Kumar Agrawal (HUF) 338250 0.516 - 338250 0.516 - 0

21 Suresh Kumar Agrawal (HUF) 337500 0.515 - 337500 0.515 - 0

22 Anuradha Agrawal 66000 0.101 - 66000 0.101 - 0

 (C) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding 

Sl 
No

Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning 
of the Year

Date Increase/ 
(Decrease) in 
Shareholding

Reason CumulaƟng Shareholding 
during the Year

No. of Shares % of Total 
Shares of the 

Company

No. of Shares % of Total 
Shares of the 

Company

1 Basudeo Agrawal 8224385 12.550 01.04.2014
03.12.2014
31.03.2015

1275730 Inter se 
Transfer

9500115
9500115

14.496
14.496

2 Suresh Kumar Agrawal 8127010 12.401 01.04.2014
03.12.2014
31.03.2015

1275730 Inter se 
Transfer

9402740
9402740

14.348
14.348

3 Mahabir Prasad Agrawal 4172515 6.367 01.04.2014
03.12.2014
31.03.2015

1275730 Inter se 
Transfer

5448245
5448245

8.314
8.314

4 Basant Kumar Agrawal 3363130 5.132 01.04.2014
03.12.2014
31.03.2015

(3363130) Inter se 
Transfer

– –

5 Varun Agrawal 2766930 4.222 01.04.2014
31.03.2015

– Nil move-
ment during 

the year
2766930 4.222

6 Vineet Agrawal 2416245 3.687 01.04.2014
31.03.2015

– Nil move-
ment during 

the year
2416245 3.687

7 Karan Agrawal 1797185 2.742 01.04.2014
31.03.2015

– Nil move-
ment during 

the year
1797185 2.742

8 Sunil Kumar Agrawal 1616060 2.466 01.04.2014
31.03.2015

– Nil move-
ment during 

the year
1616060 2.466

9 Shobha Devi Agrawal 1305560 1.992 01.04.2014
31.03.2015

– Nil move-
ment during 

the year
1305560 1.992

10 Chandrakala Agrawal 1244810 1.899 01.04.2014
31.03.2015

– Nil move-
ment during 

the year
1244810 1.899

11 Sushil Kumar Agrawal 852875 1.301 01.04.2014
31.03.2015

– Nil move-
ment during 

the year
852875 1.301
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Sl 
No

Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning 
of the Year

Date Increase/ 
(Decrease) in 
Shareholding

Reason CumulaƟng Shareholding 
during the Year

No. of Shares % of Total 
Shares of the 

Company

No. of Shares % of Total 
Shares of the 

Company

12 Shailaja Agrawal 497810 0.760 01.04.2014
31.03.2015

– Nil move-
ment during 

the year
497810 0.760

13 Manju Agrawal 487125 0.743 01.04.2014
31.03.2015

– Nil move-
ment during 

the year
487125 0.743

14 Kanta Devi Agrawal 482060 0.736 01.04.2014
31.03.2015

– Nil move-
ment during 

the year
482060 0.736

15 Basant Kumar Agrawal (HUF) 464060 0.708 01.04.2014
03.12.2014
31.03.2015

(464060) Inter se 
Transfer

– –

16 Basudeo Agrawal (HUF) 464060 0.708 01.04.2014
31.03.2015

– Nil move-
ment during 

the year
464060 0.708

17 Mahabir Prasad Agrawal (HUF) 464060 0.708 01.04.2014
31.03.2015

– Nil move-
ment during 

the year
464060 0.708

18 Sunil Kumar  Agrawal (HUF) 393750 0.601 01.04.2014
31.03.2015

– Nil move-
ment during 

the year
393750 0.601

19 Anirudha Agrawal 1374560 2.097 01.04.2014
31.03.2015

– Nil move-
ment during 

the year
1374560 2.097

20 Sushil Kumar Agrawal (HUF) 338250 0.516 01.04.2014
31.03.2015

– Nil move-
ment during 

the year
338250 0.516

21 Suresh Kumar Agrawal (HUF) 337500 0.515 01.04.2014
31.03.2015

– Nil move-
ment during 

the year
337500 0.515

22 Anuradha Agrawal 66000 0.101 01.04.2014
31.03.2015

– Nil move-
ment during 

the year
66000 0.101

 (D)  Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders : 

       (Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs) :

Sl 
No

Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning 
of the Year

Date Increase/ 
(Decrease) in 
Shareholding

Reason CumulaƟve Shareholding  
during the Year

No. of Shares % of Total 
Shares of the 

Company

No. of Shares % of Total 
Shares of the 

Company

1 Accolade Traders Pvt. Ltd 3319875

3264875

5.066

4.982

01.04.2014
05.12.2014
31.03.2015

(55000) Transfer 3264875
3264875

4.982
4.982

2 AƩracƟve Vinimay Pvt. Ltd. 1766250

1816250

2.695

2.771

01.04.2014
05.12.2014
31.03.2015

50000 Transfer 1816250
1816250

2.771
2.771
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Sl 
No

Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning 
of the Year

Date Increase/ 
(Decrease) in 
Shareholding

Reason CumulaƟve Shareholding  
during the Year

No. of Shares % of Total 
Shares of the 

Company

No. of Shares % of Total 
Shares of the 

Company

3 Palash Machineries Pvt. Ltd 1514155

1514155

2.310

2.310

01.04.2014

31.03.2015

– Nil 
movement 
during the 

year
1514155 2.310

4 Aradhana ProperƟes Pvt. Ltd. 1467000

1467000

2.239

2.239

01.04.2014

31.03.2015

– Nil 
movement 
during the 

year
1467000 2.239

5 Kalitara Glass Moulding Works Pvt 
Ltd.

1459685 2.227 01.04.2014
17.10.2014
24.10.2014
31.10.2014
07.11.2014
14.11.2014
28.11.2014
05.12.2014
31.03.2015

90000
53000

101502
35000
15000

141271
18200

Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer

1549685
1602685
1704187
1739187
1754187
1895458
1913658
1913658

2.365
2.446
2.600
2.654
2.677
2.892
2.920
2.920

6 Lalita Steel Industries Pvt. Ltd. 1406406 2.146 01.04.2014
11.07.2014
08.08.2014
15.08.2014
22.08.2014

(ceased to be 
top 10 share-

holder)

(600000)
(200000)
(255000)
(95000)

Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer

806406
606406
351406
256406

1.231
0.925
0.536
0.391

7 B.B ConstrucƟon Ltd. 922500 1.408 01.04.2014
14.11.2014 
21.11.2014
28.11.2014
31.03.2015

36250
52500
15000

Transfer
Transfer
Transfer

958750
1011250
1026250
1026250

1.463
1.543
1.566
1.566

8 LSI Financial Sevices Pvt. Ltd. 546008 0.833 01.04.2014
21.11.2014
28.11.2014
(ceased to 

be in top 10 
shareholder)

(40000)
(506008)

Transfer
Transfer

506008
–

0.772
–

9 Sudha Gupta MRS 375000

375000

0.572

0.572

01.04.2014

31.03.2015

– Nil 
movement 
during the 

year 375000 0.572

10 Welquin Suppliers Pvt. Ltd. 246095 0.376 01.04.2014
23.05.2014
(ceased to 

be in top 10 
shareholder)

– 246095 0.376
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Sl 
No

Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning 
of the Year

Date Increase/ 
(Decrease) in 
Shareholding

Reason CumulaƟve Shareholding  
during the Year

No. of Shares % of Total 
Shares of the 

Company

No. of Shares % of Total 
Shares of the 

Company

11 Globe Capital Market Ltd. – – 01.04.2014
19.09.2014
30.09.2014
17.10.2014
24.10.2014
31.10.2014
07.11.2014
14.11.2014
21.11.2014
28.11.2014
05.12.2014
19.12.2014
31.12.2014
09.01.2015
16.01.2015
23.01.2015
06.02.2015
20.02.2015
27.02.2015
06.03.2015
13.03.2015
20.03.2015
27.03.2015
31.03.2015

409640
29682
13219
16233

251234
74783
64216
38753

183982
102616
(91860)

(204055)
(90857)
(4971)

(17487)
(3165)

(100000)
142728
52314
69114
47602
50359

15

Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer

409640
439322
452541
468774
720008
794791
859007
897760

1081742
1184358
1092498
888443
797586
792615
775128
771963
671963
814691
867005
936119
983721

1034080
1034095

0.625
0.670
0.691
0.715
1.099
1.213
1.311
1.370
1.651
1.807
1.667
1.356
1.217
1.209
1.183
1.178
1.025
1.243
1.323
1.428
1.501
1.578
1.578

12 SAK Dealers Pvt. Ltd. – – 01.04.2014
11.07.2014
31.12.2014
(ceased to 

be in top 10 
shareholder)

600000
(600000) Transfer

600000
–
–

0.916
–
–

13 NB Dealers Pvt. Ltd. 22.08.2014
19.09.2014

(ceased to be 
top 10 share-

holder)
28.11.2014
09.01.2015
(ceased to 

be in top 10 
shareholder)

 

(265000) Transfer

350000

350000
   85000

0.534

0.534
0.130

14 ConsorƟum Capital Pvt. Ltd. 23.05.2014
30.05.2014
(ceased to 

be in top 10 
shareholder)

321095 0.49

15 Merrill Lynch Capital Markets 
Espana S.A.S.V

30.05.2014
11.07.2014
(ceased to 

be in top 10 
shareholder)

344284
344284

0.525
0.525
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Sl 
No

Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning 
of the Year

Date Increase/ 
(Decrease) in 
Shareholding

Reason CumulaƟve Shareholding  
during the Year

No. of Shares % of Total 
Shares of the 

Company

No. of Shares % of Total 
Shares of the 

Company

16 Eureka Stock and Share Brokers 
Pvt. Ltd.

31.12.2014
16.01.2015
(ceased to 

be in top 10 
shareholder)

398800
(400000)

Transfer
Transfer

400000
–

0.610
–

17 Ponni Trexim Private Limited 09.01.2015
16.01.2015
30.01.2015
20.02.2015
(ceased to 

be in top 10 
shareholder)

400000
7135

(1100000)

Transfer
Transfer
Transfer

700000
1100000
1107135

7135

1.068
1.678
1.688
0.011

18 Subham Agarwal 27.02.2015
31.03.2015

1100000 Transfer 1377265
1377265

2.102
2.102

19 East India SecuriƟes Ltd 20.02.2015
27.02.2015
(ceased to 

be in top 10 
shareholder)

1100100
(1100100) Transfer

1100100
–

1.679
–

 (E)  Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel :

Sl 
No

Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning 
of the Year

Date Increase/ 
(Decrease) in 
Shareholding

Reason CumulaƟve Shareholding  
during the Year

No. of Shares % of Total 
Shares of the 

Company

No. of Shares % of Total 
Shares of the 

Company

DIRECTORS

1 Ajay Kumar Chakraborty – – – – – – –

2 Kali Kumar Chaudhuri – – – – – – –

3 Basudeo Agrawal 8224385

9500115

12.550

14.496

01.04.2014
03.12.2014
31.03.2015

1275730 Inter se 
Transfer

9500115
9500115

14.496
14.496

4 Smita Khaitan – – – – – – –

5 Sunil Kumar Agrawal 1616060

1616060

2.466

2.466

01.04.2014

31.03.2015

– Nil 
Movement 
during the 

year
1616060 2.466

6 Vineet Agrawal 2416245

2416245

3.687

3.687

01.04.2014

31.03.2015

Nil 
Movement 
during the 

year
2416245 3.687

7 Varun Agrawal 2766930

2766930

4.222

4.222

01.04.2014

31.03.2015

Nil 
Movement 
during the 

year
2766930 4.222
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Sl 
No

Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning 
of the Year

Date Increase/ 
(Decrease) in 
Shareholding

Reason CumulaƟve Shareholding  
during the Year

No. of Shares % of Total 
Shares of the 

Company

No. of Shares % of Total 
Shares of the 

Company

8 Suresh Kumar Agrawal 8127010

9402740

12.401

14.348

01.04.2014
03.12.2014
31.03.2015

1275730 Inter se 
Transfer

9402740
9402740

14.348
14.348

9 Mahabir Prasad Agrawal 4172515

5448245

6.367

8.314

01.04.2014
03.12.2014
31.03.2015

1275730 Inter se 
Transfer

5448245
5448245

8.314
8.314

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

1 Raj Kumar Banthia – – – – – - -

2 Sanjay Kumar Singhania 20 0.000 01.04.2014
31.03.2015

– Nil 
Movement 
during the 

year

20 0.000

V.  INDEBTEDNESS - 
 Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment.

Secured Loans 
excluding deposits

Unsecured 
Loans

Deposits Total 
Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year NIL NIL NIL NIL

i) Principal Amount

ii) Interest due but not paid

iii) Interest accrued but not due

Total (i+ii+iii)

Change in Indebtedness during the financial year

* AddiƟon

* ReducƟon

Net Change

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year

i) Principal Amount

ii) Interest due but not paid

iii) Interest accrued but not due

Total ( i+ii+iii)
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VI.  REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL-

 A.  Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager

Sl.
No.

Par culars of Remunera on Name of MD/WTD/Manager Total 
Amount MD MD WTD WTD WTD WTD WTD WTD

Mr. Basant 
Kumar 

Agrawal 
01.04.2014-
23.11.2014)

Mr. Suresh 
Kumar 

Agrawal 
23.11.2014-
31.03.2015)

Mr. Suresh 
Kumar 

Agrawal 
01.04.2014-
23.11.2014)

Mr. Mahabir 
Prasad 

Agrawal 
23.11.2014-
31.03.2015)

Mr. Sushil 
Kumar 

Agrawal 
01.04.2014-
23.11.2014)

Mr. Sunil 
Kumar 

Agrawal 
01.04.2014-
23.11.2014)

Mr. 
Basudeo 
Agrawal 

23.11.2014-
31.03.2015)

Mr. 
D B 

Guha 
01.04.2014-
08.08.2014)

1. Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provision 
contained in sec on 
17(1) of the Income tax 
Act, 1961

42.53 21.17 38.83 10.67 19.33 19.33 10.67 1.62 164.15

(b) Value of perquisi es u/s 
17(2) of the Income-tax 
Act, 1961

– – – – – – – 0.72 0.72

(c) Profit in lieu of salary 
under sec on 17(3) of 
the Income-tax Act, 1961

– – – – – – – – –

2. Stock Op on – – – – – – – – –

3. Sweat Equity – – – – – – – – –

4. Commission – – – – – – – – –

– As % of profit

– Others, specify

5. Others, please specify  – – – – – – – – –

Total (A) 42.53 21.17 38.83 10.67 19.33 19.33 10.67 2.34 164.87

Ceiling as per the Act* 42.67 42.08 38.96 29.46 19.48 19.48 29.46 10.68 232.27

*The Ceiling as per the Act has been calculated for the proportionate period of appointment.   

 B.  Remuneration to other Directors
Sl.
No.

Par culars of Remunera on Name of Directors Total Amount

1. Independent Directors Mr. Ajay Kumar 
Chakraborty

Dr. Kali Kumar 
Chaudhuri

Mrs. Smita Khaitan

Fees for a ending board commi ee mee ngs 1.25  1.00  1.20 3.45

Commission – – – –

Others, please specify – – – –

Total (1) 1.25  1.00  1.20 3.45

2. Other Non-Execu ve Directors Mr. Mahabir Prasad Agrawal 
(01.04.2014-23.11.2014)

Mr. Sunil Kumar Agrawal 
(23.11.2014 - 31.03.2015)

Fees for a ending board commi ee mee ngs  0.80 0.08 0.88

Commission – – –

Others, please specify – – –

Total (2)  0.80  0.08  0.88 

Total (B) = (1+2)  2.05  1.08  4.33 

Total Managerial Remunera on* 169.20

* Total Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole Time Director & other Directors (being the total of A & B)     

( ` in Lacs )

( ` in Lacs )
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C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN 
    MD/MANAGER/WTD
 (` in Lacs)

Sl.
No.

ParƟculars of RemuneraƟon Key Managerial Personnel Total Amount 

CEO CS CFO

1. Gross salary Mr. Anubhav 
Maheshwari 
(01.04.2014-
05.09.2014)

Mr. Raj Kumar 
Banthia (15.10.2014-

31.03.2015)

Mr. Sanjay Ku-
mar Singhania 
(30.05.2014-
31.03.2015)

(a)  Salary as per provision contained in 
secƟon 17(1) of the Income tax Act, 
1961

5.07 4.18 10.02 19.27

(b)  Value of perquisiƟes u/s 17(2) of the 
Income-tax Act, 1961

0.11 – – 0.11

(c)  Profit in lieu of salary under secƟon 
17(3) of the Income-tax Act, 1961

– – – –

2. Stock OpƟon – – – –

3. Sweat Equity – – – –

4. Commission – – – –

– As % of profit

– Others, specify

5. Others, please specify – – – – –

Total 5.18 4.18 10.02 19.38

VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT / COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES :

Type SecƟon of the 
Companies Act

Brief DescripƟon Details of penalty/ 
Punishment 

Compounding fees 
imposed

Authority [RD/
NCLT/COURT]

Appeal made, if any 
(give details)

A. COMPANY
Penalty  

Punishment

Compounding
B. DIRECTORS

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

N I L
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
(As required under Clause 49 of the LisƟ ng Agreement entered into with the Stock Exchange(s) 

Philosophy of the Company on Corporate Governance :

The Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance is to ensure adopƟ on of high standard of ethics, sound business decisions, prudent 
fi nancial management pracƟ ces, professionalism in decision making and conducƟ ng the business and Compliance with regulatory guidelines on 
governance. The Company has adopted the principles of good Corporate Governance and is commiƩ ed to adopƟ ng, best relevant pracƟ ces for 
Governance to achieve the highest levels of transparency and accountability in all its interacƟ ons with its stakeholders including shareholders, 
employees, lenders and the Government.  As such the Company aims at always remaining progressive, competent and trustworthy, creaƟ ng 
and enhancing value of stakeholders and customers to their complete saƟ sfacƟ on. The Company conƟ nues to focus its resources, strengths 
and strategies to achieve the core values of Quality, Trust, Leadership and Excellence.                                                                                                                                      

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ComposiƟ on of the Board : 

As on 31st March, 2015, the Board comprises of 9 (Nine) directors, i.e. 3 (Three) Independent Directors including the Chairman of the Company, 
3(Three) ExecuƟ ve Director including the Managing Director of the Company and 3 (Three) Non-ExecuƟ ve Directors. The composiƟ on of the 
Board of Director is in conformity with Companies Act, 2013 (Act) and LisƟ ng Agreement. The Board of Directors of the Company has a 
woman director. The details of directorships held in Indian public companies and Chairmanship and/or Membership of CommiƩ ees held as 
on 31st March, 2015 by each Director in other companies are as under : 

Name of the Directors Category  #

No. of Directorship(s) held in 
other public companies

No. of other Board/ 
Committee(s) of which he/she is 

a member/Chairman
Chairman Director Chairman Member

Mr. Ajay Kumar Chakraborty NEI/ Chairman 3 3 4 2

Mr. Basant Kumar Agrawal* PD/MD 1 3 None 2

Mr. Suresh Kumar Agrawal** PD/MD None 2 None 2

Dr. Kali Kumar Chaudhuri NEI None 5 4 4

Mrs Smita Khaitan    NEI None 4 1 4

Mr Debabrata Guha*** WTD None None None None

Mr Sushil Kumar Agrawal*# PD/WTD None 1 None 2

Mr. Basudeo Agrawal*## PD/WTD None 3 None None

Mr. Mahabir Prasad Agrawal PD/WTD None None None None

Mr Nadia Basak*### NE None None None None

Mr. Sunil Kumar Agrawal PD/NE None 2 None 3

Mr. Varun Agrawal*## PD/NE None 2 None 1

Mr. Vineet Agrawal*## PD/NE None 7 None 1

# PD: Promoter Director; MD: Managing Director; NEI: Non ExecuƟ ve Independent Director, NE: Non ExecuƟ ve Director, WTD: Whole Time 
Director.

*Mr Basant Kumar Agrawal, Managing Director of the Company resigned from the Directorship of the Company w.e.f. 23rd November, 2014. 

**Mr Suresh Kumar Agrawal, Whole-Time Director of the Company was appointed as Managing Director of the Company w.e.f. 23rd 
November, 2014 subject to the shareholders approval in the ensuing Annual General MeeƟ ng.

*** Resigned w.e.f. the close of business hours of 8th August, 2014.

*# Resigned w.e.f. the close of business hours of 23rd November, 2014.

*##Appointed as AddiƟ onal Director w.e.f. 23rd November, 2014.

*### Resigned w.e.f. the close of business hours of 26th September, 2014.

ANNEXURE - ‘B’
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As mandated by Clause 49 none of the Directors are member of more than 10 (Ten) Board level CommiƩ ees nor are they Chairman of more 
than 5 (Five) CommiƩ ees in which they are members. 

Chairmanship/ Membership of Board CommiƩ ee includes Chairmanship membership of Audit and Stakeholders RelaƟ onship CommiƩ ee in 
other public limited companies. 

Mr Suresh Kumar Agrawal, Mr Mahabir Prasad Agrawal, Mr Basudeo Agrawal, Mr. Sunil Kumar Agrawal, Mr Sushil Kumar Agrawal, Mr. Vineet 
Agrawal and Mr. Varun Agrawal are relaƟ ves within the meaning of SecƟ on 2(77) of the Act. 

Independent Directors

The Company in compliance with the requirement of SecƟ on 149 of the Act and revised Clause 49 of the LisƟ ng Agreement which became 
eff ecƟ ve from 1st October, 2014, and has appointed Independent Directors and a woman director on its Board for a term of Five years w.e.f. 
26th September, 2014, and shall hold offi  ce upto the Annual General MeeƟ ng to be held in the calendar year, 2019. The Company ensured 
that the persons, who have been appointed as Independent Directors of the Company, have the requisite qualifi caƟ ons and experience 
which they would conƟ nue to contribute and would be benefi cial to the Company. In terms of requirement of SecƟ on 149(7) of the Act, and 
rules made thereunder all Independent Directors have given declaraƟ on in the Board meeƟ ng held on 15th May, 2015 that they meet the 
criteria of independence as stated in SecƟ on 149(6) of the Act and revised Clause 49 of the LisƟ ng Agreement. 

Formal leƩ er of Appointment

A formal leƩ er of appointment to Independent Directors as provided in Companies Act, 2013 and the LisƟ ng Agreement has been issued and 
the terms and condiƟ ons of appointment is disclosed on the website of the Company, www.manaksia.com.

Performance EvaluaƟ on of Independent Directors

The Board of Diretcors of the Company on recomendaƟ on of NominaƟ on and RemuneraƟ on CommiƩ ee has formed a quesƟ onnaire 
format for evaluaƟ on of Independent directors by the enƟ re board of Diretcors excluding the directors being evaluated. On the basis of 
that evaluaƟ on the performance of the Independent Directors has been found saƟ sfactory and they would be benefi cial for the Board of 
Diretcors of the Company.

Seperate MeeƟ ng of the Independent Directors

During the year under review, the Independent Directors met on 14th February, 2015, inter-alia to discuss :

a) EvaluaƟ on of performance of Non-Independent Directors and Board as a whole.

b) EvaluaƟ on of performance of the Chairman of the Company aŌ er taking into consideraƟ on the views of ExecuƟ ve and Non-ExecuƟ ve 
Directors.

c) Assessment of the quality, quanƟ ty and Ɵ meliness of fl ow of informaƟ on between the Company Management and the Board that is 
necessary for the Board to eff ecƟ vely and reasonably perform their duƟ es.

FamiliarizaƟ on Programme for the Independent Director

At the Ɵ me of appoinƟ ng a Director, a formal leƩ er of appointment was given to them, which inter-alia explains the roles, funcƟ ons, duƟ es 
and responsibiliƟ es of them as a Director of the Company. The Director is also explained in detail the compliance required from them under 
the Act, Clause 49 of the LisƟ ng Agreement and other relevant regulaƟ ons and affi  rmaƟ on taken with respect to the same. The Chairman 
and Managing Diretcor of the Company also has one to one discussion with the newly appointed Director to familiarise them with the 
Company’s operaƟ ons. The details of the familiarisaƟ on programmes for IDs are put on the website of the Company and can be accessed at 
www.manaksia.com/management-team.php.

Board Agenda 

The meeƟ ngs of the Board are governed by a structured agenda. The Board members in consultaƟ on with the Chairman may bring upon 
other maƩ ers for consideraƟ on at the Board MeeƟ ng. Members of the Senior Management are ocassionally present in the meeƟ ng as a 
special invitee as and when required. The NoƟ ce of each Board MeeƟ ng is given in advance to all Directors. 

InformaƟ on placed before the Board 

Necessary informaƟ on as required under statute and as per the guidelines on Corporate Governance are placed before the Board, from Ɵ me 
to Ɵ me. The Board periodically reviews compliances of various laws applicable to the Company. DraŌ  Minutes are circulated amongst the 
directors for their comments. The minutes of the proceedings of the meeƟ ngs are entered in the Minutes Book and thereaŌ er signed by the 
Chairman.  

Number of Board MeeƟ ngs held and aƩ ended by Directors 

Six meeƟ ngs of the Board of Directors were held during the year and gap between any two consecuƟ ve meeƟ ngs did not exceed 120 days. In 
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case of any exigency/emergency resoluƟ ons are passed through circulaƟ on. The dates on which the Board meeƟ ngs were held are 30th May 
2014, 11th August 2014, 26th September 2014, 7th November 2014, 23rd November 2014 and 14th February 2015.

The aƩ endance record of each of the directors at the Board MeeƟ ngs during the year ended on 31st March, 2015 and of the last Annual 
General MeeƟ ng is as under :

Name of  Directors No. of Board MeeƟ ngs during the year 2014-15 AƩ endance at the last AGM

Held AƩ ended Yes/No

Mr. Ajay Kumar Chakraborty 6 6 Yes

Mr. Basant Kumar Agrawal* 6 4 Yes

Mr. Basudeo Agrawal ** 6 1 NA

Mr. Debabrata Guha*** 6 - No

Dr. Kali Kumar Chaudhuri 6 5 Yes

Mr. Mahabir Prasad Agrawal 6 6 Yes

Mr. Nadia Basak*# 6 - No

Mrs. Smita Khaitan    6 6 Yes

Mr. Sunil Kumar Agrawal 6 6 Yes

Mr. Suresh Kumar Agrawal 6 6 Yes

Mr. Sushil Kumar Agrawal* 6 4 Yes

Mr. Varun Agrawal ** 6 - NA

Mr. Vineet Agrawal ** 6 - NA

* Resigned w.e.f. the close of business hours of 23rd November, 2014.

** Appointed w.e.f. 23rd November, 2014.

*** Resigned w.e.f. the close of business hours of 8th August, 2014.

*# Resigned w.e.f. 26th September, 2014.

Code of Conduct 

The Company has adopted “Code of Conduct” for Board Members and Senior Management of the Company. The code anchors ethical and 
legal behaviour within the organisaƟ on. The Code is available on the Company website ‘www.manaksia.com’. 

All Board members and senior management execuƟ ves have affi  rmed compliance with the Code of Conduct. A declaraƟ on signed by the 
Managing Director to this eff ect is enclosed at the end of the Report. 

Pursuant to the Provisions of SecƟ on 149(8) of the Act, the Independent Directors shall abide by the provisions specifi ed in Schedule IV, 
to the Act which laid down a code for Independent Directors. The said Schedule forms part of the appointment leƩ er of the Independent 
Director, which has been placed on the website of the Company.

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy, as part of vigil mechanism to provide appropriate avenues to the Directors and employees 
to bring to the aƩ enƟ on of the management any issue which is perceived to be in violaƟ on of or in confl ict with the fundamental business 
principles of the Company. The employees are encouraged to raise their concerns by way of this policy and all the employees have been given 
access to the Chairman of Audit CommiƩ ee. No personnel has been denied access to the Audit CommiƩ ee. The Whistle Blower Policy of the 
Company is available on the Company website ‘www.manaksia.com’.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board of Directors of the Company play a crucial role in the governance structure of the Company and have been consƟ tuted to deal with 
specifi c areas/ acƟ viƟ es which concern the Company and need a closer review. The Board CommiƩ ees are set up under the formal approval 
of the Board to carry out clearly defi ned roles which are considered to be performed by members of the Board, as a part of good governance 
pracƟ ce. The Board supervises the execuƟ on of its responsibiliƟ es by the CommiƩ ees and is responsible for their acƟ on. The minutes of the 
meeƟ ngs of all commiƩ ees are placed before the Board for review. The Board CommiƩ ees can request special invitees to join the meeƟ ng, 
as appropriate. Manaksia Limited has six Board level commiƩ ees :
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a) Audit CommiƩ ee

b) CommiƩ ee of Directors

c) NominaƟ on & RemuneraƟ on CommiƩ ee

d) Stakeholders RelaƟ onship  CommiƩ ee

e) Restructuring CommiƩ ee

f) Corporate Social Responsibility CommiƩ ee 

The Board is responsible for consƟ tuƟ ng, assigning, co-opƟ ng and fi xing the terms and reference for members of various commiƩ ees. The 
minutes of all the Board and CommiƩ ee meeƟ ngs are placed before the Board and noted by the Directors present at the meeƟ ngs. The role 
and composiƟ on of the CommiƩ ees including the number of meeƟ ng(s) held and the related aƩ endance during fi nancial year 2014-15 are 
as follows :

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit CommiƩ ee of the Company is consƟ tuted in line with the provisions of Clause 49 of the LisƟ ng Agreement with Stock Exchanges 
read with SecƟ on 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. In accordance with SecƟ on 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the LisƟ ng Agreement, 
the Board of Directors of the Company have approved the new/amended terms of reference for the CommiƩ ee.  The terms of reference of 
the Audit CommiƩ ee includes the powers as laid down in Clause 49(III)(C) and role as sƟ pulated in Clause 49(III)(D) of the LisƟ ng Agreement 
with Stock Exchanges read with SecƟ on 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Audit CommiƩ ee also reviews the informaƟ on as per the 
requirement of Clause 49(III)(E) of the LisƟ ng Agreement read with SecƟ on 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

The Audit CommiƩ ee also complies with relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Terms of Reference :

The brief descripƟ on of the terms of reference of the Audit CommiƩ ee includes the following :

(a) Oversight of the Company’s fi nancial reporƟ ng process and the disclosure of the fi nancial informaƟ on to ensure that the fi nancial 
statements are correct, suffi  cient and credible.

(b) Review with the management quarterly and annual fi nancial statements before submission to the Board.

(c) Review with the management performance of the statutory and internal auditors and adequacy of Internal control system.

(d) Recommending to the Board re-appointment of Statutory Auditors and the fi xaƟ on of their Audit Fees.

(e) Recommending to the Board terms and condiƟ ons for appointment of Cost Auditor.

(f) Discussion with the internal auditor on any signifi cant fi ndings and follow up thereon.

(g) Review of related party transacƟ ons and transfer pricing.

(h) Approval or any subsequent modifi caƟ on of transacƟ ons of the Company with related parƟ es.

(i) ScruƟ ny of inter-corporate loans and investments. 

(j) And generally all items listed in Clause 49(II)(D) of the LisƟ ng Agreement and SecƟ on 177 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The CommiƩ ee may carry out any other funcƟ ons as is referred by the Board, from Ɵ me to Ɵ me, or referred by any statutory noƟ fi caƟ on / 
amendment or modifi caƟ on, as may be, applicable.

The Audit CommiƩ ee is also provided with the following informaƟ on on the related party transacƟ ons (whenever applicable):

(i)  A statement in summary form of transacƟ ons with related parƟ es in the ordinary course of business.

(ii)  Details of material individual transacƟ ons with related parƟ es, which are not in the normal course of business.

ComposiƟ on : 

The composiƟ on of the Audit CommiƩ ee is in accordance with the requirement of Clause 49(III)(A) of the LisƟ ng Agreement and SecƟ on 177 
of the Companies Act, 2013. As on 31st March, 2015, the CommiƩ ee comprised of 3 (three) Independent Directors and 1 (one) ExecuƟ ve 
Director.  The Chairman of the CommiƩ ee is an Independent Director. All members of the Audit CommiƩ ee have the ability to read and 
understand the fi nancial statement. 

Mr. Ajay Kumar Chakraborty (Chairman of the CommiƩ ee), Dr. Kali Kumar Chaudhuri, Mrs. Smita Khaitan and Mr. Mahabir Prasad Agrawal 
were members of the CommiƩ ee as on 31st March, 2015. Mr. Raj Kumar Banthia, Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the CommiƩ ee. 
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The Audit CommiƩ ee meeƟ ng is normally aƩ ended by Chief Financial Offi  cer (CFO)/ V P (Accounts)/Sr-Manager (Accounts), representaƟ ves 
of Statutory Auditors, representaƟ ves of Internal Auditors and Senior ExecuƟ ves of the Company, if required. 

MeeƟ ngs and AƩ endance

Six Audit CommiƩ ee meeƟ ng were held during the year ended 31st March, 2015. The meeƟ ng were held on 30th May 2014, 11th August 
2014, 26th September 2014, 7th November 2014, 23rd November 2014 and 14th February 2015. The details of aƩ endance of members are 
as under :

Name of the Member No. of meeƟ ngs during the year 2014-15

Held AƩ ended

Ajay Kumar Chakraborty 6 6

Dr. Kali Kumar Chaudhuri 6 5

Mahabir Prasad Agrawal 6 6

Smita Khaitan 6 6

COMMITTEE OF DIRECTORS

The CommiƩ ee is empowered to do all such acts, deeds and things which the Board sub-delegates to it, from Ɵ me to Ɵ me. The CommiƩ ee 
meets as and when necessary to aƩ end to important business maƩ ers sub-delegated to it by the Board.

ComposiƟ on

As on 31st March, 2015, the CommiƩ ee of Directors comprise of 1 Independent Director, 1 Non-ExecuƟ ve Directors and 2 Whole Time 
Directors. Mrs. Smita Khaitan (Chairman of the CommiƩ ee), Mr. Sunil Kumar Agrawal, Mr. Mahabir Prasad Agrawal and Mr. Suresh Kumar 
Agrawal are members of the CommiƩ ee. Mr. Raj Kumar Banthia, Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the CommiƩ ee.

MeeƟ ngs and AƩ endance

No meeƟ ng of CommiƩ ee of Directors of the Company was held during the year under review.

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION  COMMITTEE

The NominaƟ on & RemuneraƟ on CommiƩ ee of the Company is consƟ tuted in line with the provisions of Clause 49 of the LisƟ ng Agreement 
with Stock Exchanges read with SecƟ on 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. The terms of reference, inter-alia, includes:

(a) To lay down criteria to idenƟ fy person who are qualifi ed to become Directors and may be appointed in senior management and to 
recommend to the Board their appointment and / removal. 

(b) To evaluate performance of every Director.

(c) To formulate criteria for determining qualifi caƟ ons, posiƟ ve aƩ ributes and independence of Director. 

(d) To recommend remuneraƟ on policy of Director, Key Managerial Personnel  and other employees.  

(e) To formaluate the criteria for evaluaƟ on of Indpendent Directors and the Board and to recommend/review remuneraƟ on payable to 
Whole-Time Directors/MD/ relaƟ ves of Directors based on their performance and defi ned assessment criteria.

(f) To Devise a policy on Board diversity 

(g) To carry out any other funcƟ ons as is referred by the Board, from Ɵ me to Ɵ me, or referred by any statutory noƟ fi caƟ on/amendment or 
modifi caƟ on, as may be applicable.

ComposiƟ on :

As on 31st March, 2015, the CommiƩ ee comprised of 3 (three) Independent Directors and 1 (one) Non-ExecuƟ ve Director. The Chairman of 
the CommiƩ ee is an Independent Director. Dr K K Chaudhuri (Chairman), Mr Ajay Kumar Chakraborty, Mrs Smita Khaitan and Mr Sunil Kumar 
Agrawal are members of the CommiƩ ee. Mr. Raj Kumar Banthia, Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the CommiƩ ee. The composiƟ on of 
the CommiƩ ee is in line with the requirement of the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the LisƟ ng Agreement. 

MeeƟ ng and AƩ endance

Four NominaƟ on & RemuneraƟ on CommiƩ ee meeƟ ngs were held during the year ended 31st March, 2015. The meeƟ ngs were held on 30th 
May 2014, 8th August 2014, 7th November 2014 and 23rd November 2014. The details of aƩ endance of members are as under:
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Name of the Member No. of meeƟ ngs during the year 2014-15

Held AƩ ended
Ajay Kumar Chakraborty 4 4
Dr. Kali Kumar Chaudhuri 4 4
Mahabir Prasad Agrawal* 4 4
Smita Khaitan 4 4
Sunil Kumar Agrawal** 4 –

*   Ceased to be member with eff ect from 23rd November, 2014.
** Became member with eff ect from 23rd November, 2014. 

RemuneraƟ on Policy

The remuneraƟ on paid to the Whole Ɵ me Directors is approved by the Board of Directors on the recommendaƟ on of the NominaƟ on & 
RemuneraƟ on CommiƩ ee. The payment of remuneraƟ on to Managing Director/ Whole-Time Director(s) is in accordance with the approval of 
the shareholders in the general meeƟ ng/postal ballot. The Agreement with the Managing Director/ Whole-Time Director may be terminated 
at any Ɵ me by either party by giving not less than three months noƟ ce in wriƟ ng. The Agreement does not provide for payment of any 
severance fees. The Directors are not enƟ tled to any other benefi ts, bonuses, pension etc. and are also not enƟ tled to performancxe linked 
incenƟ ves.

The Non-ExecuƟ ve Directors are enƟ tled to siƫ  ng fees for aƩ ending meeƟ ngs of the Board and CommiƩ ees thereof as per the prescribed 
limit and as approved by the shareholders in the Annual General MeeƟ ng. The siƫ  ng fees paid to the Non-ExecuƟ ve Directors for aƩ ending 
the meeƟ ngs of the Board and Audit CommiƩ ee is Rs. 7500/- per meeƟ ng and for aƩ ending Other CommiƩ ee meeƟ ngs is Rs. 5000/- per 
meeƟ ng. The remuneraƟ on paid to the ExecuƟ ve Directors is within the limits approved by the Shareholders.

Details of RemuneraƟ on paid to ExecuƟ ve Directors

Name of the Director
Salary & Perquisites  

(`  in Lacs)
Siƫ  ng Fees 
(` in Lacs)

Basant Kumar Agrawal 42.53 –
Suresh Kumar Agrawal 60.00 –
Sushil Kumar Agrawal 19.33 –
Sunil Kumar Agrawal* 19.33 0.08
Debabrata Guha 3.60 –
Basudeo Agrawal 10.67 –
Mahabir Prasad Agrawal** 10.67 0.80

*The designaƟ on of Mr. Sunil Kumar Agrawal has been changed from Whole-Time Director to Non-ExecuƟ ve Director of the Company w.e.f. 
23rd November, 2014.

** The designaƟ on of Mr. Mahabir Prasad Agrawal has been changed from Non-ExecuƟ ve Director to Whole-Time Director of the Company 
w.e.f. 23rd November, 2014.

The agreements entered with the Managing Director/ Whole-Time Director(s) are for a period of 3 years from the respecƟ ve dates of 
appointment/re-appointment. 

Details of Siƫ  ng Fees paid to Non-ExecuƟ ve Directors  

During the year, the Company has not made any payments to Non ExecuƟ ve Directors except siƫ  ng fees as detailed hereunder :

Name of the Director
Siƫ  ng Fees 
(` in Lacs)

Ajay Kumar Chakraborty 1.25
Dr. Kali Kumar Chaudhuri 1.00
Mahabir Prasad Agrawal 0.80
Nadia Basak –
Smita Khaitan 1.20
Sunil Kumar Agrawal 0.08
Varun Agrawal –
Vineet Agrawal –
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During the year, there were no pecuniary relaƟ onships or transacƟ ons between the Company and it’s Non-ExecuƟ ve Directors.

Details of Equity Shares/ Non ConverƟ ble instruments held by Non-ExecuƟ ve Directors as on 31st March, 2015 :

Name of the Director Shares Non ConverƟ ble Instruments
Sunil Kumar Agrawal 16,16,060 NA
Varun Agrawal 27,66,930 NA
Vineet Agrawal 24,16,245 NA

The Company does not have any Employee Stock OpƟ on Scheme.

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The Board of Directors of the Company in its meeƟ ng held on 30th May, 2014 changed the nomenclature of “Shareholders/ Investors 
Grievance & Share Transfer CommiƩ ee” to “Stakeholders RelaƟ onship CommiƩ ee” and also modifi ed its terms of reference to comply with 
the requirement of Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 (VIII)(E)(4) of the LisƟ ng Agreement.

The CommiƩ ee oversees the redressal of complaints of shareholders and investors such as transfer of shares, issue of duplicate share 
cerƟ fi cates, non-receipt of balance sheet and non receipt of dividend, etc. The CommiƩ ee may carry out any other funcƟ ons as is referred 
by the Board, from Ɵ me to Ɵ me, or referred by any statutory noƟ fi caƟ on/amendment or modifi caƟ on, as may be applicable.  The Board of 
Directors has sub-delegated the authority to the CommiƩ ee to approve share transfers / transmission / rematerialisaƟ on /dematerialisaƟ on/
split-up/sub-division and consolidaƟ on of shares cerƟ fi cates, etc.  As per Company policy, the CommiƩ ee shall meet once in a fortnight, if 
required, to dispose off  all maƩ ers relaƟ ng to share transfers, transmissions, etc. 

ComposiƟ on :

As on 31st March, 2015 the CommiƩ ee comprised of 1 (One) Independent Director and 2 (Two) ExecuƟ ve Director. The Chairman of the 
CommiƩ ee is an Independent Director. Mrs. Smita Khaitan (Chairman), Mr. Mahabir Prasad Agrawal and Mr. Suresh Kumar Agrawal are the 
members of the CommiƩ ee. Mr Raj Kumar Banthia, Company Secretary of the Company acts as Secretary to the CommiƩ ee. 

MeeƟ ng and AƩ endance : 

During the year 1 (One) CommiƩ ee meeƟ ng was held on 11th August, 2014. The details of aƩ endance of members are as under:

Name of the Member No. of meeƟ ngs during the year 2014-15

Held AƩ ended
Ajay Kumar Chakraborty* 1 1
Basant Kumar Agrawal* 1 –
Mahabir Prasad Agrawal 1 1
Suresh Kumar Agrawal 1 1
Smita Khaitan** 1 –

*Ceased to be a member of the CommiƩ ee w.e.f. 23rd November, 2014.
** Became member of the CommiƩ ee w.e.f. 23rd November, 2014.

Investor’s Complaints :

Details of Investors Complaints received and redressed during the year

Opening Balance Received during the year Resolved during the year Closing Balance
Nil 15 15 Nil

It is the endeavour of the Company to aƩ end investors’ complaints and other correspondence within 15 days except where constrained by 
disputes or legal impediments. In terms of SEBI circular the Company has obtained necessary SCORES (SEBI Complaints Redressal System) 
authenƟ caƟ on. This has facilitated the investors to view online status of the acƟ on taken against the complaints made by logging on to SEBI’s 
website www.sebi.gov.in. Mr. Raj Kumar Banthia, Company Secretary of the Company has been designated as Compliance Offi  cer for speedy 
redressal of the Investor complaints. As on date of the Report, the Company affi  rms that no shareholder’s complaint was lying pending under 
SCORES. 

RESTRUCTURING COMMITTEE 

The Board has consƟ tuted a CommiƩ ee called ‘Restructuring CommiƩ ee’ to  review the current business profi le of the Company and to 
recommend to the Board creaƟ on of a suitable structure through division/consolidaƟ on of diff erent producƟ on/business units to bring them 
under homogeneous and unifi ed command for improved effi  ciency and control. 
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During the year under review the Company has dissolved the Restructuring CommiƩ ee of the Board of Directors of the Company. 

MeeƟ ng and AƩ endance 

No meeƟ ng of the Restructuring CommiƩ ee of the Board of Directors of the Company was held during the fi nancial year 2014-15.

Corporate Social Responsibility CommiƩ ee

Pursuant to the requirement of the Companies Act, 2013(“Act”), read with rules made thereunder, the Board in its meeƟ ng held on 11th 
August, 2014, have consƟ tuted a CommiƩ ee called Corporate Social Responsibility CommiƩ ee. The CommiƩ ee comprised of two Independent 
Directors, a ExecuƟ ve Director and a Non-execuƟ ve Director. The terms of reference of the commiƩ ee is in compliance with the requirements 
of the Act and rules made thereunder. 

Mr Mahabir Prasad Agrawal (Chairman), Mr Ajay Kumar Chakraborty, Mrs Smita Khaitan and Mr Suresh Kumar Agrawal are members of the 
CommiƩ ee.

MeeƟ ng and AƩ endance 

One meeƟ ng of Corporate Social Responsibility CommiƩ ee was held during the year ended 31st March, 2015 on 14th February, 2015. The 
details of aƩ endance of members are as under :

Name of the Member No. of meeƟ ngs during the year 2014-15
Held AƩ ended

M P Agrawal 1 1
Ajay Kumar Chakraborty 1 1
Suresh Kumar Agrawal 1 1
Smita Khaitan 1 1

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS 

(A) Annual General MeeƟ ngs 

 The locaƟ on and Ɵ me of last three AGMs held are as under :

No. Financial Year/Time Date Venue No. of Special ResoluƟ on passed
30th AGM 2013-14

11.00 A.M
26.09.14 Bhasha Bhavan, NaƟ onal Library Auditorium, 

Belvedere Road, Kolkata – 700 027
4

29th AGM 2012-13
11.00 A.M

27.09.13 “GYAN MANCH”, 11 Pretoria Street, 
Kolkata- 700 071

NIL

28th AGM 2011-12
10.30 A.M

28.09.12 -Do- NIL

(B)  Extra-Ordinary General MeeƟ ng

      During the FY 2014-15 no Extra Ordinary General MeeƟ ng of the Company was held.

(C)  Special ResoluƟ ons through Postal Ballot

 No Special ResoluƟ on was passed in Financial Year 2014-15 through Postal Ballot. None of the business proposed to be transacted in the 
ensuing Annual General MeeƟ ng requires passing of Special ResoluƟ on through Postal Ballot.

(D)  Procedure for Postal Ballot

 Prescribed procedure under the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Management and AdministraƟ on) Rules, 2014, shall be complied 
as and when necessary.

Secretarial Audit Report

The Company has also undertaken Secretarial Audit for the year 2014-15 which, inter alia, includes audit of compliance with the Companies 
Act, 2013, and the Rules made under the Act, the LisƟ ng Agreement and RegulaƟ ons and Guidelines prescribed by the SecuriƟ es and 
Exchange Board of India and Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999. 

The Secretarial Audit Report is part of this Annual Report.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION 

The Board of Directors of the Company approves and takes on record the quarterly, half-yearly and yearly fi nancial results in the proforma 
prescribed under Clause 41 of the LisƟ ng Agreement. 
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The Company sends such approved fi nancial results to the BSE Ltd. and NaƟ onal Stock Exchange of India Ltd., which have also been published 
in leading newspapers like Business Standard (English) and Ek Din/ Dainik Statesman (Bengali), etc. 

The fi nancial results and the offi  cial news releases of the Company are displayed on the website of the Company, www.manaksia.com.

As quarterly fi nancial results are published in the press and are also posted on the website of the Company.

As mandated by Ministry of Corporate Aff airs (MCA), the Company will send Annual Report, NoƟ ces, etc to the shareholders at their email 
address registered with their Depository ParƟ cipants and/or Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent. To conƟ nue its support to the 
GREEN INITIATIVES measures of MCA, the Company during the year, through its various communicaƟ ons has requested shareholders to 
register and/or update their email address with the Company’s RTA, in case shares held in physical mode and with their respecƟ ve Depository 
ParƟ cipants, in case of shares held in dematerialized mode.

The Company has not made any presentaƟ on to the insƟ tuƟ onal investors/analysis during the year. 

In compliance with the requirement of the LisƟ ng Agreement, the offi  cial website of the Company contains informaƟ on about its business, 
shareholding paƩ ern, compliance with corporate governance, contact informaƟ on of the compliance offi  cer, etc. and the same are updated 
at any given point of Ɵ me.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES 

A subsidiary shall be considered as material if the investment of the Company in the subsidiary exceeds 20% of its consolidated net worth as 
per audited Balance Sheet of the previous fi nancial year or if the subsidiary has generated 20% of the consolidated income of the Company 
during the previous fi nancial year. MINL Ltd is the foreign material subsidiary of the Company. The Board and the Audit CommiƩ ee reviews 
the fi nancial statements of subsidiary companies and the minutes of the subsidiary companies are placed at the Board meeƟ ngs of the 
Company. The statement containing all signifi cant transacƟ ons and arrangements entered into by subsidiary companies, as and when 
required, is placed before the Board. The disclosure as required under SecƟ on 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 in from AOC-1, forms part 
of this Annual Report. 

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has structured Risk Management Policy, designed to safeguard the organizaƟ on from various risks through adequate and 
Ɵ mely acƟ ons. The Company manages, monitors and reports on its risks and uncertainƟ es that can impact its ability to achieve its objecƟ ves. 
The major risks have been idenƟ fi ed by the Company and its miƟ gaƟ on process/measures have been formulated.

DISCLOSURES

Related Party TransacƟ on

The transacƟ ons entered into with Related ParƟ es during the year under review were on arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of 
business pursuant to the provisions of SecƟ on 188 read with the Companies (MeeƟ ngs of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014. Further there 
are no materially signifi cant related party transacƟ ons during the year under review made by the Company with Promoters, Directors or Key 
Managerial Personnel or other Designated persons which may have a potenƟ al confl ict with the interest of the Company at large. All related 
party transacƟ ons are placed before the Audit CommiƩ ee and also to the Board for approval.

The Company has not entered into any material Related Party TransacƟ on during the year. In line with the requirement of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and LisƟ ng Agreement, your Company has formulated a Policy on Related Party transacƟ ons which is also available at Company’s 
website, www.manaksia.com and the weblink thereto hƩ p://www.manaksia.com/inv-corp--policies.php. The Policy intends to ensure that 
proper reporƟ ng, approval and disclosure processes are in place for all transacƟ ons between the Company and Related ParƟ es.

The Policy specifi cally deals with the review and approval of Material Related Party TransacƟ ons keeping in mind the potenƟ al or actual 
confl icts of interest that may arise because of entering into these transacƟ ons. All Related Party TransacƟ ons are placed before the Audit 
CommiƩ ee for review and approval. Prior omnibus approval is obtained for Related Party TransacƟ ons on a quarterly basis for transacƟ ons 
which are of repeƟ Ɵ ve nature and/ or entered in the ordinary course of business and are at Arm’s Length Basis. 

The details of the signifi cant Related Party TransacƟ ons have been disclosed by way of Note No. 26 of Annual Report 2014-15.

Details of Non Compliance by the Company

The Company has complied with all the requirements of regulatory authoriƟ es. There were no non-compliances by the Company and no 
instances of penalƟ es and strictures imposed on the Company by the Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any other statutory authority during the 
last three years.
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Compliance with Mandatory Requirements

The Company has complied with all applicable mandatory requirements of Clause 49 of the LisƟ ng Agreement.

AccounƟ ng Treatment

In preparaƟ on of the fi nancial statements, the Company has followed the accounƟ ng policies and pracƟ ces as prescribed in the AccounƟ ng 
Standards laid down by the InsƟ tute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI).

Management

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms part of this Annual Report.

Disclosure regarding Appointment/Re-appointment of the Directors 

The brief resume and other informaƟ on required to be disclosed under this SecƟ on is provided in the NoƟ ce of the Annual General MeeƟ ng.

ResignaƟ on of Directors

During the year under review Mr. Basant Kumar Agrawal, Managing Director of the Company and Mr. Sushil Kumar Agrawal, Whole-Ɵ me 
Director have resigned from the directorship of the Company w.e.f. the close of the business hours of 23rd November, 2014.

Proceeds from Public Issue

During the year under review the Company has not accepted any proceeds from Public issue.

Managing Director/ CFO CerƟ fi caƟ on

The Managing Director and Chief Financial Offi  cer of the Company have given a cerƟ fi cate to the Board of Directors of the Company under 
Clause 49(IX) of the LisƟ ng Agreement for the year ended 31st March, 2015. Pursuant to Clause 41 of the LisƟ ng Agreement, Managing 
Director and CFO, also give quarterly cerƟ fi caƟ on on fi nancial results while placing the same before the Board. 

Compliance CerƟ fi cate Of The Auditors

CerƟ fi cate from the Company’s Auditor M/s. SRB & Associates confi rming compliance with condiƟ ons of Corporate Governance as sƟ pulated 
under Clause 49 of the LisƟ ng Agreement with the Stock Exchanges is aƩ ached and forms part of the Annual Report.

Code for PrevenƟ on of Insider Trading PracƟ ces

The Company has insƟ tuted mechanism to avoid Insider Trading and abusive self-dealing. In accordance with the SEBI RegulaƟ ons as 
amended, the Company has established systems and procedures to restrict insider trading acƟ vity and has framed a Code for ProhibiƟ on 
of Insider Trading. The said Code prohibits the Directors of the Company and other specifi ed employees from dealing in the securiƟ es of 
the Company on the basis of any unpublished price sensiƟ ve informaƟ on, available to them by virtue of their posiƟ on in the Company. 
The objecƟ ve of this Code is to prevent misuse of any unpublished price sensiƟ ve informaƟ on and prohibit any insider trading acƟ vity, in 
order to protect the interest of the shareholders at large. The Board of Directors of the Company has adopted a new ProhibiƟ on of Insider 
Trading code and a Code of PracƟ ces and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price SensiƟ ve InformaƟ on, in line with the new SEBI 
(ProhibiƟ on of Insider Trading) RegulaƟ ons, 2015.

The details of dealing in Company’s shares by Specifi ed Employees (which includes Directors and Senior Management ExecuƟ ves) are placed 
before the Board on quarterly basis. The Code also prescribes sancƟ on framework and any instance of breach of code is dealt with in 
accordance with the same. A copy of the said Code is made available to all employees of the Company and compliance of the same is 
ensured. The Code of PracƟ ces and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price SensiƟ ve InformaƟ on is available on the website of 
the Company, www.manaksia.com.

Policy on Material Subsidiary

The Company has formulated a policy for determining “material” subsidiaries and the same is available on the website of the Company, 
www.manaksia.com and the weblink thereto is hƩ p://www.manaksia.com/inv-corp--policies.php.

AFFIRMATION AND DISCLOSURE

There were no materially fi nancial or commercial transacƟ on, between the Company and members of the Management CommiƩ ee that may 
have a potenƟ al confl ict with the interest of the Company at large.

All details relaƟ ng to fi nancial and commercial transacƟ ons where Directors may have a pecuniary interest are provided to the Board and the 
interested Directors neither parƟ cipate in the discussion nor vote on such maƩ ers.



ANNUAL REPORT

2014-1530

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

a)    Annual General MeeƟ ng : Date :  24th September, 2015 for the Financial Year 1st April, 2014 to 31st March, 2015
Time :  10.00 a.m.
Venue : Bhasha Bhavan, NaƟ onal Library Auditorium, Belvedere Road, Kolkata - 700 027

b)    Financial Calendar : 1st April, 2015 –  31st March, 2016. The Financial results will be declared as per the following 
schedule :

ParƟ culars Schedule
Quarter ended 30th June 2015 On or before 14th August, 2015 (TentaƟ ve)
Quarter ending 30th September 2015 On or before 14th November, 2015 (TentaƟ ve)
Quarter ending 31st December 2015 On or before 14th February, 2016 (TentaƟ ve)
Annual Results of 2015-16 On or before 30th May, 2016 (TentaƟ ve)

c)    Dates of Book Closure :  17th September, 2015 to 21st September, 2015.
d)   Dividend Payment : The Company had paid an Interim Dividend of 100% i.e. Rs 2 on equity share of Rs 2 each on or 

aŌ er 25th February, 2015. The Board of Directors of the Company do not recommend any further 
dividend on Equity Shares for the year under review. The details of unclaimed/unpaid Dividend are 
reconciled Ɵ me to Ɵ me. 

e)   LisƟ ng on Stock Exchanges : (i)  NaƟ onal Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE)
(ii) BSE Limited (BSE)

*The annual lisƟ ng fees have been paid to the Stock Exchanges for the year 2015-16.
f)    Custodial Fees to Depositories: Annual Custody/Issuer fee for the year 2015-16 will be paid by the Company to NSDL and CDSL on 

receipt of the invoices. 

g)    Unclaimed shares lying in the  Demat Suspense Account :

The Company has opened a separate demat account in the name of “Manaksia Limited-Suspense Account” in order to credit the 
unclaimed shares of the FPO which could not be alloƩ ed to the righƞ ul shareholders due to insuffi  cient/incorrect informaƟ on or any 
other reason. The voƟ ng rights in respect of said shares will be frozen Ɵ ll the Ɵ me the righƞ ul owner claims such shares. In terms of 
requirement of Clause 5A of the LisƟ ng Agreement, the details of shares lying in the aforesaid Demat account are as :  

ParƟ culars No. of Shares No. of shareholders

Aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding shares in the suspense account 
lying at the beginning of the year i.e. 1st April, 2013.

3484 39

Number of shareholders who approached Company for transfer of shares from suspense 
account during the year.

136 1

Number of shareholders to whom shares were transferred from suspense account during 
the year (Pending compleƟ on of all formaliƟ es).

136 1

Aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding shares in the suspense account 
lying at the end of the year i.e. 31st March, 2014.

3348 38

Any corporate benefi ts in terms of securiƟ es accruing on such shares viz. bonus shares, split, etc., shall also be credited to aforesaid suspense 
account. Shareholders who have yet not claimed their shares are requested to immediately approach the Company/Registrar and Share 
Transfer Agent of the Company along with documentary evidence, if any. 

h)   Stock Code ISIN No. INE015D01022

    NaƟ onal Stock Exchange of India Limited MANAKSIA

 BSE Limited 532932

i) Share Transfer System 

99.99% of shares of the Company are held in electronic mode. InƟ maƟ on about transfer/transmission of these shares to RTA is done 
through the depositories i.e. NSDL & CDSL with no involvement of the Company. 

For transfer of shares in physical mode, the transfer documents should be sent to the offi  ce of the RTA. All share transfers are completed 
within the sƟ pulated statutory Ɵ me limit from the date of receipt, provided the documents meet the sƟ pulated requirement of statutory 
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provisions in all respects. The Stakeholders RelaƟ onship CommiƩ ee has been delegated with the authority to approve transfer and/or 
transmissions of shares and other related maƩ ers. 

As required under Clause 47C of the LisƟ ng Agreement, a cerƟ fi cate on half yearly basis confi rming due compliance of the share transfer 
formaliƟ es by the Company from PracƟ cing Company Secretary has been submiƩ ed to the Stock Exchanges within the sƟ pulated Ɵ me.

j)   Market Price Data 

The details of monthly high and low quotaƟ ons of the equity shares of the Company traded at BSE and NSE during the fi nancial year 2014-15 
are given hereunder :

BSE Limited (BSE) NaƟ onal Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) 
Month High  (`) Low (`) Total Number of 

Shares Traded
High (`) Low (`) Total Number of 

Shares Traded

April’2014 78.20 60.40 1,69,211 78.00 65.50 5,72,655

May’2014 94.40 72.00 2,83,557 94.40 71.85 10,15,343

June’2014 101.00 80.40 3,07,835 101.00 79.90 7,50,166

July’2014 96.20 79.00 8,14,129 96.20 78.50 6,68,054

August’2014 88.80 78.10 1,06,046 90.70 78.00 8,06,628

September’2014 115.40 86.00 4,93,360 115.70 77.80 15,39,665

October’2014 115.20 90.00 2,53,915 114.15 89.75 13,42,248

November’2014 137.60 103.00 9,52,039 137.50 101.05 37,20,112

December’2014 129.95 38.00 5,16,462 129.50 42.75 24,04,748

January’2015 57.05 45.20 1,90,054 58.90 46.10 14,09,631

February’2015 65.60 47.00 3,09,678 66.65 46.80 22,17,410

March’2015 62.95 49.80 1,78,102 63.00 52.90 4,23,389

Performance in comparision with BSE Sensex
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k)   Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA) 

 Link InƟ me India Private Limited is acƟ ng as the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company. The address of the above Registrar 
is given hereunder :

 Link InƟ me India Private Limited
59C, Chowringhee Road, 3rd Floor, 
Room No.5, Kolkata – 700 020
Ph: +91-33-2289 0540, Fax: +91-33-2289 0539
Contact Person: Mr. S P Guha, Email id: kolkata@linkinƟ me.co.in

As required under Clause 47C of the LisƟ ng Agreement, a cerƟ fi cate on half yearly basis confi rming due compliance of the share transfer 
formaliƟ es by the Company from PracƟ cing Company Secretary has been submiƩ ed to the Stock Exchanges within the sƟ pulated Ɵ me.

l)    DistribuƟ on of Equity Shareholding as on March 31, 2015

No. of Equity shares held Shareholders Shares
From    -      To Number % Total Holders Number % Total Capital
        1 – 500 25519 95.17 2554767 3.90
   501 – 1000 590 2.20 476825 0.73
 1001 – 2000 298 1.11 455148 0.69
 2001 –  3000 95 0.35 246892 0.38
3001 –  4000 54 0.20 193469 0.29
4001 –  5000 42 0.16 198850 0.30

  5001 – 10000 73 0.27 529025 0.81
10001 –  And above 144 0.54 60879074 92.90

                  TOTAL 26,815 100 6,55,34,050 100

m)   Categories of Equity Shareholders as on March 31, 2015

S No Category No. of Shares % of Shareholdings
1 Promoters Group 4,12,55,940 62.95
2. Mutual Funds & UTI Nil Nil
3. Financial InsƟ tuƟ ons / Banks 19,208 0.03
4. Central Government / State Government(s) Nil Nil
5. Venture Capital Fund Nil Nil
6. Foreign InsƟ tuƟ onal Investors 21,648 0.03
7. Foreign Venture Capital Investors Nil Nil
8. Bodies Corporate 1,59,43,598 24.33
9. Public 82,44,066 12.58

10. NRI’s / OCB’s / Foreign NaƟ onal 49,590 0.08
TOTAL 6,55,34,050 100

The Non Promoter shareholding is in compliance with the Listing Agreement.

n)  DematerializaƟ on of Equity Shares :

 The shares of the Company are currently traded only in dematerialized form and the Company has entered into agreements with 
the depositories i.e. NaƟ onal SecuriƟ es Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL). Under the 
Depository system, the InternaƟ onal SecuriƟ es IdenƟ fi caƟ on Number (ISIN) alloƩ ed to the Company’s shares are INE015D01022. As on 
31st March 2015, 65533741 equity shares represenƟ ng about 99.99% of the share capital are held in dematerialized form.

o)   Outstanding GDRs / ADRs / Warrants / Other ConverƟ ble instruments : Nil
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p)  Plants LocaƟ ons (Manufacturing Units as on 31st March 2015) :  Nil

q)   Address for Correspondence :  Manaksia Limited
  Bikaner Building, 3rd Floor
  8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata – 700 001
  Phone Nos : +91-33-2231 0050
  Fax Nos : +91-33-2230 0336
  Email : investor.relaƟ ons@manaksia.com
  Website : www.manaksia.com

COMPLIANCE WITH THE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK      

The Board of Directors periodically reviewed the compliance of all applicable laws and steps taken by the Company to recƟ fy instances of 
non-compliance, if any. The Company is in compliance with all mandatory requirements of Clause 49 of the LisƟ ng Agreement. In addiƟ on, 
the Company has also adopted the following non-mandatory requirements to the extent menƟ oned below :

Compliance Offi  cer

Mr Raj Kumar Banthia, Company Secretary of the Company has been designated as Compliance offi  cer for complying with the requirements 
of SecuriƟ es Laws and the LisƟ ng Agreements with the Stock Exchanges.

NON-MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS   

The Company would implement the other Non-Mandatory Requirement in due course as and when required and/or deemed necessary by 
the Board.

Maintenance of the Chairman’s Offi  ce

The Company maintains the offi  ce of Non-ExecuƟ ve Independent Chairman and provides for reimbursement of expenses incurred in 
performance of his duƟ es.

Shareholders rights

The quarterly results along with the press release are uploaded on the website of the Company www.manaksia.com. 

Separate Posts of Chairman and CEO    

The posiƟ on of the Chairman is held by Mr Ajay Kumar Chakraborty and of Managing Director is held by Mr. Suresh Kumar Agrawal.

Audit qualifi caƟ ons 

The Company’s fi nancial statements are unqualifi ed.

ReporƟ ng by Internal Auditor

The Internal Auditor of the Company directly reports to the Audit CommiƩ ee on funcƟ onal maƩ ers.

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE OF THE CODE OF CONDUCT OF THE COMPANY

This is to confi rm that the Company has received declaraƟ ons affi  rming compliance of the Code of Conduct from the persons 
concerned for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2015. 

  
  
  
 S K Agrawal
Place : Kolkata Managing Director
Date  : 3rd August, 2015 DIN : 00520769
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CERTIFICATION UNDER CLAUSE 49(IX) OF THE LISTING AGREEMENT
The Board of Directors 
Manaksia Limited

Dear Sirs,
In terms of Clause 49 of the LisƟ ng Agreement, we do hereby cerƟ fy that: 
1. We have reviewed fi nancial statements and the cash fl ow statement for the fi nancial year 2014-15 and that to the best of our 

knowledge and belief: 
 i. these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that might 

be misleading;
 ii. these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s aff airs and are in compliance with exisƟ ng accounƟ ng 

standards, applicable laws and regulaƟ ons. 
2. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transacƟ ons entered into by the Company during the fi nancial year 2014-15 

are fraudulent, illegal or violaƟ ve of the Company’s code of conduct.
3. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for fi nancial reporƟ ng and that we have evaluated the 

eff ecƟ veness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to fi nancial reporƟ ng and we have disclosed to the Auditors and 
the Audit CommiƩ ee, defi ciencies in the design or operaƟ on of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps 
we have taken or propose to take to recƟ fy these defi ciencies.

4. We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit CommiƩ ee :
 i. signifi cant changes, if any, in internal control over fi nancial reporƟ ng during the year;
 ii. signifi cant changes, if any, in accounƟ ng policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the notes to the 

fi nancial statements; and 
 iii. instances of signifi cant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the management or an 

employee having a signifi cant role in the Company’s internal control system over fi nancial reporƟ ng. 

 For Manaksia Limited

  S K Agrawal   Sanjay Kumar Singhania 
Place : Kolkata  Managing Director CFO 
Date  : 3rd August, 2015  DIN: 00520769  

CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To the Members of Manaksia Limited 

We have examined the Compliance of condiƟ ons of Corporate Governance by Manaksia Limited, for the year ended March 31, 2015, as 
sƟ pulated in Clause 49 of the LisƟ ng Agreement of the said company with the Stock Exchanges.

The compliance of condiƟ ons of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examinaƟ on is limited to procedures, 
and implementaƟ on thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the condiƟ ons of Corporate Governance. It is 
neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the Financial Statements of the company.

In our opinion, and to the best of our informaƟ on and according to the explanaƟ ons given to us, we cerƟ fy that the company has 
complied with the condiƟ ons of Corporate Governance as sƟ pulated in the above menƟ oned LisƟ ng Agreement.

We state that no investor grievances are pending for a period exceeding one month against the Company as per records maintained by 
the Company.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company, nor the effi  ciency or eff ecƟ veness 
with which the Management has conducted the aff airs of the company.

For SRB & Associates
 Chartered Accountants
 FRN: 310009E

     Sanjeet Patra
Place: Kolkata   (Partner)
Date: 3rd August, 2015 Membership No. 056121
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Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE PERIOD FROM APRIL 1, 2014 TO MARCH 31, 2015

[Pursuant to SecƟ on 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and RemuneraƟ on Personnel) Rules, 2014]

ANNEXURE - ‘C’

To, 
The Members, 
Manaksia Limited
8/1, Lal Bazar Street,
Kolkata -700001

We have conducted the secretarial audit for the period commencing from April 1, 2014 to March 31, 2015 (hereinaŌ er referred to as the 
Audit Period) of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate pracƟ ces by Manaksia Limited 
(hereinaŌ er called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluaƟ ng the 
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.  

Based on our verifi caƟ on of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns fi led and other records maintained by the 
Company as specifi ed in Annexure I and also the informaƟ on provided by the Company, its offi  cers, agents and authorized representaƟ ves 
during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period, complied with the 
statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the 
extent, in the manner and subject to the reporƟ ng made hereinaŌ er:  

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns fi led and other records maintained by Manaksia Limited (the 
Company), for the fi nancial year ended on March 31, 2015 according to the provisions of: 

1. The Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder including any re-enactment thereof (‘Act, 2013’);

2. The SecuriƟ es Contracts (RegulaƟ on) Act, 1956 (“SCRA”) and the rules made thereunder; 

3. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the regulaƟ ons and bye-laws framed thereunder; 

4. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulaƟ ons made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment; 

5. The following RegulaƟ ons and Guidelines prescribed under the SecuriƟ es and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act”):- 

 a. The SecuriƟ es and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) RegulaƟ ons, 1993 regarding the 
Companies Act and dealing with client; 

 b. The SecuriƟ es and Exchange Board of India (ProhibiƟ on of Insider Trading) RegulaƟ ons, 1992; 

6. We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the LisƟ ng Agreements entered into by the Company with the stock 
exchanges.

7. Laws specifi cally applicable to the industry to which the Company belongs :

We have been inƟ mated by the Company that no specifi c laws are applicable to it. 

During the audit period, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, RegulaƟ ons, Guidelines, etc. menƟ oned above  
subject to the following observaƟ on:

Management Responsibility :

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility  is  to  express  an  
opinion  on  these  secretarial  records  based  on  our  audit;

2. We have followed the audit pracƟ ces and the processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of 
the contents of the secretarial records. The verifi caƟ on was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are refl ected in secretarial 
records. We believe that the  processes  and  pracƟ ces,  we  followed  provide  a  reasonable  basis  for  our  opinion;

3. We have not verifi ed the correctness and appropriateness of fi nancial records and Books of Accounts of the Company;
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4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management RepresentaƟ on about the compliance of laws, rules and regulaƟ on and 
happening of events etc;

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulaƟ ons, standards is the responsibility of 
management. Our examinaƟ on was limited to the verifi caƟ on of procedure on test basis;

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the effi  cacy or eff ecƟ veness with 
which the management has conducted the aff airs of the Company.

MaƩ ers of Emphasis : 

RecommendaƟ ons as a maƩ er of best pracƟ ce :

In the course of our audit, we have made certain recommendaƟ ons for good corporate pracƟ ces, separately placed before the Board, for its 
necessary consideraƟ on and implementaƟ on by the Company.

We further report that : 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly consƟ tuted with proper balance of ExecuƟ ve Directors, Non-ExecuƟ ve Directors and 
Independent Directors. The number of directors liable to reƟ re by rotaƟ on is in compliance with provision of 152 (6) of Act, 2013 which 
provides that 2/3rd of the total directors (except independent directors) of the Company shall be such whose period of offi  ce will be liable 
to determinaƟ on by reƟ rement of directors by rotaƟ on.

The changes in the composiƟ on of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with 
the provisions of the Act.   

Adequate noƟ ces were given to all directors to schedule the Board MeeƟ ngs. However, detailed notes on agenda were not sent to the board 
of directors prior to the meeƟ ng.

All decisions of the board were taken unanimously taken and recorded as part of the minutes.

We further report that the Company has systems and processes to ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulaƟ ons and guidelines. 
However, the same in our view has a substanƟ al scope for improvement.

We further report that during the audit period, the Company has incurred the following specifi c event/ acƟ on that can have a major bearing 
on the company’s aff airs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulaƟ ons, guidelines, standards, etc.

(i) Scheme of Arrangement

 The Hon’ble High Court vide its Order dated 24th March, 2014 has sancƟ oned the Scheme of Arrangement under the provisions of 
secƟ on 391-394 of the Companies Act , 1956 for demerger of Aluminium Undertaking, Coated Metals and Mosquito Coil Undertakings, 
Steel Undertaking and Packaging Undertaking of Manaksia Limited on a going concern basis. The cerƟ fi ed copy of the Order sancƟ oning 
the Scheme was received by the Company on 19th November, 2014 and the Company has duly fi led the said Oder with the Registrar of 
Companies, West Bengal, on 23rd November ,2014. The Scheme has become eff ecƟ ve on and from the date of fi ling with the Registrar 
of Companies.

(ii) Approval of resoluƟ ons passed under secƟ on 180 of Act

 At the Annual General MeeƟ ng held on September 26, 2014, the members of the Company had approved resoluƟ ons passed under 
secƟ ons 180(1)(a) and 180(1)(c) of Act to approve the threshold limit as Rs. 1000 crores for both the secƟ ons. 

(iii) AlteraƟ on of the ArƟ cles of AssociaƟ on

 At the Annual General MeeƟ ng held on September 26, 2014, the members of the Company had approved resoluƟ on passed under 
secƟ on 14 of the Companies Act, 2013 to adopt an enƟ rely new set of regulaƟ ons in place of those contained in its exisƟ ng ArƟ cles of 
AssociaƟ on to make it up-to-date with the latest provisions of the Act.

Place : Kolkata For Vinod Kothari & Company
Date : 23 July, 2015  Company Secretaries in PracƟ ce
 

Sd/-
 Vinod Kothari
 ACS 4718
 C P No. 1391
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ANNEXURE - I

List of Documents

1. Corporate MaƩ ers

 1.1 Minutes books of the following MeeƟ ngs were provided:

  1.1.1 Board MeeƟ ng

  1.1.2 Audit CommiƩ ee

                   1.1.3  NominaƟ on and RemuneraƟ on CommiƩ ee

                   1.1.4  Stakeholder RelaƟ onship CommiƩ ee

                   1.1.5  Corporate Social Responsibility CommiƩ ee

  1.1.6  General MeeƟ ng

 1.2 Annual Report (2013-14), 

  Annual Accounts for the F.Y. 2014-15 (Provisional)

 1.3 Memorandum and ArƟ cles of AssociaƟ on

 1.4 Disclosures under the Act, 2013

 1.5 Policies framed under the Act, 2013

 1.6 Documents pertaining to Equity LisƟ ng Agreement compliance

 1.7 Forms and returns fi led with the RoC 

 1.8 Registers maintained under Act, 2013 
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CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND 
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY 

 Pursuant to the demerger, the operaƟ ons of the Company are not energy intensive. However, adequate measures have been taken to 
ensure the use of energy-effi  cient computers, air condiƟ oners and other offi  ce equipment as may be required for current operaƟ ons of 
the Company. 

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION 

 Pursuant to the demerger, the Company deals in trading and earns dividend income. Accordingly, there is a standardized technology 
required by the Company for carrying on its business acƟ viƟ es. However, since technology is vital for any organisaƟ on in today’s business 
environment for necessary customer interface or for regulatory requirements, the Company takes care to upgrade its technology 
aŌ er taking into consideraƟ on the technological obsolescence. Considering the fact that the Company is using a standardized set of 
technology there is no material scope for research and development in the fi nancial year under consideraƟ on.

C.  FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

 During the year under review foreign exchange earnings were Rs. 2167.93 Lakhs(Previous year Rs. 41058.75 Lakhs) and foreign exchange 
outgo was Rs. NIL (Previous year Rs. 33541.33 Lakhs).

ANNEXURE - ‘D’
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REMUNERATION POLICY
OF 

MANAKSIA LIMITED
FRAMED UNDER SECTION 178 (3) OF COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH CLAUSE 49 OF THE EQUITY LISTING AGREEMENT

I. INTERPRETATION CLAUSES

 For the purposes of this Policy references to the following shall be construed as :

 “Applicable Law” : shall mean the Companies Act, 2013 and allied rules made thereunder, the equity lisƟ ng agreement 
and includes any other statute, law, standards, regulaƟ ons or other governmental instrucƟ on as may 
be applicable to the Company from Ɵ me to Ɵ me.

 “Company” : refers to Manaksia Limited  and its subsidiary companies.

 “CommiƩ ee” : refers to NominaƟ on & RemuneraƟ on CommiƩ ee of Board of Directors of the Company

 “Directors” : refers to the Chairperson and all Whole-Time Directors.

 “ExecuƟ ves” : refers to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management.

 “Key Managerial personnel”  : refers to the Managing Director, Manager, Chief ExecuƟ ve Offi  cer, Chief Financial Offi  cer, Company 
Secretary and any such other offi  cer as may be prescribed under Applicable Law.

 “Policy” or “this Policy” : shall mean the contents herein including any amendments made by the Board of Directors of the 
Company.

 “Senior Management” : means personnel of the Company who are members of its Core Management Team excluding Board of 
Directors comprising all members of management one level below the ExecuƟ ve Directors, including 
the funcƟ onal heads.

   All terms not defi ned herein shall take their meaning from the Applicable Law.

II. EFFECTIVE DATE

 This Policy shall become eff ecƟ ve from the date of its adopƟ on by the Board.

III. SCOPE 

 a) This Policy applies to all the “ExecuƟ ves” of the Company. 

 b) In addiƟ on, this Policy also extends to the remuneraƟ on of Non-ExecuƟ ve Directors, including principles of selecƟ on of the 
Independent Directors of the Company.

 c) The Board of Directors has adopted the RemuneraƟ on Policy at the recommendaƟ on of the CommiƩ ee. This Policy shall be 
valid for all employment agreements entered into aŌ er the approval of the Policy and for changes made to exisƟ ng employment 
agreements thereaŌ er.

 d) In order to comply with local regulaƟ ons, the Company may have remuneraƟ on policies and guidelines which shall apply in 
addiƟ on to this policy.

  The Board of Directors of the Company may deviate from this Policy if there are explicit reasons to do so in individual case(s). Any 
deviaƟ ons on elements of this remuneraƟ on policy under extraordinary circumstances, when deemed necessary in the interests 
of the Company, shall be reasoned and recorded in the Board’s minutes and shall be disclosed in the Annual Report or, in case of 
an appointment, in good Ɵ me prior to the appointment of the individual.

IV. PURPOSE

 This Policy refl ects the Company’s objecƟ ves for good corporate governance as well as sustained and long-term value creaƟ on for 
stakeholders. This Policy will also help the Company to aƩ ain opƟ mal Board diversity and create a basis for succession planning. In 
addiƟ on, it is intended to ensure that – 

 a) the Company is able to aƩ ract, develop and retain high-performing and moƟ vated ExecuƟ ves in a compeƟ Ɵ ve internaƟ onal 
market; 

 b) the ExecuƟ ves are off ered a compeƟ Ɵ ve and market aligned remuneraƟ on package, with fi xed salaries being a signifi cant 
remuneraƟ on component, as permissible under the Applicable Law; 

 c) remuneraƟ on of the ExecuƟ ves are aligned with the Company’s business strategies, values, key prioriƟ es and goals. 

ANNEXURE - ‘E’
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V. GUIDING PRINCIPLES FOR REMUNERATION AND OTHER TERMS OF EMPLOYMENT

 The guiding principle is that the remuneraƟ on and the other terms of employment for the ExecuƟ ves shall be compeƟ Ɵ ve in order 
to ensure that the Company may aƩ ract and retain competent ExecuƟ ves. In determining the remuneraƟ on policy, the CommiƩ ee 
ensures that a compeƟ Ɵ ve remuneraƟ on package for all ExecuƟ ves is maintained and is also benchmarked with other mulƟ naƟ onal 
companies operaƟ ng in naƟ onal and global markets.

VI. RESPONSIBILITIES AND POWERS OF THE COMMITTEE

 The CommiƩ ee, in addiƟ on to the funcƟ ons and powers as endued by its terms of reference, would also be responsible for – 

 a) preparing the Board’s decisions on issues concerning principles for remuneraƟ ons (including pension and severance pay) and 
other terms of employment of ExecuƟ ves and Non-ExecuƟ ve Directors;

 b) formulaƟ ng criteria of qualifi caƟ ons and posiƟ ve aƩ ributes to assist the Company in idenƟ fying the eligible individuals for the 
offi  ce of ExecuƟ ves;

 c) monitoring and evaluaƟ ng programs for variable remuneraƟ on, if any, both ongoing and those that have ended during the year, 
for ExecuƟ ves and Non-ExecuƟ ve Directors;

 d) monitoring and evaluaƟ ng the applicaƟ on of this Policy;

 e) monitoring and evaluaƟ ng current remuneraƟ on structures and levels in the Company.

VII. PRINCIPLES FOR SELECTION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

 The nominaƟ on of the independent Directors of the Company shall be in accordance with the principles as stated hereunder and other 
relevant provisions of Applicable Law :

 (a)  is a person of integrity and possesses relevant experƟ se and experience;

 (b)  is or was not a promoter of the Company or its holding, subsidiary or associate company and not related to promoters or Directors 
in the Company, its holding, subsidiary or associate company;

 (c)  has or had no pecuniary relaƟ onship with the Company, its holding, subsidiary or associate company, or their promoters, or 
Directors, during the two immediately preceding fi nancial years or during the current fi nancial year;

 (d)  none of whose relaƟ ves  has or had pecuniary relaƟ onship or transacƟ on with the Company, its holding, subsidiary or associate 
company, or their promoters, or Directors, amounƟ ng to two percent. or more of its gross turnover or total income or fi Ō y lakh 
rupees or such higher amount as may be prescribed, whichever is lower, during the two immediately preceding fi nancial years or 
during the current fi nancial year;

 (e)  neither himself nor any of his relaƟ ves—

  (i)   holds or has held the posiƟ on of a key managerial personnel or is or has been employee of the Company or its holding, 
subsidiary or associate company  in any of the three fi nancial years immediately preceding the fi nancial year in which he is 
proposed to be appointed;

  (ii)  is or has been an employee or proprietor or a partner, in any of the three fi nancial years immediately preceding the fi nancial 
year in which he is proposed to be appointed, of (a) a fi rm of auditors or company secretaries in pracƟ ce or cost auditors 
of the Company or its holding, subsidiary or associate company; or (b) any legal or a consulƟ ng fi rm that has or had any 
transacƟ on with the Company, its holding, subsidiary or associate company amounƟ ng to ten per cent or more of the gross 
turnover of such fi rm;

  (iii)  holds together with his relaƟ ves two per cent or more of the total voƟ ng power of the Company; or

  (iv)  is a chief execuƟ ve or director, by whatever name called, of any non-profi t organisaƟ on that receives twenty-fi ve per cent 
or more of its receipts from the Company, any of its promoters, Directors or its holding, subsidiary or associate company or 
that holds two per cent. or more of the total voƟ ng power of the Company;

 f) shall possess appropriate skills, experience and knowledge in one or more fi elds of fi nance, law, management, sales, markeƟ ng, 
administraƟ on, research, corporate governance, technical operaƟ ons or other disciplines related to the Company’s business.

VIII. OVERALL CRITERIA FOR SELECTION OF EXECUTIVES

 The assessment for Senior Management will be done on the basis of below parameters by the concerned interview panel of the 
Company –
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 a) Competencies :

  • Necessary skills ( Leadership skill, communicaƟ on skills, Managerial skills etc )

  • Experiences & educaƟ on to successfully complete the tasks.

  • PosiƟ ve background reference check.

 b) CapabiliƟ es :

  • Suitable or fi t for the task or role.

  • PotenƟ al for growth and the ability and willingness to take on more responsibility.

  • Intelligent & fast learner, Good Leader, Organiser & Administrator, Good AnalyƟ cal skills CreaƟ ve & InnovaƟ ve.

 c) CompaƟ bility :

  • Can this person get along with colleagues, exisƟ ng and potenƟ al clients and partners.

  • Strong Interpersonal Skills.

  • Flexible & Adaptable.

 d) Commitment :

  • Candidate’s seriousness about working for the long term

  • Vision & Aim

 e) Character :

  • Ethical, honest, team player

 f) Culture :

  • Fits with the Company’s culture. (Every business has a culture or a way that people behave and interact with each other. 
Culture is based on certain values, expectaƟ ons, policies and procedures that infl uence the behavior of a leader and 
employees. Employees who don’t refl ect a company’s culture tend to be disrupƟ ve and diffi  cult)

  • Presentable & should be known for good social & corporate culture.

IX. GENERAL POLICIES FOR REMUNERATION 

 The various remuneraƟ on components would be combined to ensure an appropriate and balanced remuneraƟ on package. 

 1.  A fi xed base salary – set at a level aimed at aƩ racƟ ng and retaining execuƟ ves with professional and personal competence, 
showing good performance towards achieving Company goals.

 2.  Perquisites – in the form of house rent allowance/ accommodaƟ on, furnishing allowance, reimbursement of medical expenses, 
conveyance, telephone, leave travel, etc.

 3.  ReƟ rement benefi ts – contribuƟ on to Provident Fund, superannuaƟ on, gratuity, etc as per Company Rules, subject to Applicable 
Law.

 4.  MoƟ vaƟ on /Reward – A performance appraisal to be carried out annually and promoƟ ons/ increments/ rewards are to be decided 
by Managing Director based on the appraisal and recommendaƟ on of the concerned Head of Departments, where applicable.

 5.  Severance payments – in accordance with terms of employment, and applicable statutory requirements, if any.

 Any remuneraƟ on payable to the ExecuƟ ves of the Company shall abide by the following norms -

 i. The base salary shall be compeƟ Ɵ ve and based on the individual ExecuƟ ve’s key responsibiliƟ es and performance;

 ii. Base salaries would be based on a funcƟ on-related salary system and be in line with the market developments shown by the 
benchmark research and addiƟ onal market studies. The annual review date for the base salary would be April 1 or any other date 
as may be determined by the CommiƩ ee from Ɵ me to Ɵ me, subject to the Company’s Policy;

 iii. The ExecuƟ ves will be enƟ tled to customary non-monetary benefi ts such as Company cars, phone and such other fi xed enƟ tled 
benefi ts; 

 iv. Pension contribuƟ ons shall be made in accordance with applicable laws and employment agreements;

 v. The ExecuƟ ves resident outside India or resident in India but having a material connecƟ on to or having been resident in a country 
other than India, may be off ered pension benefi ts that are compeƟ Ɵ ve in the country where the ExecuƟ ves are or have been 
resident or to which the ExecuƟ ves have a material connecƟ on, preferably defi ned-contribuƟ on plans;
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 vi. A Director may receive remuneraƟ on by way of fee for aƩ ending meeƟ ngs of the Board or CommiƩ ee thereof or for any other 
purpose whatsoever as may be decided by the Board, as permissible under Applicable law;

 vii. If any Director draws or receives, directly or indirectly, by way of remuneraƟ on any such sums in excess of the limit as prescribed 
or without the prior sancƟ on, where it is required, under the Applicable law, such remuneraƟ on shall be refunded to the Company 
and unƟ l such sum is refunded, hold it in trust for the Company. The Company shall not waive the recovery of any sum refundable 
to it;

 viii. A Director who is in receipt of any commission from the Company and who is a managing or whole-Ɵ me director of the Company 
shall not be disqualifi ed from receiving any remuneraƟ on or commission from any holding or subsidiary company of the Company, 
subject to its disclosure by the Company in the Board’s report.

  A. Any fee/remuneraƟ on payable to the non-execuƟ ve Directors of the Company shall abide by the following norms –

   i. If any such Director draws or receives, directly or indirectly, by way of fee/remuneraƟ on any such sums in excess of the 
limit as prescribed or without the prior sancƟ on, where it is required, under the Applicable law such remuneraƟ on shall 
be refunded to the Company and unƟ l such sum is refunded, hold it in trust for the Company. The Company shall not 
waive the recovery of any sum refundable to it;

   ii. Such Director(s) may receive remuneraƟ on by way of fee for aƩ ending meeƟ ngs of the Board or CommiƩ ee thereof or 
for any other purpose whatsoever as may be decided by the Board, as permissible under Applicable law;

   iii. An independent Director shall not be enƟ tled to any stock opƟ on and may receive remuneraƟ on only by way of fees 
and reimbursement of expenses for parƟ cipaƟ on in meeƟ ngs of the Board or commiƩ ee thereof and profi t related 
commission, as may be permissible under the Applicable law.

X. NOTICE OF TERMINATION AND SEVERANCE PAY POLICY 

 The noƟ ce of TerminaƟ on and Severance pay shall be as per the terms of appointment as menƟ oned in the Employment Agreement or 
LeƩ er of Appointment. 

XI. DISCLOSURE AND DISSEMINATION

 i. The Policy shall be disclosed in the Board’s Report to shareholders of the Company at the Annual General MeeƟ ng.

 ii. The Annual Report of the Company would specify the details of remuneraƟ on paid to Directors. 

 iii. The  Company  is required to  publish  its  criteria  of  making  payments  to  non-execuƟ ve Directors  in  its  annual  report.  
AlternaƟ vely, this may also be put up on the Company’s website and reference be drawn in the annual report.
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REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES/INITIATIVES
[Pursuant to SecƟ on 135 of the Act & Rules made thereunder]

1. A Brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, including overview of the projects or programmes proposed to be undertaken and reference 
to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programmes:

 In line with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has framed its CSR policy towards enhancing welfare measures of 
the society and the same has been approved by the CSR CommiƩ ee of the Board. The Company would also give preference to the local 
area and areas around the Company for spending the amount earmarked for CSR acƟ viƟ es. The Company has proposed to undertake 
acƟ viƟ es relaƟ ng to rural development including livestock development and health care. The Company’s CSR policy is placed on its 
website and the web-link for the same is hƩ p://www.manaksia.com/inv-corp--policies.php.

2. The composiƟ on of the CSR CommiƩ ee is as under :
 Mr Mahabir Prasad Agrawal Chairman
 Mr Ajay Kumar Chakraborty Director
 Mrs Smita Khaitan  Director
 Mr Suresh Kumar Agrawal Director

3. Average net profi t of the Company for the last three fi nancial years :

 The average net profi t for the last three years is Rs.2258.08 Lakhs.

4. The prescribed CSR expenditure at 2% is Rs.45.16 Lakhs.

5. Details of CSR acƟ viƟ es/projects undertaken during the year :
 a) Total amount to be spent for the fi nancial year 2014-15: 45.16 Lakhs
 b) Amount unspent, if any: Rs. 37.75 Lakhs
 c) Manner in which the amount spent during the fi nancial year 2014-15 : 

Sl. 
No.

CSR Project or 
acƟ vity idenƟ fi ed

Sector in which the 
project is covered 

Projects or 
Programs
(1) Local area or 

other
(2) Specify the 

State and 
district where 
the projects or 
programs was 
undertaken

Amount outlay 
(budget) project or 
programs wise

Amount spent on 
the projects or 
programs
Sub-heads:
(1) Direct 

Expenditure 
on projects  or 
programs

(2) Overheads

CumulaƟ ve 
expenditure upto 
the reporƟ ng 
period i.e. FY 2014-
2015

Amount spent 
Direct or through 
implemenƟ ng agency

1. Livestock 
Development

Rural 
Development

Kolkata, West 
Bengal

7.21 7.21 7.21 ImplemenƟ ng 
Agency

2 Cancer Care 
acƟ viƟ es

PromoƟ ng health-
care including 
prevenƟ ve 
heathcare

All states of India 0.20 0.20 0.20 ImplemenƟ ng 
Agency

Total 7.41 7.41 7.41

6. In case the company has failed to spend the 2% of the average net profi t of the last 3 fi nancial years or any part thereof, reasons for not 
spending the amount in its Board Report :

 Reasons for not spending part of the amount stated in the Director’s Report.

7. A Responsibility statement by the CSR CommiƩ ee that the implementaƟ on and monitoring of CSR Policy, is in compliance with CSR 
objecƟ ves and Policy of the Company :

 The implementaƟ on and monitoring of CSR Policy, is in compliance with CSR objecƟ ves and Policy of the Company.

   Suresh Kumar Agrawal Mahabir Prasad Agrawal 
Kolkata,   Managing Director Chairman of CSR CommiƩ ee
3rd August, 2015 DIN : 00520769 DIN : 00524341

ANNEXURE - ‘F’

(Rs. in Lakhs)
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ANNEXURE - ‘G’

Details under SecƟ on 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the 
Companies (Appointment and RemuneraƟ on of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 

Rule ParƟ culars
(i) The RaƟ o of the remuneraƟ on of each 

Director to the median remuneraƟ on of the 
employees of the Company for the fi nancial 
year

a. Mr. Suresh Kumar Agrawal, Managing Director (change in 
designaƟ on from Whote-Time Director to Managing Director on 
same remuneraƟ on w.e.f 23rd November, 2014. RemuneraƟ on 
annualised for the purpose of calculaƟ on of raƟ o)

17.14:1

b. Mr. Mahabir Prasad Agrawal, Whote-Time Director (appointed 
as Whote-Time Director on 23rd November, 2014. RemuneraƟ on 
annualised for the purpose of calculaƟ on of raƟ o)

8.57:1

c. Mr. Basudeo Agrawal, Whole Time Director (appointed as Whole 
Time Director on 23rd November, 2014. Salary annualised for 
the purpose of calculaƟ on of raƟ o)

8.57:1

d. Mr. Basant Kumar Agrawal (resigned as Managing Director with 
eff ect from 23rd November, 2014. RemuneraƟ on annualised 
for the purpose of calculaƟ on of raƟ o)

17.14:1

e. Mr. Sushil Kumar Agrawal (resigned as Whote-Time Director 
with eff ect from 23rd November, 2014. RemuneraƟ on 
annualised for the purpose of calculaƟ on of raƟ o)

8.57:1

f. Mr. Sunil Kumar Agrawal (resigned as Whote-Time Director with 
eff ect from 23rd November, 2014. RemuneraƟ on annualised 
for the purpose of calculaƟ on of raƟ o)

8.57:1

g. Mr. Debabrata Guha (resigned as Whote-Time Director with 
eff ect from 8th August, 2014. RemuneraƟ on annualised for the 
purpose of calculaƟ on of raƟ o)

2.90:1

h. Mr. Ajay Kumar Chakraborty, Independent Director 0.36:1
i. Dr. Kali Kumar Chaudhuri, Independent Director 0.29:1
j. Mrs. Smita Khaitan, Independent Director 0.34:1
k. Mr. Sunil Kumar Agrawal (appointed as Non-ExecuƟ ve Director 

with eff ect from 23rd November, 2014.)
0.02:1

l. Mr. Mahabir Prasad Agrawal (He was Non-ExecuƟ ve Director of 
the Company. Change in designaƟ on to Whote-Time Director 
with eff ect from 23rd November, 2014).

0.23:1

(ii) The percentage increase in 
remuneraƟ on of each Director, Chief 
Financial Offi  cer, Chief ExecuƟ ve 
Offi  cer, Company Secretary in the 
fi nancial year.

a. Mr. Suresh Kumar Agrawal, Managing Director 0
b. Mr. Mahabir Prasad Agrawal, Whote-Time Director 0
c. Mr. Basudeo Agrawal, Whole Time Director 0
d. Mr. Basant Kumar Agrawal, Managing Director 0
e. Mr. Sushil Kumar Agrawal, Whote-Time Director 0
f. Mr. Sunil Kumar Agrawal, Whote-Time Director 0
g. Mr. Debabrata Guha,  Whote-Time Director 0
h. Mr. Sanjay Singhania, Chief Financial Offi  cer 10
i. Mr. Raj Kumar Banthia, Company Secretary (appointed on 

15.10.2014)
0

j. Mr. Anubhav Maheshwari, Company Secretary (resigned on 
05.09.2014)

5

(iii) The percentage increase in the median 
remuneraƟ on of employees in the 
fi nancial year.

13.00%
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(iv) The number of permanent employees 
on the rolls of the company.

86

(v) The explanaƟ on on the relaƟ onship 
between average increase in remunera-
Ɵ on and company performance.

During the year the Company achieved a total income  of 
Rs 2426.55 Lacs against Rs 59740.33 Lacs of last year. The 
Company earned a profi t of Rs 737.06 Lacs during the year 
2014-15 as against a profi t of Rs 2300.52 Lacs in the year 2013-
14. There has been no increase in remuneraƟ on of managerial 
personnel. 

0

(vI) Comparison of the remuneraƟ on of the 
Key Managerial Personnel against the 
performance of the company.

a. Total Revenue (Rs. Lacs) 2426.55

b. Aggregate RemuneraƟ on of Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) in 
F.Y. 2014-15 (Rs. Lacs)

143.25

c. RemuneraƟ on of KMPs (as a % of revenue) 5.90%

(vIi) VariaƟ ons in the market capitalizaƟ on of 
the company, price earnings raƟ o as at 
the closing date of the current fi nancial 
year and previous fi nancial year and 
percentage increase over decrease in 
the market quotaƟ ons of the shares of 
the company in comparison to the rate 
at which increase over decrease in the 
market quotaƟ ons of the the company 
came out with the last public off er.

Financial year 
ended

Name of the 
Stock Exchange

Closing share 
Price 

Market 
capitalizaƟ on
(Rs. in Lacs)

Price Earning 
RaƟ o 

31.03.2015 NSE Rs. 54.75 35879.89 48.88

31.03.2014 NSE Rs. 67.85 44464.85 19.33

31.03.2015 BSE Rs. 54.75 35879.89 48.88

31.03.2014 BSE Rs. 66.95  43875.04 19.07

The Company came out with public off er in 2007 at Rs.160/- per share. However this is not comparable as the Company got demerged 
during the fi nancial year 2014-15.       

(viii) Average percenƟ le increase already 
made in the salaries of employees other 
than the managerial personnel in the 
last fi nancial year and its comparison 
with the percenƟ le increase in 
the managerial remuneraƟ on and 
jusƟ fi caƟ on thereof and point 
out if there are any excepƟ onal 
circumstances for increase in the 
managerial remuneraƟ on.

Average percenƟ le increase in the salaries of employees other than managerial 
personnel is 6.00%.  There has been no increase in the remuneraƟ on of 
managerial personnel and therefore no comparison is required.

(ix) Comparison of the each remuneraƟ on 
of the Key Managerial Personnel against 
the performance of the company.

Name of the KMP RemuneraƟ on 
of KMP 

(Rs in Lacs)

RemuneraƟ on 
as % of 

revenue (Total 
venue=2426.55 

Lacs)

a. Mr. Suresh Kumar Agrawal, Managing Director  60.00  2.47 

b. Mr. Mahabir Prasad Agrawal, Whote-Time Director  10.67  0.44 

c. Mr. Basudeo Agrawal, Whote-Time Director  10.67  0.44 

d. Mr. Basant Kumar Agrawal  42.53  1.75 

e. Mr. Sanjay Singhania, Chief Financial Offi  cer  10.02  0.41 

f Mr. Raj Kumar Banthia, Company Secretary  4.18  0.17 

g Mr. Anubhav Maheshwari, Company Secretary  5.18  0.21 

(x) The key parameters for any variable 
component of remuneraƟ on availed by 
the Directors.

There is no variable component availed by any Director.  
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(xi) The raƟ o of the remuneraƟ on of the 
highest paid Director to that of the 
employees who are not Directors but 
receive remuneraƟ on in excess of the 
highest paid Director during the  year

None  

(xii) It is hereby affi  rmed that the remuneraƟ on is as per the RemuneraƟ on Policy of the Company.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

IntroducƟ on

The Hon’ble CalcuƩ a High Court, vide its order dated March 24, 2014 (cerƟ fi ed copy received by the Company on November 19, 2014), had 
approved the Scheme of Arrangement between Manaksia Limited and Manaksia Steels Limited, Manaksia Industries Limited, Manaksia 
Coated Metals & Industries Limited and Manaksia Aluminium Company Limited and their respecƟ ve shareholders for demerger and transfer 
of undertakings of Manaksia Limited (transferor company) into the 4 (Four) Transferee Companies viz. Manaksia Steels Limited, Manaksia 
Industries Limited, Manaksia Coated Metals & Industries Limited and Manaksia Aluminium Company Limited under SecƟ ons 391 to 394 of 
the Companies Act, 1956. The Scheme became eff ecƟ ve from 23rd November, 2014 with the appointed date of 1st October, 2013. 

Economic Overview

Financial Year 2014-15 witnessed volaƟ le markets as economies around the world found themselves at various points in the economic cycle, 
with monetary easing being the predominant theme across many geographies. However, growth remained subdued globally, as adverse 
factors more than off  set oil price decline, the quanƟ taƟ ve easing in Europe and the growth in South-East Asia.

According to the InternaƟ onal Monetary Fund, the global economy is expected to grow at 3.4% in Financial Year 2015-16. This is due to the 
fact that slowdown in producƟ on in China and Russia is expected to be more than off  set by recovery of the developed economies and growth 
in South-East Asia. However, currency movements and interest rates conƟ nue to be risks for growth in many regions.

Developed economies are expected to grow moderately. Economic growth in South Asia is expected to be driven by strong consumpƟ on and 
increasing investment in the region. India is expected to be a major contributor to this growth as it is set to double its economic size by 2019. 
China witnessed its slowest growth during 2014 in the last 25 years. The lower growth trend in China has adversely impacted commodity 
markets. China’s waning demand and resultant rise in exports poses a risk to leveraging improving domesƟ c demand in South Asia and 
Europe. Further, movement of currencies against USD would also have a signifi cant impact on the movement of global prices of commodiƟ es.

Financial Year 2014-15 saw a growing Indian economy, even as advanced and emerging economies grappled with uncertainty and slower 
growth. Economic growth in India peaked in the second quarter of the fi scal at 8.2% but remained moderate in the third and fourth quarter 
at around 7.5%. Cyclical macro parameters like infl aƟ on, current account defi cit have improved during the year due to domesƟ c as well as 
external factors. Indian rupee was one of the best performers in the world, registering a 4% decline in value as against the USD compared to 
the rest of the world grappling with devaluaƟ on of their currencies. 

The Indian economy is in the midst of signifi cant structural change and is expected to embark on a sustained economic growth cycle. 
According to World Bank, India is set to be the world’s fastest growing major economy in the Financial Year 2015-16 at 7.5% and gradually 
move up to 8% in the next two fi nancial years. However, this economic growth will depend on steady implementaƟ on of reforms aimed to 
improve producƟ vity and compeƟ Ɵ veness. Government iniƟ aƟ ves like ‘Make in India’ will sƟ mulate manufacturing growth while its focus on 
infrastructure should revive the investment cycle. This should help India grow while being fi scally prudent. States are also expected to play a 
key part in GDP growth due to their increased fi nances via greater share of government taxes.

Industry Structure and Developments

Manaksia Limited intends to engage itself in trading in the products from the respecƟ ve industrial sectors, the structure and development 
of which are as below : 

Steel :

Steel is the barometer of economic development of a country. Steel demand in the world stems from growth and development of the sectors 
that are end users of steel such as manufacturing, housing, infrastructure, automobile etc.  

The Indian steel industry has entered into a new development stage from 2007-08, riding high on the resurgent economy and rising demand 
for steel. Rapid rise in producƟ on has resulted in India becoming the 3rd largest producer of crude steel in 2015 and the country conƟ nues 
to be the largest producer of sponge iron or DRI in the world.

As against this, China’s steel producƟ on grew only 0.9% to 822.7 million tonnes against 7.5% in the previous year and it stepped up exports 
to India by as much as 232% to 3.611 million tonnes in 2014-15 underpinning the concern of the Indian steel industry that arrival of such 
large quanƟ Ɵ es of metal from a single foreign source will leave a good porƟ on of domesƟ c capacity idle, besides unseƩ ling the market here.

In a bid to protect domesƟ c producers from surging imports from countries such as China and Russia, the government recently raised import 
duty to 10 per cent from 7.5 percent on fl at steel and to 7.5 percent from 5 percent for long steel products, to stem the fl ood of imports.
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Aluminium :

Global Aluminum demand growth normalized to around 5% in 2012, aŌ er a sharp growth in the preceding two years on the back of global 
recovery from the 2009 crisis. World’s leading manufacturer Alcoa has projected demand growth to be in the region of 7% in 2014-15. In 
2014-15, China, North America’s and Europe’s growth was in the region of 7.5%, 3.5% and 1% respecƟ vely. 

The principal user segment in India for aluminium conƟ nues to be electrical & electronics sector followed by the automoƟ ve & transportaƟ on, 
building & construcƟ on, packaging, consumer durables, industrial and other applicaƟ ons including defence.

Demand for aluminium is esƟ mated to grow at 6%-8% per annum. Also, demand for the metal is expected to pick up as the scenario improves 
for user industries, like power, infrastructure and transportaƟ on. 

The demand for aluminium has been strong in recent years. However aluminium industry being cyclical in nature, it could see a downturn in 
demand with the recent slowdown being witnessed in Indian and world economies.

Colour Coated (Pre-painted) Steel and Aluminium Sheets :

In India, colour coated sheets are mainly consumed in the sectors of construcƟ on and infrastructure, appliances and automoƟ ve. In recent 
years, colour coated coils have gained acceptance in the domesƟ c market and consequently, their consumpƟ on has accelerated during the 
last several years.

In the construcƟ on sector, colour coated sheets have made substanƟ al progress in replacement of tradiƟ onal asbestos and un-coated 
galvanised iron roofi ng sheets, primarily due to health, aestheƟ cs, durability and environmental reasons. Colour coated sheets have found 
extensive use in roofi ng applicaƟ ons and also in the pre-fabricated structures sectors.

Packaging Products :

The global packaging industry is growing fast. Rapid growth in packaging usage in fast growing economies has resulted in new opportuniƟ es 
for the packaging sector. However, rising input costs is a concern for this industry.

Higher level of consumer spending and changing consumer tastes has encouraged increases in line extensions and new product introducƟ ons. 
Packaging has emerged as a criƟ cal component of shelf life, branding, merchandising, and promoƟ onal acƟ viƟ es as companies increasingly 
want their products to stand out. Packaging companies are constantly trying to improve package design by invesƟ ng in research and 
development. 

DomesƟ c InsecƟ cides - Mosquito Repellent Coils & Vaporizers

India has a large and growing market for mosquito repellants. Many methods are used in households for dealing with the mosquito menace. 
Coils were the fi rst mosquito repellants to be introduced in the Indian market.

The mosquito repellents are available as coils, vaporizers, or as liquids in form of aerosol sprays. There is also a cream component of the 
market for personal use. 

The demand for mosquito repellent coils is understood to be growing fast in the rural areas, whereas in urban areas the vaporizers and 
aerosols are replacing coils. In the rural markets, the dominant products are again coils. 

According to industry reports, the Indian mosquito repellent market is expected to grow rapidly in the early 21st century. 

Our Business

Your Company intends to engage itself in trading in the following products :

• Value added steel products comprising Cold Rolled Sheets used in interior and exterior panels of automobiles, buses and commercial 
vehicles, Galvanised Corrugated Sheets used in the rural housing sector and factory sheds and Galvanised Plain Sheets, used in 
the manufacture of containers and water tanks and Colour Coated (Pre-painted) Coils and Sheets for sale to construcƟ on, housing, 
consumer durable and other industries.

• Aluminium rolled products in coil and sheet form used in closures, bus bodies, fl ooring and general engineering purposes and Aluminium 
alloy ingots used in the steel and automoƟ ve industry.

• Roll on Pilfer Proof (ROPP) Closures for liquor and pharmaceuƟ cal sectors, Crown Closures for beer and carbonated soŌ  drink sectors, 
PlasƟ c Closures for carbonated soŌ  drinks and mineral water sectors and Metal Containers for shoe polishes, cosmeƟ cs and tea. Other 
packaging products in which the Company deals with are Aluminium Semi-Rigid Containers and table foil, Printed Metal Sheets, PrinƟ ng 
Inks, Adhesives, Lacquers and Varnishes and Corrugated Boxes made of cardboard. 

• DomesƟ c InsecƟ cides in the form of Mosquito Repellent Coils and Vaporizers.
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Overview of OperaƟ ons

Results

During the year under review, the revenue of your Company stood at Rs. 2426.55 lacs, as compared to Rs. 59740.33 lacs during the previous 
year ended March 31, 2014 (which includes the turnover of the pre-demerged undertakings of Manaksia Limited for the period April 1 to 
September 30, 2014). During the year, the Company earned a net profi t of Rs. 737.06 lacs as compared to a profi t of Rs. 2300.52 lacs during 
previous year ended on March 31, 2014 (which includes the profi t of the pre-demerged undertakings of Manaksia Limited for the period 
April 1 to September 30, 2014).

Risks and Concerns

Your Company is aggressively looking for growth opportuniƟ es and new markets in all the products that it deals in. The Company is exposed 
to a number of market risks arising from its normal business acƟ viƟ es. These risks include changes in prices of the products dealt with, 
foreign currency exchange rate, interest rate which may adversely impact the Company’s fi nancial assets, liabiliƟ es and/or future cash fl ows. 
The Company conƟ nues to miƟ gate these risks by careful planning of opƟ mum sales mix, acƟ ve treasury management and penetraƟ on in 
diff erent markets, both domesƟ c and internaƟ onal. 

OpportuniƟ es and Threats

A varied porƞ olio of products dealt with by the Company and considerable geographical presence and reach, both domesƟ c and internaƟ onal, 
have helped the Company to try and de-risk its business and meet the risks with suitable precauƟ on. 

Future Outlook

The Company is taking all possible steps to improve its performance. The Company is also exploring various avenues for improving its 
boƩ omline. The company is also making certain strategic changes which would result in further reducƟ on of costs thereby contribuƟ ng to 
the profi tability in the years to come. 

Internal Control Systems

The Company has an eff ecƟ ve system of internal controls which helps it to maintain both internal controls and procedures to ensure all 
transacƟ ons are authorised, recorded and reported correctly and also ensure disclosure and protecƟ on of physical and intellectual property.  
The Company has appointed a fi rm of Chartered Accountants as Internal Auditors who independently evaluate the adequacy of the 
internal controls from Ɵ me to Ɵ me. For transparency and eff ecƟ veness, the management duly considers and takes appropriate acƟ on on 
the recommendaƟ ons made by Statutory Auditors, Internal Auditors and by Management CommiƩ ee / Audit CommiƩ ee of the Board of 
Directors. The company uƟ lises the SAP Plaƞ orm in order to have proper internal control procedure with the required authorizaƟ on and 
“maker and checker” concept. This helps in correct recording of transacƟ ons and eliminaƟ on and Ɵ mely recƟ fi caƟ on of errors.

Human Resources

During the year under review, employee relaƟ ons conƟ nued to be cordial throughout the year. The Company employs about 80 people.

Finance Cost 

Finance Cost, during the year under review stood at Rs 20.04 lacs, as compared to Rs. 1602.02 lacs for the fi nancial year ended on 
March  31, 2014. 

CauƟ onary Statement

Statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis, describing the company’s objecƟ ves, outlook and expectaƟ on, may consƟ tute 
“Forward Looking Statements” within the meaning of applicable laws and regulaƟ ons. Actual results may diff er from those expressed or 
implied expectaƟ ons, projecƟ ons etc. Several factors make a signifi cant diff erence to the company’s operaƟ ons, including climaƟ c condiƟ ons, 
economic scenario aff ecƟ ng demand and supply, Government regulaƟ ons, taxaƟ on, natural calamity and other such factors over which the 
company does not have any direct control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Manaksia Limited

Report on the Financial Statement :

We have audited the accompanying standalone fi nancial statement of Manaksia Limited, which comprise the balance sheet as at 31st March 
2015, the statement of profi t and loss and the cash fl ow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of signifi cant accounƟ ng policies 
and explanatory informaƟ on.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the maƩ ers stated in secƟ on 134(5) of the Company’s Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect 
to the preparaƟ on and presentaƟ on of these standalone fi nancial statements that give a true and fair view of the fi nancial posiƟ on, fi nancial 
performance and cash fl ows of the company in accordance with the accounƟ ng principles generally accepted in India, including the accounƟ ng 
standards specifi ed under SecƟ on 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes 
maintenance of adequate accounƟ ng records in accordance with the provisions of the act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for 
prevenƟ ng and detecƟ ng frauds and other irregulariƟ es, selecƟ on and applicaƟ on of appropriate accounƟ ng policies, making judgments and 
esƟ mates that are reasonable and prudent and design, implementaƟ on and maintenance of adequate internal fi nancial controls, that were 
operaƟ ng eff ecƟ vely for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounƟ ng records relevant to the preparaƟ on and presentaƟ on of 
the fi nancial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone fi nancial statements based on our audit. We have taken into account the 
provisions of the Act, the accounƟ ng and audiƟ ng standards and maƩ ers which are required to be included in the audit report under the 
provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on AudiƟ ng specifi ed under SecƟ on 143 (10) of the act, those standards require 
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the fi nancial 
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the fi nancial statements. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the fi nancial 
statement, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal fi nancial control relevant to the 
Company’s preparaƟ on of the fi nancial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the Company has in place an adequate internal fi nancial controls 
system over fi nancial reporƟ ng and the operaƟ ng eff ecƟ veness of such controls. An audit also includes evaluaƟ ng the appropriateness of 
the accounƟ ng policies used and the reasonableness of the accounƟ ng esƟ mates made by the Company’s Directors as well as evaluaƟ ng the 
overall presentaƟ on of the fi nancial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suffi  cient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standard 
fi nancial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our informaƟ on and according to the explanaƟ ons given to us, the aforesaid standalone fi nancial statements 
give the informaƟ on required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounƟ ng principles 
generally accepted in India, of the state of aff airs of the Company as at 31st March, 2015 and its profi t & loss and its cash fl ows for the year 
ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2015 (the order) issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-
secƟ on (11) of secƟ on 143 of the Act, we give in the annexure a statement of the maƩ ers specifi ed in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the 
order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by SecƟ on 143 (3) of the Act, we report that :

 a. We have sought and obtained all the informaƟ on and explanaƟ ons which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary 
for the purposes of our audit.
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 b. In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the company so far as it appears from our 
examinaƟ on of those books.

 c. The balance sheet, the statement of profi t and loss and the cash fl ow statement dealt with by this report are in agreement with 
the books of account.

 d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone fi nancial statements comply with the accounƟ ng standards specifi ed under SecƟ on 133 
of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

 e. On the basis of the wriƩ en representaƟ ons received from the directors as on 31st March 2015 taken on record by the Board of 
Directors, none of the directors is disqualifi ed as on 31st March, 2015 from being appointed as a director in terms of SecƟ on 164 
(2) of the Act.

 f. With respect to the other maƩ ers to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our informaƟ on and according to the explanaƟ ons given to us:

  i. The company has disclosed the impact of pending liƟ gaƟ ons on its fi nancial posiƟ on in its fi nancial statements – Refer 
Note 23 to the fi nancial statements.

  ii. The company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounƟ ng standard, for material foreseeable 
losses, if any on long-term contracts including derivaƟ ve contracts.

  iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor EducaƟ on and ProtecƟ on 
Fund by the company.

For SRB & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. No. 310009E 

Bisworanjan Sutar
(Partner)

Membership No.066708
Kolkata
15th day of May, 2015
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REPORTS UNDER THE COMPANIES ΈAUDITOR’S REPORTΉ ORDER, 2015 ΈCARO 2015Ή

CARO 2015 Report on the Standalone Financial Statement of Manaksia Limited for the year ended March 31, 2015

To the Members of Manaksia Limited

The Annexure referred to in our Report on Standalone Financial Statements to the members of Manaksia Limited (the Company) for the year 
ended March 31, 2015 issued on May 15, 2015. We report that :

i. In respect of its Fixed Assets :

 a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full parƟ culars    including quanƟ taƟ ve details and situaƟ on of fi xed assets 
on the basis of available informaƟ on.

 b) As explained to us, all the fi xed assets have been physically verifi ed by the management in a phased periodical manner, which in 
our opinion is reasonable, having regard to the size of Company and nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noƟ ced 
on such physical verifi caƟ on.

ii. In respect of its Inventories :

 a) The inventories have been physically verifi ed during the year by the management. In our opinion, the frequency of verifi caƟ on 
is reasonable.

 b) In our opinion and according to the informaƟ on & explanaƟ ons given to us, the procedures of physical verifi caƟ on of inventories 
followed by the management are reasonable and adequate in relaƟ on to the size of the Company and the nature of its business.

 c) The Company has maintained proper records of inventories. As per the informaƟ on and explanaƟ on given to us, no material 
discrepancies were noƟ ced on physical verifi caƟ on.

iii. In respect of loans, secured or unsecured, granted by the Company to Companies, Firms or other parƟ es covered in the Register 
maintained under SecƟ on 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 : 

 a) The principal amounts are repayable over varying periods up to fi ve years, while the interest is payable annually, both at the 
discreƟ on of the Company.

 b) In respect of the said loans and interest thereon, there are no over due amounts.

iv. In our opinion and according to the informaƟ on and explanaƟ ons given to us, the Company has an adequate internal control system 
commensurate with its size and the nature of its business for the purchase of fi xed assets & inventory and for the sale of goods & 
services. During the course of our audit, we have not observed any conƟ nuing failure to correct major weaknesses in such internal 
control system.

v. According to the informaƟ on and explanaƟ ons given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits from the public. Therefore, the 
provision of clause (v) of Paragraph 3 of the CARO 2015 is not applicable to the Company. 

vi. We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the company pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records & Audit) Rules, 
2014 prescribed by the Central Government under secƟ on 148(1) (d) of the Companies Act, 2013 and are of the opinion that, prima 
facie, the prescribed accounts and cost records have been maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed examinaƟ on of the cost 
records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.  

vii. In respect of Statutory Dues :

 a) According to the records of the Company, undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, 
Income Tax, Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material 
statutory dues have been generally regularly deposited with the appropriate authoriƟ es. According to the informaƟ on and 
explanaƟ ons given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of the aforesaid dues were outstanding as at March 31, 
2015 for a period of more than six months from the date of becoming payable.
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 b) Details of dues of Income Tax, Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess which 
have not been deposited as on March 31, 2015 on account of disputes are given below:

Sl.
No.

Name of the Statute Nature of Dues Forum where Dispute is Pending Amount involved
(Rs. In Lakhs)

1. Central Excise Act, 1944 Service Tax The Commissioner, Central Excise 36.25

The Commissioner, Service Tax, Kolkata 52.40

2. Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax C.I.T(A)-IV, Kolkata 73.53

C.I.T(A)-I, Kolkata 4.22

I.T.A.T, Kolkata 14.29

3. Central Sales Tax Act, 
1956 & Sales Tax Act of 
Various States

Sales Tax/VAT and 
Entry Tax

The Commercial, Taxes, Tribunal (WB) 1.60
The West Bengal Commercial Taxes,  Appellate 
& Revision Board

57.20

The Kolkata, High Court 2.88
The Sr. Joint Commissioner, Commercial Tax 33.15
The Joint Commissioner, Commercial Tax 215.58

 c) According to the records of the Company, there are no amounts that are due to be transferred to the Investor EducaƟ on and 
ProtecƟ on Fund in accordance with the relevant   provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 (1 of 1956) and rules made there under.

viii. The Company does not have accumulated losses at the end of the fi nancial year. The Company has not incurred cash losses during the 
fi nancial year covered by the audit and in the immediately preceding fi nancial year.

ix. Based on our audit procedures and according to the informaƟ on and explanaƟ ons given to us, we are of the opinion that the Company 
has not defaulted in repayment of dues to fi nancial insƟ tuƟ ons, banks and debenture holders.

x. In our opinion and according to the informaƟ on & explanaƟ ons given to us, the Company has not given guarantees for loans taken by 
others from banks and fi nancial insƟ tuƟ ons. Therefore the provision of the clause 3 (x) of the order are not applicable to the Company.

xi. The Company has not raised new term loans during the year. The term loans outstanding at the beginning of the year have been 
applied for the purposes for which they were raised.

xii. In our opinion and according to the informaƟ on and explanaƟ ons given to us, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the 
Company has been noƟ ced or reported during the year.

For SRB & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. No. 310009E 

Bisworanjan Sutar
(Partner)

Membership No.066708
Kolkata
15th day of May, 2015
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2015

ParƟ culars Notes  As at
March 31, 2015

As at
March 31, 2014

I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. Shareholders’ Funds

(a) Share capital 2  1,310.68  1,310.68 
(b) Reserves and surplus 3  6,707.52  7,357.63 

 8,018.20  8,668.31 

2. Non-current liabiliƟ es
(a) Deferred tax liabiliƟ es (net) 4  (19.36)  38.24 
(b) Long term provisions 5  126.40  114.04 

 107.04  152.28 

3. Current liabiliƟ es
(a) Other current liabiliƟ es 6  137.56  150.43 
(b) Short term provisions 7  24.92  36.48 

 162.48  186.91 
TOTAL  8,287.72  9,007.50 

II. ASSETS
1. Non current assets

(a) Fixed assets 8
Tangible assets  295.15  412.96 
Intangible assets  41.36  28.12 

(b) Non-current investments 9  3,675.04  3,695.04 
(c) Long term loans and advances 10  32.53  54.61 

 4,044.08  4,190.73 

2. Current assets
(a) Current Investments 11  310.50 –
(b) Inventories 12  6.47 –
(c) Trade receivables 13  464.10  12.27 
(d) Cash and Cash equivalents 14  192.56  296.75 
(e) Short term loans and advances 15  3,270.01  4,507.75 

 4,243.64  4,816.77 
TOTAL  8,287.72  9,007.50

  
Signifi cant AccounƟ ng Policies 1
See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements  2-32
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the fi nancial statements

(` In Lacs)

As per our Report aƩ ached of even date
For SRB & Associates 
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. No. 310009E  
Bisworanjan Sutar 
(Partner) 
Membership No.066708 
Kolkata 
15th day of May, 2015

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors
Suresh Kumar Agrawal Managing Director 
DIN:00520769    

Sunil Kumar Agrawal Director  
DIN:00091784    

Sanjay Kumar Singhania Chief Financial Officer

Raj Kumar Banthia Company Secretary
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As per our Report aƩ ached of even date
For SRB & Associates 
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. No. 310009E  
Bisworanjan Sutar 
(Partner) 
Membership No.066708 
Kolkata 
15th day of May, 2015

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors
Suresh Kumar Agrawal Managing Director 
DIN:00520769    

Sunil Kumar Agrawal Director  
DIN:00091784    

Sanjay Kumar Singhania Chief Financial Officer

Raj Kumar Banthia Company Secretary

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2015

ParƟ culars Notes For the year ended
March 31, 2015

For the year ended 
March 31, 2014

I. Income
Net Revenue from OperaƟ ons 16  64.11  57,072.40 

Other income 17  2,362.44  2,667.93 

Total Revenue  2,426.55  59,740.33 

II. Expenses

Cost of materials consumed (including trading goods) 18  34.87  42,569.40 

Changes in Inventories of fi nished goods, 
Work-in-progress and stock-in-trade

19 –  (145.52)

Employee benefi ts expense 20  735.96  2,234.97 

Finance costs 21  20.04  1,602.02 

DepreciaƟ on and amorƟ zaƟ on expense 8  88.39  1,152.36 

Other expenses 22  650.19  9,356.95 

Total Expenses  1,529.45  56,770.18

  

III. Profi t before tax  897.10  2,970.15 

IV. Tax expenses

Current tax  195.00  640.00 

Deferred tax  (57.60)  29.63 

Short Provision for Earlier Year  22.64 –

Total tax expenses  160.04  669.63 

V. Profi t for the year  737.06  2,300.52 

VI. Basic and diluted Earnings per equity share of face value 
of Rs. 2/- each

24  1.12  3.51 

Signifi cant AccounƟ ng Policies 1
See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements 2-32

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the fi nancial statements

(` In Lacs)
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As per our Report aƩ ached of even date
For SRB & Associates 
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. No. 310009E  
Bisworanjan Sutar 
(Partner) 
Membership No.066708 
Kolkata 
15th day of May, 2015

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors
Suresh Kumar Agrawal Managing Director 
DIN:00520769    

Sunil Kumar Agrawal Director  
DIN:00091784    

Sanjay Kumar Singhania Chief Financial Officer

Raj Kumar Banthia Company Secretary

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2015

ParƟ culars
 For the year ended 

March 31, 2015
 For the year ended 

March 31, 2014
A: CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net Profi t before Tax: 897.10 2970.15
Adjustment for:
DepreciaƟ on/ AmorƟ saƟ on 88.39 1152.36
Finance Cost & Interest Expense 20.04 1602.02
Interest Income -251.60 -562.08
Loss on Fixed Assets Sold / Discarded (Net) 1.90 63.70
Prior Period & ExcepƟ onal Items (Net) 0.21 35.85
Dividend from Mutual Fund -7.02 -54.10
Dividend from Subsidiary Company -2103.82 -2011.98
OperaƟ ng Profi t before Working Capital Changes -1354.80 3195.92
Adjustment for:
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade & Other Receivables 1415.80 -14048.20
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories -6.47 -948.13
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade & Other Payables -12.07 24916.44
Cash Generated from OperaƟ ons 42.46 13116.03
Direct Taxes Paid -371.32 -457.80
Cash Flow before Prior Period & ExcepƟ onal items -328.86 12658.23
Prior Period & ExcepƟ onal Items (Net) -0.21 -35.85
Net Cash Flow from OperaƟ ng AcƟ viƟ es                   -329.07 12622.38

B: CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of Fixed Assets and change in Capital work in progress -48.34 -1377.19
(Including Capital Work in Progress and capital advances)
Sale of Fixed Assets 6.13 95.85
Increase in Investment -310.50 -735.00
Interest Received 223.50 537.82
Dividend Received from Mutual Fund 7.02 54.10
Dividend from Subsidiary Company 1677.79 2011.98
Net Cash Flow from/(Used in) InvesƟ ng AcƟ viƟ es                           1555.60 587.56

C: CASH  FLOW  FROM  FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Repayment of Long Term Borrowings – -2414.76
(Repayment of )/ Proceeds from Short Term Borrowings (Net) – -6546.14
Payment of Dividend  on Equity Shares -1310.68 -1310.68
Interest etc. Paid -20.04 -1602.02
Net Cash Flow From/(Used in ) Financing AcƟ viƟ es                  -1330.72 -11873.60

D: Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents -104.19 1336.34
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at 1st April 296.75 203.46
Transferred Pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement – -1243.05
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at 31st March 192.56 296.75

Note: Previous year’s fi gures have been rearranged and regrouped wherever considered necessary.

(` In Lacs)
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Note 1: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Annexed to and forming part of the fi nancial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2015)

I)  Basis of preparaƟ on of Financial Statement
 The fi nancial statements are prepared under the Historical cost convenƟ on method, using the accrual system of 

accounƟ ng in accordance with the Generally Accepted AccounƟ ng Principles in India including the AccounƟ ng 
Standards specifi ed under SecƟ on 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014.

II)   Revenue RecogniƟ on
 Revenue from sale of goods and services rendered is recognized upon transfer of Ɵ tle and rendering of services 

to the customers.
• Sales include trade sales.
• Gross Sales include applicable taxes unless separately charged and are net of discount.
• Sales are recognized on dispatch except consignment sales which are recognized on receipt of statement 

of accounts from the agent.
III)   Use of EsƟ mates
 The preparaƟ on of fi nancial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires judgements  esƟ mates and 

assumpƟ ons to be made that aff ect the reported amount of assets and liabiliƟ es, disclosure of conƟ ngent 
liabiliƟ es on the date of the fi nancial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during 
the reporƟ ng period. Diff erence between the actual results and esƟ mates are recognized in the period in which 
the results are known/materialized. 

IV)   Fixed Assets
 Fixed Assets are stated at cost of acquisiƟ on inclusive of duƟ es ( net of CENVAT/VAT), taxes, borrowing costs 

directly aƩ ributable to acquisiƟ on, incidental expenses and erecƟ on/ commissioning  etc., upto the date, the 
asset is ready for its intended use.

V)   Impairment of Assets
 The carrying amount of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine if there is any indicaƟ on of 

impairment based on external/internal factor. An impairment loss is recognised wherever the carrying amount 
of an asset exceeds it's recoverable amount which represents the greater of the net selling price and value in 
use of the assets. The esƟ mated cash fl ows considered for determining the value in use, are discounted to the 
present value at weighted average cost of capital.

 VI)  Foreign currency transacƟ on
a) IniƟ al RecogniƟ on
 Foreign currency transacƟ ons are recorded in the reporƟ ng currency, by applying to the foreign currency 

amount the exchange rate between the reporƟ ng currency and the foreign currency at the date of the 
transacƟ on.

b)  Conversion
 Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate. Non-monetary items which are 

carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate 
at the date of the transacƟ on; and non-monetary items which are carried at fair value or other similar 
valuaƟ on denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rates that existed when the 
values were determined.

c)  Exchange Diff erences 
 Exchange diff erences arising on the seƩ lement/conversion of monetary items are  recognized as income 

or expenses in the year in which they arise.
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 The premium or discount arising at the incepƟ on of forward exchange contracts is amorƟ sed as expenses 
or income over the life of the respecƟ ve contracts. Exchange diff erences on such contracts are recognised 
in the statement of profi t and loss in the year in which the exchange rates change. Any profi t or loss 
arising on cancellaƟ on or renewal of forward exchange contract is recognised as income or expense for 
the year.

VII)   DepreciaƟ on 
a)   DepreciaƟ on on all Fixed Assets is provided as per Schedule II of Companies Act, 2013 under Straight Line 

Method over esƟ mated useful lives for each category of assets as under: 
 • Factory Building  :   30  years
 • Plant and Machinery                     :  10 to 20 years
 • Electrical InstallaƟ on and Equipments  :  10  Years
 • Furniture and Fixture                       :  10  Years
 • Offi  ce Equipment                            :  5  Years
 • Motor Vehicles                            :  8  Years
 • Computers                                     :  3  Years
  b)    DepreciaƟ on includes amorƟ saƟ on of leasehold land over the period of lease. 
  c)   The residual value of assets has been considered as fi ve percent of the original cost of the assets as per 

Schedule II of the Act.    
  d)  DepreciaƟ on is provided on pro-rata basis on addiƟ ons and deleƟ ons of Fixed Assets during the  year. 
  e)  In case of impairment, if any, depreciaƟ on is provided on the revised carrying amount of the assets over 

its remaining useful life.
  f)  SoŌ ware costs are amorƟ zed using the Straight Line Method over esƟ mated useful life of 3 years.

VIII)   Investments
 Long term Investments are stated at Cost less provisions recorded to recognise any decline,other than temporary, 

in the carrying value of each investment. Investments in foreign companies are considered at the exchange 
rates prevailing on the date of their acquisiƟ on. Current investments are carried at lower of cost or fair value of 
each investment. Short term Investments in liquid fund scheme of mutual funds have been stated at their NAV 
on year end date or purchase price whichever is less.

IX)   Inventories
        Inventories are valued as follows:

a) Raw materials, fi nished goods, Stock in trade, Work in process, Packing materials and stores & spares 
are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Closing stock has been valued on Weighted Average 
basis. 

b) Saleable scraps, whose cost is not idenƟ fi able, are valued at esƟ mated realisable value.
X)  Research & Development
 Research and development expenditure of revenue nature are charged to Profi t & Loss Account, while capital 

expenditure are added to the cost of fi xed assets in the year in which these are incurred.
XI)    Employee Benefi ts

i)  Short term employee benefi ts are charged off  at the undiscounted amount in the year in which the related 
services is rendered.

ii)  Post employment and other long term employee benefi ts are charged off  in the year in which the employee 
has rendered services. The amount charged off  is recognised at the present value of the amounts payable 
determined using actuarial valuaƟ on techniques. Actuarial gain and losses in respect of post employment 
and other long term benefi ts are charged to Profi t and Loss Account/Project Development Expenditure 
Account.

XII)    Earning Per Share
 Basic earning per share is calculated by dividing the net Profi t or Loss for the period aƩ ributable to equity 

shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. 
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 For the purpose of calculaƟ ng diluted earnings per share, the net profi t or loss for the period aƩ ributable to 
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for 
the eff ects of all diluƟ ve potenƟ al equity shares.

XIII) Excise Duty and Custom Duty
 Excise duty on fi nished goods stock lying at factories is accounted for at the point of manufacture of goods 

and accordingly, is considered for valuaƟ on of fi nished goods as on the Balance Sheet date. Custom duty on 
imported material in transit / lying in bonded warehouse is accounted for at the Ɵ me, the same are released 
from Customs/ Bonded warehouse.

XIV) Financial DerivaƟ ves and Commodity Hedging TransacƟ ons 
 In respect of derivaƟ ve contracts, premium paid, gains/losses on seƩ lement and provision for losses for cash 

fl ow hedges are recognised in the Profi t and Loss Account, except in case where they relate to borrowing costs 
that are aƩ ributable to the acquisiƟ on or construcƟ on of fi xed assets, in which case, they are adjusted to the 
carrying cost of such assets. 

XV) Borrowing Costs
 Borrowing Costs relaƟ ng to acquisiƟ on / construcƟ on of qualifying assets are capitalized unƟ l the Ɵ me all 

substanƟ al acƟ viƟ es necessary to prepare the qualifying assets for their intended use are complete. A qualifying 
asset is one that necessarily takes substanƟ al period of Ɵ me to get ready for its intended use. All other borrowing 
costs are charged to revenue.

XVI) TaxaƟ on
 Tax expenses comprises of current and deferred tax.  Current income tax is measured at the amount expected 

to be paid to the tax authoriƟ es in accordance with the Indian Income Tax Act, 1961. Deferred income taxes 
refl ects the impact of current year Ɵ ming diff erences between taxable income for the year and reversal of 
Ɵ ming diff erences of earlier years.

 The deferred tax for Ɵ ming diff erences between the book and tax profi ts for the year is accounted for using the 
tax rates and laws that have been substanƟ ally enacted as on the Balance Sheet date. Deferred tax assets are 
recognised only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that suffi  cient future taxable income will be 
available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised. If the company has carry forward unabsorbed 
depreciaƟ on and tax losses, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent there is virtual certainty 
supported by convincing evidence that suffi  cient taxable income will be available against which such deferred 
tax asset can be realized.

XVII) Segment ReporƟ ng 
a)  IdenƟ fi caƟ on of segments
 The company has idenƟ fi ed its business segments as the primary segments . The company’s  businesses 

are organized and managed separately according to the nature of products/ services, with each segment 
represenƟ ng a strategic business unit that off ers diff erent product / services and serves diff erent markets. 
The analysis of geographical segments is based on the areas in which the customers of the company are 
located.

b)  AllocaƟ on of Common Costs
 Common allocable costs are allocated to each segment on case to case basis applying the raƟ o, appropriate 

to each relevant case. Revenue and expenses, which relate to the enterprise as a whole and are not 
allocable to segment on a reasonable basis, have been included under the head “Unallocated”.

 The accounƟ ng policies adopted for segment reporƟ ng are in line with those of the Company.
XVIII) Prior Period Expenses/Income
 Material items of prior period expenses/income are disclosed separately.
XIX)  Provision, ConƟ ngent LiabiliƟ es and ConƟ ngent Assets
 Provisions involving substanƟ al degree of esƟ maƟ on in measurement are recognised when there is a present 

obligaƟ on as a result of past events and it is probable that there will be an ouƞ low of resources. ConƟ ngent 
LiabiliƟ es are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes. ConƟ ngent Assets are neither recognised nor 
disclosed in the fi nancial statements. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2015
(` In Lacs)

ParƟ culars  As at March 31, 2015  As at March 31, 2014

2. Share capital
a) Authorised:

70,000,000 (70,000,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 2/- each   1,400.00  1,400.00 
1,250,000 (1,250,000) Preference Shares of Rs. 20/- each  250.00  250.00 

 1,650.00  1,650.00 
b) Issued, Subscribed and fully paid-up Shares:

65,534,050 (65,534,050) Equity Shares of Rs. 2/- each fully paid up  1,310.68  1,310.68 
 1,310.68  1,310.68 

c) Details of aggregate number of shares, alloted without payment being received in cash,alloted as bonus shares and bought 
back, if any, for the period of fi ve years immediately preceeding the Balance Sheet date:
4,000,000 Equity Shares of Face Value of Rs. 2/- each were bought back and extinguished in the year 2010-11.

d) ReconciliaƟ on of the shares outstanding is set out below:

 As at March 31, 2015  As at March 31, 2014
Name of Shareholders  No. of 

shares 
 % 

holding 
 No. of 
shares 

 % 
holding 

Basudeo Agarwal  95,00,115  14.50  82,24,385 12.55
Suresh Kumar Agarwal  94,02,740  14.35  81,27,010 12.40
Mahabir Prasad Agarwal  54,48,245  8.31  41,72,515 6.37
Basant Kumar Agrawal – –  33,83,130 5.16

e) ReconciliaƟ on of the shares outstanding is set out below:

2014-15 2013-14
No. of shares No. of shares

Equity Shares
At the beginning of the period  6,55,34,050  6,55,34,050 
Outstanding at the end of the period  6,55,34,050  6,55,34,050 

f) The Company is not a Subsidiary Company.

g) No Shares has been reserved for issue under options and contracts/commitments for the sale of shares/
disinvestment

h) Terms/rights aƩ ached to each class of shares
Equity Shares: 
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.2/-. Each holder of equity shares is enƟ tled to one 
vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors 
is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General MeeƟ ng.

In the event of liquidaƟ on of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be enƟ tled to receive any of the remaining assets 
of the company, aŌ er distribuƟ on of all preferenƟ al amounts. The distribuƟ on will be in proporƟ on to the number of equity 
shares held by the shareholders.         
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ParƟ culars  As at March 31, 2015  As at March 31, 2014
3. Reserves and surplus

A. Capital Reserve
As per last Balance Sheet  128.68  128.68 

B. Capital RedempƟ on Reserve 
As per last Balance Sheet  317.40  317.40 

C. SecuriƟ es Premium Reserve
As per last Balance Sheet  3,002.80  18,983.55 
Less: Transferred Pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement (Refer Note No. 29.4)          –  3,002.80  15,980.75  3,002.80 

D. AmalgamaƟ on Reserve
As per last Balance Sheet  123.45  123.45 

E. Investment Reserve
As per last Balance Sheet  89.58  89.58 

F. General Reserve
As per last Balance Sheet  344.51  27,803.75 
Add: Transfer from Surplus in the statement of profi t and loss  -    1,000.00 
Less: DepreciaƟ on (Refer Note No. 30)  56.49  –
Less: Investment cancelled (Refer Note No. 29.5) 20.00
Less: Transferred Pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement (Refer Note No. 29.4)  – 268.02 28,459.24 344.51

G. Surplus in the statement of profi t and loss
As per last Balance Sheet  3,351.21  3,361.37
Less: Transfer to General Reserve –  1,000.00 

 3,351.21  2,361.37 
Add : Profi t for the period/year  737.06  2,300.52 

 4,088.27  4,661.89 
Less : AppropriaƟ ons
Dividend on Equity Shares  1,310.68  2,777.59  1,310.68  3,351.21 

Total  6,707.52  7,357.63

4. Deferred tax liabiliƟ es (net)  
a) Deferred Tax Liability

Timing diff erence in depreciable assets  3.61  36.37 
b) Deferred Tax Assets

Expenses allowable against taxable income in future years  22.97  (1.87)
Net Deferred tax Liability (a-b)  (19.36)  38.24 

5. Long term provisions
Provision for Employee Benefi t  126.40  114.04 
Total  126.40  114.04 

6. Other current liabiliƟ es
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings  4.33  4.33 
Unpaid dividends (Unclaimed)#  20.40  20.40 
Money refundable on Public Issue allotment (Unclaimed)#  3.14  3.14 
Other Payables *  109.69  122.56 
Total   137.56  150.43 

*Other Payables includes Statutory Dues, Advances from Customers & 
Overdrawn Balances from banks.
# These fi gures do not include any amount which is due and outstanding for 
credit to Investor EducaƟ on and ProtecƟ on Fund.

7. Short term provisions
Provision for Employee Benefi ts  24.92  36.48 

Total  24.92  36.48 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2015 (Contd.)
(` In Lacs)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2015 (Contd.)
(` In Lacs)

ParƟ culars
 No. of 
Shares/ 

Units

Face Value 
per Share/
Units (Rs.)

 As at 
 March 
31,2015

 As at 
 March 
31,2014

9. Non-current investments
(i) Trade Investments  

Investment in Equity Instruments  
Quoted & Fully Paid Up

United Spirits Ltd  47 10  0.09  0.09 
Mansarovar BoƩ ling Co. Ltd  5000 10  0.88  0.88 

Unquoted & Fully Paid Up  
Agro Co-OperaƟ ve Urban Bank Ltd  300 100  0.30  0.30 

(ii) Other Investments
Investment in Equity Instruments

Unquoted & Fully Paid Up
Singur - Haripal Rural Co-operaƟ ve Society Ltd. 90 10  0.01  0.01 
AGR Capital Markets Ltd. 30000 10  6.00  6.00 
Maxell SecuriƟ es Ltd. 47500 10  4.75  4.75 

Investment in Government or Trust securiƟ es
Unquoted & Fully Paid Up

6 Years NaƟ onal Savings CerƟ fi cates 0.35 0.35

Investment in Equity Shares of Subsidiary Companies
Unquoted & Fully Paid Up

MINL Ltd.  907,897,869 1.00 Niara  2,874.17  2,874.17 
Dynatech Industries (Ghana) Ltd.  843,961 10,000 Cedi  478.49  478.49 
Manaksia Overseas Ltd.  50,000 10  5.00  5.00 
Manaksia Aluminium Co Ltd.**  - (500000) 1 –  5.00 
Manaksia Ferro Industries Ltd.  3,050,000 10  305.00  305.00 
Manaksia Coated Metals & Industries Ltd.**  - (500000) 1 –  5.00 
Manaksia Steels Ltd.**  - (500000) 1 –  5.00 
Manaksia Industries Ltd.**  - (500000) 1 –  5.00 

 3,675.04  3,695.04 
Aggregate amount of investments :

Quoted  0.97  0.97 
Unquoted  3,674.07  3,694.07 
Market Value of Quoted Investments  1.25  1.75 

Note: 6 Years NaƟ onal Savings CerƟ fi cates are lodged with Directorate of Commercial Taxes.         
**(Refer Note No. 29.5)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2015 (Contd.)
(` In Lacs)

ParƟ culars  As at March 31, 2015  As at March 31, 2014

10. Long term loans and advances
(Unsecured, considered good) 
Capital advances –  29.61 
Security Deposit  32.53  25.00 
Total  32.53  54.61 

11. Current Investments
Investment in Mutual Fund - Unquoted, Fully Paid up  310.50 –
Relaince Liquid Fund
(20,311 units @ 1,528.74 per unit Prev Year Nil)  310.50 –
Total

12. Inventories
At Lower of Cost or Net Realisable Value
Stores & Spares  6.47 –
Total  6.47 –

13. Trade receivables
Considered Good :
Outstanding over six months –  11.67 
Other Debts  464.10  0.60 
Total  464.10  12.27 

14. Cash and Cash equivalents
Balances with Banks  151.18  254.45 
Fixed Deposits  1.50  1.57 
Unclaimed Dividend & Unclaimed Public Issue Allotment Money*  23.53  28.53 
Cash in Hand  16.35  12.20 
Total  192.56  296.75 
*These fi gures do not include any amount which is due and outstanding 
for credit to Investor EducaƟ on and ProtecƟ on Fund.

15. Short term loans and advances 
(Unsecured, considered good)
Loans and Advances to
Related ParƟ es (Subsidiary) –  1,150.00 
Others  1,696.59  2,376.34 
Balances with Statutory AuthoriƟ es  35.03  49.62 
Advance Income Tax (Net of Provision)  640.74  73.57 
Others*  897.65  858.22 
Total  3,270.01  4,507.75 

*Includes primarily Prepaid Expenses, Advance to Creditors & Advance to 
Staff     
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2015 (Contd.)
(` In Lacs)

ParƟ culars
 For the year ended 

March 31, 2015
 For the year ended 

March 31, 2014
16. Total Revenue 

Sale of products  64.11  58,639.32 
Other OperaƟ ng Income –  433.40 

 64.11  59,072.72 
Less : Excise Duty & Service Tax –  2,000.32 
Total  64.11  57,072.40 

16.1 ParƟ culars of Sale of Products
Packaging Products –  5,591.40 
Mosquito Coil –  4,253.65 
Metal Products  64.11  46,711.16 
Others –  2,083.01 

 64.11  58,639.22 

17. Other Income
Income from Long Term Investment :
Dividend From Subsidiary Company  2,103.82  2,011.98 
Income from Current Investment :
Tax Free Dividends From Mutual Funds  7.02  54.10 
Interest Income
From Banks –  138.87 
From Others  251.60  423.21 
Miscellaneous Income –  9.16 
Other Non OperaƟ ve Income –  30.61 
Total  2,362.44  2,667.93 

18. Cost of materials consumed
Opening Stock –  10,889.39 
Add : Purchases & Procurement Expenses  34.87  43289.73
Less: Inventories given over Pursuant to scheme of arrangement
(Refer Note No. 29.2)

– 11609.72

 34.87  42,569.40 
ParƟ culars of Materials Consumed
Metals –  37,024.09 
Others –  5,545.31 

–  42,569.40 

19. Changes in Inventories of fi nished goods, Work-in-progress 
and stock-in-trade

Opening Stock
Finished Goods –  3,918.15 
Work in Progress –    4,712.88 
Scrap –   292.74 

–  8,923.77 
Inventories given over pursuent to Scheme of Arrangement 
(Refer Note No. 29.2)
Finished Goods
Work in Progress –  3,685.12 
Scrap –  5,007.94 

–  376.23 
–  9,069.29 
–  (145.52)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2015 (Contd.)
(` In Lacs)

ParƟ culars
 For the year ended 

March 31, 2015
 For the year ended 

March 31, 2014
20. Employee benefi ts expense

Salaries, Wages and Bonus  525.37  1,692.69 
ContribuƟ on to provident & other funds  28.14  125.70 
Staff  Welfare Expenses  182.45  416.58 
Total  735.96  2,234.97 

20.1 Disclosure as per AccounƟ ng Standard 15 "Employee Benefi ts"
Provision for Employee Benefi ts  126.40  114.04 
Employee Benefi ts
i) Defi ned contribuƟ on Plan

ContribuƟ on to defi ned contribuƟ on plan, recognized are charged 
of during the year as follows:

Employees’ contribuƟ on to Provident Fund  28.14  26.37 
ii) Defi ned benefi t plan

Gratuity is paid to employees under the Payment of Gratuity Act 
1972 through unfunded scheme. The present value of obligaƟ on is 
determined based on actuarial valuaƟ on using projected unit credit 
method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to 
addiƟ onal unit of employee benefi t enƟ tlement and measures each 
unit separately to build up the fi nal obligaƟ on.

a) ReconciliaƟ on of opening and closing balances of defi ned 
obligaƟ on:   

1) Defi ned benefi t obligaƟ on at the beginning of the 
period

 114.04  123.07 

2) Current service cost  8.03 7.59
3) Interest cost  55.74 45.98
4) Actuarial (gain) / loss  (40.95)  (56.35)
5) Benefi t paid  (10.46) (6.25) 
6) Defi ned benefi t obligaƟ on at the end of the period  126.40 114.04

b) ReconciliaƟ on of fair value assets and obligaƟ ons:
1) Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the period  NIL NIL
2) Present value of obligaƟ ons as at end of the period  126.40 114.07
3) Amount recognized in balance sheet  126.40 114.07

c) Expenses recognized during the year (under the Note “Em-
ployee Benefi ts  Expense”)
1) Current service cost  8.03  7.59 
2) Interest cost  55.74  45.98 
3) Actuarial (gain) / Loss  (40.95)  (56.35)
4) Net amount  22.82  (2.78)

d) Actuarial assumptions
1) Mortality table  LIC  LIC 
2) Discount rate (per annum) 7.75% 8.25%
3) Rate of escalation in salary (per annum) 5% 5%
4) Expected average remaining working lives of 

employees(years)
 12.97 18.68

The esƟ mates of rate of escalaƟ on in salary considered in actuarial valuaƟ on, takes into account infl aƟ on,seniority, promoƟ on and other 
relevant factors. The above informaƟ on has been cerƟ fi ed by the actuaries. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2015 (Contd.)
(` In Lacs)

ParƟ culars
 For the year ended 

March 31, 2015
 For the year ended 

March 31, 2014
21. Finance costs

Interest Expenses
   On Fixed Loans –  518.61 
   On Others  18.98  794.82 
Other Borrowing Cost  1.06  288.59 
Total  20.04  1,602.02 

22. Other expenses
ConsumpƟ on of Stores and Consumables
   Indigenous –  720.27 
   Imported –  46.57 
Power & Fuel –  2,030.08 
Processing Charges –  19.96 
Clearing Charges –  368.57 
Carriage Inward  0.10  134.81 
Lease Rent –  0.01 
Repairs to:
Building  0.45  39.27 
Machinery  4.54  213.11 
Others  0.39  25.76 
Other Manufacturing Expenses –  301.28 
Rent  7.15  39.95 
Insurance  19.98  40.50 
Rates & Taxes  11.87  290.58 
Packing Expenses  0.26  1,164.81 
Freight, Forwarding and Handling Expenses  2.21  1,698.85 
Exchange FluctuaƟ on  30.51  627.67 
CommunicaƟ on Expenses  16.58  63.13 
Travelling & Conveyance  23.45  336.32 
Auditors' RemuneraƟ on 
Auditor
Audit Fees  6.50  19.00 
Tax Audit Fees –  3.11 
For reimbursment of expenses –  0.16 
Net Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets  1.90  63.70 
DonaƟ ons  8.37  8.55 
Commission –  14.48 
Prior Period Items  0.21  35.85 
Other Miscellaneous Expenses  515.72  1,050.60 

 650.19  9,356.95 
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ADDITIONAL NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

23. ConƟ ngent LiabiliƟ es & Commitments:

I) ConƟ ngent Liability

 Claims against the company/disputed liabiliƟ es not acknowledged as Debts                                                                          (` In Lacs)

Sl. 
No.

ParƟ culars 31st March, 2015 31st March, 2014

1 Sales tax under appeal 310.41 257.26
2 Income tax demands under appeal 92.04 77.75
3 Excise duty liability on goods exported pending submission of proof of export 55.21 388.89
4 Service Tax 88.65 88.65

24. Earnings per share (EPS)                                                                                                                                                                               

ParƟ culars 31st March, 2015 31st March, 2014
Profi t as per Profi t & Loss Account (` in Lacs) 737.06 2,300.52
Weighted average number of equity shares 6,55,34,050 6,55,34,050
Nominal value per equity share (`) 2 2
Basic and diluted earning per share (EPS) 1.12 3.51

25. InformaƟ on pursuant to the provisions of Clause viii of the General InstrucƟ ons for preparaƟ on of statement of profi t and loss of 
the  Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013.

a.  CIF Value of Import: (` In Lacs)

ParƟ culars 31st March, 2015 31st March, 2014
Capital goods NIL NIL
Raw materials and other purchases NIL 33,153.00
Spares parts and chemicals NIL 160.70

b.  Expenditure in foreign currencies: (` In Lacs)

ParƟ culars 31st March, 2015 31st March, 2014
Interest on Loans From Banks & Financial InsƟ tuƟ ons NIL 171.00
Others NIL 56.63

c.  Value of Raw materials and spare parts consumed: (` In Lacs)

ParƟ culars
2014-15 2013-14

Amount       % Amount %
Raw Materials:
Indigenous 34.87 100.00 13,743.45 28.69
Imported                           – – 28,825.94 71.31
Total 34.87 100.00 42,569.40 100.00
Stores & Spares:
Indigenous – – 720.27 93.93
Imported                           – – 46.57 6.07
Total – – 766.84 100.00
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d.  Amount remiƩ ed in Foreign Currency towards dividend:                                                                                                         

ParƟ culars 31st March, 2015 31st March, 2014

Number of Non Resident Shareholders 170 173

Ordinary Shares Held 81,607 49,060

Amount remiƩ ed and/or paid in Indian Currency (` in lacs) 1.63 0.98

Year to Which Dividend Relates 2014-15 2013-14

e.  Earnings in foreign exchange:                                                                                                                                                               (` In Lacs) 

ParƟ culars 31st March, 2015 31st March, 2014

Export of Goods & Services (F.O.B. Value Including Freight Realised) 64.11 38,964.06

Interest Income from Subsidiary Co. NIL 82.71

Dividend Income from Subsidiary Co. 2103.82  2011.98

26.  Related Party Disclosure:

a)  Name & RelaƟ onship of the Related ParƟ es        

ParƟ culars RelaƟ onship
MINL Ltd.

Subsidiary Companies

Dynatech Industries Ghana Ltd.

Jebba Paper Mills Ltd (Subsidiary of MINL Ltd.)

Manaksia Ferro Industries Ltd.

Manaksia Overseas Ltd.

Mark Steels Ltd.

(Subsidiary of  Manaksia Ferro Industries Ltd)

Manaksia Aluminium Company Ltd.

EnƟ Ɵ es where KMP and RelaƟ ves have signifi cant infl uenceManaksia Coated Metals & Industries Ltd.

Manaksia Steels Ltd.

Mr. Suresh Kumar Agrawal 

Key Management Personnel

Mr. Basudeo Agrawal (w.e.f  23.11.2014)

Mr. Mahabir Prasad Agrawal (w.e.f  23.11.2014)

Mr. Raj Kumar Banthia (w.e.f 15.10.2014)

Mr. Sanjay Kumar Singhania (w.e.f  30.05.2014)
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b.  TransacƟ ons during the year with related parƟ es                                                                                   (` In Lacs)

Sl. 
No.

Nature of TransacƟ ons
During the 

period of April -14 
to March -15

During the 
period of April -13 

to March-14
1 Purchase of Goods/Services

MINL Ltd. NIL 1261.04
Total NIL 1261.04

2 Sale of Goods/Services
MINL Ltd. 64.11 30587.41
Dynatech Industries Ghana Ltd. Nil 3084.35
Jebba Paper Mills Ltd. Nil 229.31
Total 64.11 33901.07

3 Interest Income
Manaksia Coated Metals & Industries Ltd. 53.10 NIL
Manaksia Aluminium Company Ltd. Nil 3.17
Total 53.10 3.17

4 Interest Expense
Manaksia Coated Metals & Industries Ltd. Nil 0.93
Manaksia Steels Ltd. 42.17 3.34
Manaksia Aluminium Company Ltd. 14.66 NIL
Total 56.83 4.27

5 Dividend Income
MINL Ltd. 2103.82 2011.98
Total 2103.82 2011.98

6 RemuneraƟ on of  KMP 
Mr. Suresh Kumar Agrawal 60.00 60.00
Mr. Mahabir Prasad Agrawal 10.67 NIL
Mr. Basudeo Agrawal 10.67 NIL
Mr. Raj Kumar Banthia 4.18 NIL
Mr. Sanjay Kumar Singhania 10.02 NIL
Total 95.54 60.00

7 Amount Due from/to as on 31st March 2015
a. Trade Receivable
     MINL Ltd. 453.19 NIL
     Total 453.19 NIL
b. Loan Given
Manaksia Coated Metals & Industries Ltd NIL 1150.00
     Total NIL 1150.00

8 Finance(including loans & equity ContribuƟ ons,advances, in cash or kind) 
given/repaid (Net)

Mark Steels Ltd NIL 49.00
Total NIL 49.00

Notes : 
i)  TransacƟ ons have taken place on arm’s length basis. 
ii) No amount in respect of debts pertaining to the related parƟ es have been wriƩ en off  or wriƩ en back during the year.      
iii) No provision for doubƞ ul debts is required to be made for the year in respect of debt due from related parƟ es.
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27. ParƟ culars  31st March, 2015  31st March, 2014
Prior Period Items : 
(a) Expenditure

AdverƟ sement – 3.95
Bank Charges – 0.03
Commission – 1.67
Transport – 2.40
Duty Drawback – 5.84
Entry Tax – 3.37
Jobwork Charges – 0.51
PrinƟ ng and StaƟ onery – 0.02
Job Work Charges – 6.13
Professional Charges –        6.38
Repairs To Machinery – 0.19
Salaries, Wages and Bonus – 5.56
Service Tax 2.31 –
Total (a) 2.31 36.05

(b) Income
Telephone Charges-WriƩ en Back – 0.20
Professional Charges-WriƩ en Back 2.10 –
Total (b) 2.10 0.20
Total (Net) (a-b) 0.21 35.85

28. As per the AccounƟ ng Standard on Segment ReporƟ ng (AS-17), segment informaƟ on has been provided in the Notes to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements.

29.1  The cerƟ fi ed copy of the Order of Hon’ble CalcuƩ a High Court sancƟ oning the Scheme of Arrangement under secƟ on 391 to 394 
of the Companies Act, 1956 (“the Scheme”) for demerger of the Aluminium, Steel, Packaging and Coated Metal & Mosquito Coil 
Undertakings of Manaksia Ltd. on a going concern basis w.e.f. the appointed date (i.e. 1st October 2013) into four wholly owned 
subsidiaries namely Manaksia Aluminium Company Limited, Manaksia Steels Limited, Manaksia Industries Limited and Manaksia 
Coated Metals & Industries Limited respecƟ vely as approved by shareholders in the court convened meeƟ ng on 7th January, 2014 with 
requisite majority was received on 19th November, 2014 and with fi ling of the same with the Registrar of Companies, West Bengal on 
23.11.2014, the scheme has become operaƟ onal.

29.2  Pursuant to the Scheme, the said transfer has been aff ected at the values appearing in the books of the Company as at 30th September, 
2013 and recorded as such in book of accounts of all the four  transferee Companies. The book value of assets and liabiliƟ es as on that 
date has been detailed out below:

(` In Lacs)
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(` In Lacs)

ParƟ culars

Manaksia 
Aluminium 
Company 
Limited

Manaksia 
Steels 

Limited

Manaksia 
Coated 

Metals & 
Industries 

Limited

Manaksia 
Industries 

Limited
Total

Assets Given Away
Non-current assets
(a) Fixed assets

(i) Tangible assets 9,762.91      6,578.59       9,445.66  4,560.73      30,347.89 
(ii) Intangible assets –   – – 2.43                2.43 
(iii) Capital work-in-progress 1,120.85  1,013.23       1,408.85          393.85        3,936.78 

(b) Non-current investments 0.10                 0.06          3,239.30        3,239.46 
(c) Long Term Loans & Advances  35.10 31.11             52.56     69.58            188.35 

Current assets      
(a) Current Investment   735.00 – – –            735.00 
(b) Inventories 5,632.29 6,191.30       5,616.75          5,362.92      22,803.26 
(c) Trade receivables   7,817.41 9,626.83       3,543.76          7,026.58      28,014.58 
(d) Cash and Cash equivalents 1,023.27      6.82           134.27               78.69        1,243.05 
(e) Short term loans and advances    3,652.41   7,159.14       2,487.88          6,351.26      19,650.69 

Total Assets 29,779.34   30,607.02     22,689.79       27,085.34   110,161.49 

LiabiliƟ es Given Away      
Non-Current LiabiliƟ es      
(a) Long-term borrowings      

Rupee Loan 2,800.00 –           281.13          2,390.00        5,471.13 
Unsecured Loan - Deferred Sales tax – –       1,694.09          1,130.29        2,824.38 

(b) Deferred tax liabiliƟ es (Net) 1,662.20    866.27       1,699.57             573.50        4,801.54 
(c) Long term provisions      34.09 53.67             30.81             345.60            464.17 

Current LiabiliƟ es      
(a) Short-term borrowings-Rupees   720.62    313.15       2,432.79          3,360.06        6,826.62 
(b) Trade payables 11,240.30  13,226.47       5,510.32          6,078.53      36,055.62 
(c) Other current liabiliƟ es      

Unsecured Loan - Deferred Sales tax  –             176.74               62.70            239.44 
Secured Loan - Rupee Loan    800.00 –       1,000.00             510.00        2,310.00 
Others  1,253.21 3,066.30           970.95             915.15        6,205.61 

(d) Short-term provisions    104.42       83.68           214.83             120.06            522.99 
Total       18,614.84 17,609.54     14,011.23       15,485.89      65,721.50 
Net Assets transferred  11,164.50 12,997.48       8,678.56       11,599.45      44,439.99 
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29.3   Further in terms of the Scheme, as on record date, shareholders of the Company holding 1 equity share of nominal value of Rs 2/- 
each fully paid  have  received: 

 1) 1 (One) Equity Share of nominal value of Re 1/- credited as fully paid in Manaksia Aluminium Company Limited

 2) 1 (One) Equity Share of nominal value of Re 1/- credited as fully paid in Manaksia Steels Limited

 3) 1 (One) Equity Share of nominal value of Re 1/- credited as fully paid in Manaksia Coated Metals & Industries Limited

 4) 1 (One) Equity Share of nominal value of Re 1/- credited as fully paid in Manaksia Industries Limited

29.4 As sƟ pulated in the Scheme, excess of net assets so transferred, amounƟ ng to Rs. 44,439.99 lacs has been adjusted against Reservesin 
the fi nancial statements in the sequence hereunder:

 Firstly, against Security Premium Reserve

 The balance against General Reserves

 AllocaƟ on                                                                                                                                                                                                    (` In Lacs) 

ParƟ culars

Manaksia 
Aluminium 
Company 
Limited

Manaksia 
Steels 

Limited

Manaksia 
Coated 

Metals & 
Industries 

Limited

Manaksia 
Industries 

Limited
Total

Share Capital* 655.34 655.34 655.34 655.34        2,621.36 
SecuriƟ es Premium 4014.79 4673.93 3120.83 4171.20      15,980.75 
General Reserve* 6494.37 7668.21 4902.39 6772.91      25,837.88 
Total  11,164.50 12,997.48       8,678.56      11,599.45      44,439.99 

 * Share Capital adjusted against General Reserve. Thus total adjustment with General Reserve is Rs. 28,459.24 Lacs.

29.5   Pursuant to the Scheme between Manaksia Limited and Manaksia Aluminium Company Limited, Manaksia Steels Limited, Manaksia 
Coated Metals & Industries Limited and Manaksia Industries Limited (the Companies), the Companies got demerged from the 
appointed date of 01.10.2013. Investment in Equity shares of demerged Companies were cancelled simultaneously upon allotment 
of shares by the demerged companies to the shareholders of Manaksia Ltd and this amount was adjusted with General Reserve of 
Manaksia Ltd.

30. Eff ecƟ ve from April 1, 2014, the Company has charged depreciaƟ on based on the revised remaining useful lives of the assets as per 
the requirement of Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. Due to above, depreciaƟ on charge for the year ended March 31, 2015, 
is higher and profi t aŌ er tax is lower by Rs. 20.39 lacs. An amount of Rs 56.49 Lacs (net of deferred tax) has been recognized in the 
opening balance of retained earnings for the assets where remaining useful life as per Schedule II is Nil.

31. Corresponding comparaƟ ve fi gures for the previous year have been regrouped and readjusted wherever considered necessary to 
confi rm to the current year presentaƟ on. 

32. Current period fi gures are for 12 months ended 31st March 2015 in respect of residual undertaking remaining aŌ er demerger and 
previous period fi gures include the results  of  enƟ re undertaking from start of Financial year (i.e 1st April 2013) to period prior to 
appointed date of demerger (i.e 30th September 2013). Since the reporƟ ng period of residual undertaking are not same, these 
fi gures are not comparable.  

Signatures to Note 1 to 32
In terms of our Report on even date

For SRB & Associates 
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. No. 310009E  
Bisworanjan Sutar 
(Partner) 
Membership No.066708 
Kolkata 
15th day of May, 2015

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors
Suresh Kumar Agrawal Managing Director 
DIN:00520769    

Sunil Kumar Agrawal Director  
DIN:00091784    

Sanjay Kumar Singhania Chief Financial Officer

Raj Kumar Banthia Company Secretary
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Manaksia Limited

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated fi nancial statements of Manaksia Limited (hereinaŌ er referred to as “the Holding 
Company”) and its subsidiaries (together referred to as “the Group”) its comprising of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 
2015, the Consolidated Statement of Profi t and Loss, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of 
the signifi cant accounƟ ng policies and other explanatory informaƟ on (hereinaŌ er referred to as “the Consolidated Financial Statements”).

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparaƟ on of these consolidated fi nancial statements in terms of the 
requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinaŌ er referred to as “the Act”) that give a true and fair view of the consolidated fi nancial 
posiƟ on, consolidated fi nancial performance and consolidated cash fl ows of the Group in accordance with the accounƟ ng principles generally 
accepted in India, including the AccounƟ ng Standards specifi ed under SecƟ on 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies(Accounts) 
Rules, 2014. The respecƟ ve Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group responsible for maintenance of adequate accounƟ ng 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for prevenƟ ng and detecƟ ng frauds and 
other irregulariƟ es; the selecƟ on and applicaƟ on of appropriate accounƟ ng policies; making judgments and esƟ mates that are reasonable 
and prudent; and the design, implementaƟ on and maintenance of adequate internal fi nancial controls, that were operaƟ ng eff ecƟ vely for 
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounƟ ng records, relevant to the preparaƟ on and presentaƟ on of the fi nancial statements 
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose 
of preparaƟ on of the consolidated fi nancial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid. 

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated fi nancial statements based on our audit. While conducƟ ng the audit, we 
have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounƟ ng and audiƟ ng standards and maƩ ers which are required to be included in 
the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on AudiƟ ng specifi ed under SecƟ on 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require 
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated 
fi nancial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the consolidated fi nancial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement 
of the consolidated fi nancial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal 
fi nancial control relevant to the Holding Company’s preparaƟ on of the consolidated fi nancial statements that give a true and fair view in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the 
Holding Company has an adequate internal fi nancial controls system over fi nancial reporƟ ng in place and the operaƟ ng eff ecƟ veness of such 
controls. An audit also includes evaluaƟ ng the appropriateness of the accounƟ ng policies used and the reasonableness of the accounƟ ng 
esƟ mates made by the Holding Company’s Board of Directors, as well as evaluaƟ ng the overall presentaƟ on of the consolidated fi nancial 
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their reports referred 
to in sub-paragraph (a) of the Other MaƩ ers paragraph below, are suffi  cient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
consolidated fi nancial Statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our informaƟ on and according to the explanaƟ ons given to us, the aforesaid consolidated fi nancial statements 
give the informaƟ on required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounƟ ng principles 
generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of aff airs of the Group, as at 31st March, 2015, and their consolidated profi t/loss and 
their consolidated cash fl ows for the year ended on that date.

Other MaƩ ers

(a)  We did not audit the fi nancial statements / fi nancial informaƟ on of MINL Ltd at Nigeria, Jeba Paper Mill Ltd at Nigeria, Mark Steels 
Ltd in India, Dynatech Industries Ghana Ltd at Ghana, Manaksia Overseas Ltd in India and Manaksia Ferro Industries Ltd in India, the 
subsidiaries, whose fi nancial statements / fi nancial informaƟ on refl ect total assets of Rs. 1,29,544.21 Lakhs as at 31st March, 2015, 
total revenues of Rs. 1,14,147.86 Lakhs and net cash fl ows amounƟ ng to Rs. 17909.72 Lakhs for the year ended on that date, as 
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considered in the consolidated fi nancial statements. These fi nancial statements / fi nancial informaƟ on have been audited by other 
auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated fi nancial statements, in 
so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, and our report in terms of sub-secƟ ons (3) 
and (11) of SecƟ on 143 of the Act, insofar as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated fi nancial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements below, is not Modifi ed in 
respect of the above maƩ ers with respect to our reliance on work done and the reports of the other auditors and the fi nancial statement/ 
fi nancial informaƟ on cerƟ fi ed by the management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.  As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2015 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-
secƟ on (11) of SecƟ on 143 of the Act, based on the comments in the Auditor’s Reports of the holding company, subsidiary companies, 
associate companies and jointly controlled companies incorporated in India, we give in the Annexure a statement on the maƩ ers 
specifi ed in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2.  As required by SecƟ on143 (3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that :

 (a) We have sought and obtained all the informaƟ on and explanaƟ ons which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary 
for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated fi nancial statements.

 (b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relaƟ ng to preparaƟ on of the aforesaid consolidated fi nancial 
statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examinaƟ on of those books and the reports of the other auditors.

 (c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profi t and Loss and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparaƟ on of the 
consolidate fi nancial statements.

 (d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated fi nancial statements comply with the AccounƟ ng Standards specifi ed under SecƟ on 
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

 (e) On the basis of the wriƩ en representaƟ ons received from the directors of the Holding Company as on 31st March, 2015 taken on 
record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies, 
associate companies and jointly controlled companies incorporated in India, none of the Directors of the Group Companies, 
incorporated in India is disqualifi ed as on 31st March, 2015 from being appointed as a director in terms of SecƟ on 164 (2) of the 
Act.

 (f) With respect to the other maƩ ers to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and 
Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our informaƟ on and according to the explanaƟ ons given to us :

  i. The company has disclosed the impact of pending liƟ gaƟ ons on its fi nancial posiƟ on in its fi nancial statements – Refer 
Note 26 to the fi nancial statements;

  ii.  The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including derivaƟ ve contracts.

  iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor EducaƟ on and ProtecƟ on Fund by the 
Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India.

For SRB & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. No. 310009E 

Bisworanjan Sutar
(Partner)

Membership No.066708
Kolkata
15th day of May, 2015
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REPORTS UNDER THE COMPANIES ΈAUDITOR’S REPORTΉ ORDER, 2015 ΈCARO 2015Ή

CARO 2015 Report on the Consolidated Financial Statement of Manaksia Limited for the year ended March 31, 2015

To the Members of Manaksia Limited

The Annexure referred to in our Report on Consolidated Financial Statements to the members of Manaksia Limited (the Holding Company) 
for the year ended March 31, 2015 issued on May 15, 2015. We report that :

Our reporƟ ng on the CARO 2015 includes 3 subsidiary companies incorporated in India, to which CARO 2015 is applicable, which has been 
audited by the other auditors and our report in respect of these enƟ Ɵ es is based solely on the reports of the other auditors, to the extent 
considered applicable for reporƟ ng under CARO 2015 in the case of the consolidated fi nancial statements.

In respect of 3 Subsidiary Companies incorporated in India, which have included in the Consolidated Financial Statements based on un-
audited fi nancial statements/ Consolidated fi nancial statements of such enƟ Ɵ es provided to us by the Management and hence no report 
under CARO 2015 is available, and accordingly the possible eff ects of the same on our reporƟ ng under CARO 2015 has not been considered.    

i. In respect of the fi xed assets of the Holding Company and subsidiary companies  incorporated in India :

 a) The respecƟ ve enƟ Ɵ es have maintained proper records showing full parƟ culars, including quanƟ taƟ ve details and situaƟ on of 
fi xed assets.

 b) As explained to us, the fi xed assets were physically verifi ed during the fi nancial year by the Management of the respecƟ ve enƟ Ɵ es 
in accordance with a phased periodical manner of verifi caƟ on which, in our opinion and the opinion of the other auditors, is 
reasonable. According to the informaƟ on and explanaƟ ons given to us and the other auditors, no material discrepancies were 
noƟ ced on such physical verifi caƟ on.

ii. In respect of the inventories of the Holding Company and subsidiary companies  incorporated in India :

 a) As explained to us and the other auditors, the inventories were physically verifi ed during the year by the management of the 
respecƟ ve enƟ Ɵ es at reasonable intervals.

 b) In our opinion and the opinion of other auditors and according to the informaƟ on and explanaƟ ons given to us and the other 
auditors, the procedures of physical verifi caƟ on of inventories followed by the management of the respecƟ ve enƟ Ɵ es were 
reasonable and adequate in relaƟ on to the size of the respecƟ ve enƟ Ɵ es and the nature of their business.

 c) In our opinion and the opinion of other auditors and according to the informaƟ on and explanaƟ ons given to us and the other 
auditors, the respecƟ ve enƟ Ɵ es have maintained proper records of their inventories and no material discrepancies were noƟ ced 
on physical verifi caƟ on.

iii. In respect of loans, secured or unsecured, granted by the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies to Companies, Firms or other 
parƟ es covered in the Register maintained under SecƟ on 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 :

 a) The principal amounts are repayable over varying periods up to fi ve years, while the interest is payable annually, both at the 
discreƟ on of the respecƟ ve enƟ Ɵ es.

 b) In respect of the said loans and interest thereon, there are no over due amounts.

iv. In our opinion and the opinion of other auditors and according to the informaƟ on and explanaƟ ons given to us and the other auditors, 
there is an adequate internal control system in the holding Company and subsidiary companies incorporated in India, commensurate 
with the size of the respecƟ ve enƟ Ɵ es and the nature of their business for the purchase of fi xed assets & inventory and for the sale 
of goods & services. During the course of our audit and the other auditors audit no conƟ nuing failure to correct major weaknesses in 
such internal control system has been observed.

v. In our opinion and the opinion of other auditors and according to the informaƟ on and explanaƟ ons given to us and the other auditors, 
the Holding Company and subsidiary companies have not accepted any deposits from the public. Therefore, the provision of clause (v) 
of Paragraph 3 of the CARO 2015 is not applicable to the Company. 

vi. In our opinion and the opinion of other auditors and according to the informaƟ on and explanaƟ ons given to us and the other auditors, 
the Holding Company and subsidiary companies incorporated in India have, prima facie, made and maintained the prescribed cost 
records pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records & Audit) Rules 2014, as amended, prescribed by the Central Government under 
SecƟ on 148(1) (d) of the Companies Act, 2013, wherever applicable. Neither we nor the other auditors have, however, made a detailed 
examinaƟ on of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.  
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vii. According to the records of the Company  and the informa  on and explana  on given to us, in respect of statutory dues of the Holding 
Company and subsidiary companies incorporated in India :

 a) The respec  ve en   es have generally been regular in deposi  ng undisputed statutory dues, including Provident Fund, 
Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, 
Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to the respec  ve en   es with the appropriate authori  es. There were  no 
material undisputed amounts payable by the respec  ve en   es in respect of the aforesaid dues were outstanding as at March 
31, 2015 for a period of more than six months from the date they becoming payable.

 b) Details of dues of Income Tax, Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess which 
have not been deposited as on March 31, 2015 on account of disputes by the aforesaid en   es are given below :

Sr.
No

Name of the Statute Nature of Dues Forum where Dispute is Pending Amount involved
(Rs. In Lakhs)

1. Central Excise Act, 1944 Service Tax The Commissioner, Central Excise 36.25

Excise Duty
The Commissioner, Service Tax
The Kolkata, High Court

52.40
33.92

2. Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax C.I.T(A)-IV, Kolkata 73.53
C.I.T(A)-I, Kolkata 4.22
I.T.A.T, Kolkata 14.29

3. Central Sales Tax Act, 
1956 & Sales Tax Act of 
Various States

Sales Tax/VAT and 
Entry Tax

The Commercial, Taxes, Tribunal (WB)
The West Bengal Commercial taxes,  Appellate 
& Revision Board
The Kolkata, High Court
The Sr. Joint Commissioner, Commercial Tax
The Joint Commissioner, Commercial Tax 

1.60
142.10

69.72
33.15

215.58

 c) According to the records of the respec  ve en   es, there are no amounts that are due to be transferred to the Investor Educa  on 
and Protec  on Fund in accordance with the relevant   provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 (1 of 1956) and rules made there 
under.

viii. The Holding Company and subsidiary companies incorporated in India do not have consolidated accumulated losses at the end of the 
fi nancial year nor have they incurred cash losses, on a consolidated basis, during the fi nancial year covered by our audit and in the 
immediately preceding fi nancial year. 

ix. In our opinion and the opinion of the other auditors and according to the informa  on and explana  ons given to us and the other 
auditors, the Holding Company and subsidiary companies incorporated in India have not defaulted in repayment of dues to fi nancial 
ins  tu  ons, banks and debenture holders.

x. In our opinion and the opinion of the other auditors and according to the informa  on and explana  ons given to us and the other 
auditors, the Holding Company has not given any guarantees for loan taken by others from banks and fi nancial ins  tu  ons whereas 
subsidiary company (Mark Steels Ltd.) incorporated in India has given guarantees for loans taken by others from banks and fi nancial 
ins  tu  ons. According to the informa  on and explana  ons given to us, we are of the opinion that the terms and conditons thereof are 
not prima facie prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

xi. In our opinion and the opinion of the other auditors and according to the informa  on and explana  ons given to us and the other 
auditors, the Holding Company and subsidiary companies incorporated in India, the term loans have been applied by the Holding 
Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India during the year for the purposes for which they were raised, other than 
temporary deployment pending applica  on.

xii. To the best of our knowledge and according to the informa  on and explana  ons given to us and the other auditors, no fraud by the 
Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India and no material fraud on the Holding Company and its subsidiary 
companies incorporated in India has been no  ced or reported during the year.

For SRB & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. No. 310009E 

Bisworanjan Sutar
(Partner)

Membership No.066708
Kolkata
15th day of May, 2015
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2015

ParƟ culars Notes  As at
March 31, 2015

As at
March 31, 2014

I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. Shareholders’ Funds

(a) Share capital 2  1,310.68  1,310.68 
(b) Reserves and surplus 3  107,947.32  107,624.59 

 109,258.00  108,935.27 

2. Minority Interest  1,028.39  869.25 

3. Non-current liabiliƟ es
(a) Long term borrowings 4  3,875.89  6,895.93 
(b) Deferred Tax LiabiliƟ es (net) 5  530.80  703.82 
(c) Long term provisions 6  126.40  130.79 

 4,533.09  7,730.54 

4. Current liabiliƟ es
(a) Short term borrowings 7  16,800.37  6,225.13 
(b) Trade payables 8  5,224.96  16,559.82 
(c) Other current liabiliƟ es 9  4,034.44  4,719.46 
(d) Short term provisions 10  307.58  245.02 

 26,367.35  27,749.43 
TOTAL  141,186.83  145,284.49 

II. ASSETS
1. Non current assets

(a) Fixed assets 11
   Tangible assets  36,286.08  39,691.32 
   Intangible assets  41.36  27.05 
Capital work-in-progress  11,102.70  6,711.55 

(b) Non-current investments 12  16.62  36.62 
(c) Long term loans and advances 13  32.53  54.61 

 47,479.29  46,521.15 

2. Current assets
(a) Current Investments 14  310.50  –   
(b) Inventories 15  35,549.06  39,812.35 
(c) Trade receivables 16  9,102.71  9,993.12 
(d) Cash and Cash equivalents 17  2,296.17  3,437.09 
(e) Short term loans and advances 18  46,449.10  45,520.78 

 93,707.54  98,763.34 
TOTAL  141,186.83  145,284.49 

Signifi cant AccounƟ ng Policies 1
See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements  2-35
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the fi nancial statements

(` In Lacs)

As per our Report aƩ ached of even date
For SRB & Associates 
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. No. 310009E  
Bisworanjan Sutar 
(Partner) 
Membership No.066708 
Kolkata 
15th day of May, 2015

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors
Suresh Kumar Agrawal Managing Director 
DIN:00520769    

Sunil Kumar Agrawal Director  
DIN:00091784    

Sanjay Kumar Singhania Chief Financial Officer

Raj Kumar Banthia Company Secretary
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2015

ParƟ culars Notes  For the year ended 
March 31, 2015 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2014

I. Income
Net Revenue from operaƟ ons 19  112,761.19  167,906.86 

Other income 20  429.21  653.78 

Total Revenue  113,190.40  168,560.64 

II. Expenses

Cost of materials consumed (including trading goods) 21  72,413.14  100,444.17 

Changes in Inventories of fi nished goods, 
Work-in-progress and stock-in-trade

22  (1,015.32)  (522.16)

Employee benefi ts expense 23  4,569.11  6,700.50

Finance costs 24  2,847.58  3,719.00 

DepreciaƟ on and amorƟ zaƟ on expense 11  6,246.72  9,317.76 

Other expenses 25  16,803.38  28,931.72 

Total Expenses  101,864.61   148,590.99  

III. Profi t before tax  11,325.79  19,969.65

IV. Tax expenses

Current tax  435.48  855.46 

Deferred tax  (97.37)  9.28 

Short Provision for Earlier Year  603.11  3.98 

Total tax expenses  941.22  868.72 

V. Profi t before Minority Interest  10,384.57  19,100.93 

VI. Less: Share of Profi t/(Loss) Transferred to Minority Interest  41.28  (31.33)

VII. Profi t for the year  10,343.29  19,132.26 

VIII. Basic and diluted Earnings per equity share of face value 
of Rs. 2/- each

27 15.78 29.19

Signifi cant AccounƟ ng Policies 1
See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements 2-35

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the fi nancial statements

(` In Lacs)

As per our Report aƩ ached of even date
For SRB & Associates 
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. No. 310009E  
Bisworanjan Sutar 
(Partner) 
Membership No.066708 
Kolkata 
15th day of May, 2015

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors
Suresh Kumar Agrawal Managing Director 
DIN:00520769    

Sunil Kumar Agrawal Director  
DIN:00091784    

Sanjay Kumar Singhania Chief Financial Officer

Raj Kumar Banthia Company Secretary
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2015 

ParƟ culars  For the year ended 
March 31, 2015

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2014

A: CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :
Net Profi t before Tax : 11325.79 19969.65
Adjustment for:
DepreciaƟ on/ AmorƟ saƟ on 6246.72 9317.76
Finance Cost & Interest Expense 2847.58 3719.00
Interest Income -321.85 -542.05
Loss on Fixed Assets Sold / Discarded (Net) 2.25 61.52
Prior Period & ExcepƟ onal Items (Net) 0.21 35.85
Dividend from Mutual Fund -9.82 -66.30
OperaƟ ng Profi t before Working Capital Changes 20090.88 32495.43
Adjustment for:
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade  & Other Receivables -612.26 -43419.02
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories 4263.29 -12369.85
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade & Other Payables -11961.71 35354.26
Cash Generated from OperaƟ ons 11780.2 12060.82
Direct Taxes Paid -371.32 -457.80
Cash Flow before Prior Period & ExcepƟ onal items 11408.88 11603.02
Prior Period & ExcepƟ onal Items (Net) -0.21 -35.85
Share of loss/(gain )in for minority interest -41.28 31.33
Net Cash Flow from OperaƟ ng AcƟ viƟ es                   11367.39 11598.50

B: CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :
Purchase of Fixed Assets and change in Capital work in progress -7378.68 -7869.29
(Including Capital Work in Progress and capital advances)
Sale of Fixed Assets 71.85 309.40
Increase in Investment -310.5 -559.03
Interest Received 293.75 517.79
Dividend Received from Mutual Fund 9.82 66.30
Net Cash Flow from/(Used in) InvesƟ ng AcƟ viƟ es                           -7313.76 -7534.83

C: CASH  FLOW  FROM  FINANCING ACTIVITIES :
Proceeds/(Repayment) of Long Term Borrowings -3020.04 4021.06
(Repayment of)/ Proceeds from Short Term Borrowings (Net) 10575.24 -6064.58
Payment of Dividend  on Equity Shares -1310.68 -1310.68
Interest etc. Paid -2836.86 -3901.98
Changes in Minority Interest 159.14 224.02
Net Cash Flow From/(Used in ) Financing AcƟ viƟ es                  3566.8 -7032.16

D: Change in Currency FluctuaƟ on A/c arising on consolidaƟ on -8761.35 4247.34
E: Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents -1140.92 1278.85

Cash and Cash Equivalents as at 1st April 3437.09 3492.47
Transferred Pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement – -1334.23
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at 31st March 2296.17 3437.09

Note : Previous year’s fi gures have been rearranged and regrouped wherever considered necessary.

(` In Lacs)

As per our Report aƩ ached of even date
For SRB & Associates 
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. No. 310009E  
Bisworanjan Sutar 
(Partner) 
Membership No.066708 
Kolkata 
15th day of May, 2015

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors
Suresh Kumar Agrawal Managing Director 
DIN:00520769    
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Sanjay Kumar Singhania Chief Financial Officer

Raj Kumar Banthia Company Secretary
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Note 1 : SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Annexed to and forming part of the fi nancial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2015)

I)  Basis of PreparaƟ on of Consolidated Financial Statements

 These consolidated fi nancial statements have been prepared to comply with the Generally Accepted AccounƟ ng Principles of India 
(Indian GAAP), including the AccounƟ ng Standards noƟ fi ed under the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

II)  Principles of ConsolidaƟ on

 The consolidated fi nancial statements relate to Manaksia Limited (‘the Company’) and its subsidiary companies. The consolidated 
fi nancial statements have been prepared on the following basis:

 a) The fi nancial statements of the Company and its subsidiary companies are combined on a line-by-line basis by adding together 
the book values of like items of assets, liabiliƟ es, income and expenses, aŌ er fully eliminaƟ ng intra-group balances and intra 
group transacƟ ons in accordance with AccounƟ ng Standard (AS) 21 – “ Consolidated Financial Statement”.

 b) In case of foreign subsidiaries, being non-integral foreign operaƟ ons, revenue items are consolidated at the average rate prevailing 
during the year. All assets and liabiliƟ es are converted at rates prevailing at the end of the year. Any exchange diff erence arising 
on consolidaƟ on is recognized in the Exchange FluctuaƟ on Reserve.

 c) The diff erence between the costs of investment in the subsidiaries, over the net assets at the Ɵ me of acquisiƟ on of shares in the 
subsidiaries is recognized in the fi nancial statements as Goodwill or Capital Reserve, as the case may be.

 d) Minority interest’s share of net profi t / loss of consolidated subsidiaries for the year is idenƟ fi ed and adjusted against the income 
of the group in order to arrive at the net income aƩ ributable to shareholders of the Company.

 e) Minority interest’s share of net assets of consolidated subsidiaries is idenƟ fi ed and presented in the consolidated balance sheet 
separate from liabiliƟ es and the equity of the Company’s shareholders.

 f) As far as possible, the consolidated fi nancial statements are prepared using uniform accounƟ ng policies for like transacƟ ons and 
other events in similar circumstances and are presented in the same manner as the Company’s separate fi nancial statements.

III)   Other Signifi cant AccounƟ ng Policies

 Consolidated Financial Statements are intended to serve as a means of informaƟ ve disclosure and a guide to beƩ er understanding the 
consolidated posiƟ on of the Companies. Recognising this purpose, the Company has disclosed only such Policies and Notes from the 
individual fi nancial statements, which fairly present the needed disclosures.

IV)   Use of EsƟ mates

 The preparaƟ on of fi nancial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires judgements, esƟ mates and assumpƟ ons to be made 
that aff ect the reported amount of assets and liabiliƟ es, disclosure of conƟ ngent liabiliƟ es on the date of the fi nancial statements and 
the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporƟ ng period. Diff erence between the actual   results and esƟ mates are 
recognized in the period in which the results are known/materialized. 

V)   Fixed Assets

 Fixed Assets are stated at cost of acquisiƟ on inclusive of duƟ es ( net of CENVAT/VAT), taxes, borrowing costs directly aƩ ributable to 
acquisiƟ on, incidental expenses and erecƟ on/ commissioning  etc., upto the date, the asset is ready for its intended use.

VI)   Impairment of Assets

 The carrying amount of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine if there is any indicaƟ on of impairment based 
on external/internal factor. An impairment loss is recognised wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds it’s recoverable 
amount which represents the greater of the net selling price and value in use of the assets. The esƟ mated cash fl ows considered for 
determining the value in use, are discounted to the present value at weighted average cost of capital.

VII)  Foreign currency transacƟ on

 a) IniƟ al RecogniƟ on

  Foreign currency transacƟ ons are recorded in the reporƟ ng currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange 
rate between the reporƟ ng currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transacƟ on.

 b)  Conversion

  Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate. Non-monetary items which are carried in terms of 
historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transacƟ on; and non-
monetary items which are carried at fair value or other similar valuaƟ on denominated in a foreign currency are reported using 
the exchange rates that existed when the values were determined.

 c)  Exchange Diff erences 

  Exchange diff erences arising on the seƩ lement/conversion of monetary items are  recognized as income or expenses in the year 
in which they arise.
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  The premium or discount arising at the incepƟ on of forward exchange contracts is amorƟ sed as expenses or income over the 
life of the respecƟ ve contracts. Exchange diff erences on such contracts are recognised in the statement of profi t and loss in the 
year in which the exchange rates change. Any profi t or loss arising on cancellaƟ on or renewal of forward exchange contract is 
recognised as income or expense for the year.

VIII)   DepreciaƟ on 

 a)   DepreciaƟ on on all Fixed Assets is provided as per Schedule II of Companies Act, 2013 under Straight Line Method over esƟ mated 
useful lives for each category of assets as under : 

  • Factory Building :   30  years

  • Plant and Machinery  :  10 to 20 years

  • Electrical InstallaƟ on and Equipments :  10  Years

  • Furniture and Fixture  :  10  Years

  • Offi  ce Equipment  :  5  Years

  • Motor Vehicles :  8  Years

  • Computers :  3  Years

 b)   DepreciaƟ on includes amorƟ saƟ on of leasehold land over the period of lease. 

     c)  The residual value of assets has been considered as fi ve percent of the original cost of the assets as per Schedule II of the Act.    

  d)  DepreciaƟ on is provided on pro-rata basis on addiƟ ons and deleƟ ons of Fixed Assets during the year.

   e)  In case of impairment, if any, depreciaƟ on is provided on the revised carrying amount of the assets over its remaining useful life.

     f)  SoŌ ware costs are amorƟ zed using the Straight Line Method over esƟ mated useful life of 3 years.

IX)   Investments

 Long term Investments are stated at Cost less provisions recorded to recognise any decline,other than temporary, in the carrying value 
of each investment. Investments in foreign companies are considered at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of their acquisiƟ on. 
Current investments are carried at lower of cost or fair value of each investment. Short term Investments in liquid fund scheme of 
mutual funds have been stated at their NAV on year end date or purchase price whichever is less.

X)   Inventories

        Inventories are valued as follows :

 a)  Raw materials, fi nished goods, Stock in trade, Work in process, Packing materials and stores & spares are  valued at lower of cost 
and net realisable value. Closing stock has been valued on Weighted Average basis.     

   b)  Saleable scraps, whose cost is not idenƟ fi able, are valued at esƟ mated realisable value.

XI)  Research & Development

 Research and development expenditure of revenue nature are charged to Profi t & Loss Account, while capital expenditure are added 
to the cost of fi xed assets in the year in which these are incurred.

XII)    Employee Benefi ts

 i)  Short term employee benefi ts are charged off  at the undiscounted amount in the year in which the related services is rendered.

 ii)  Post employment and other long term employee benefi ts are charged off  in the year in which the employee has rendered 
services. The amount charged off  is recognised at the present value of the amounts payable determined using actuarial valuaƟ on 
techniques. Actuarial gain and losses in respect of post employment and other long term benefi ts are charged to Profi t and Loss 
Account/Project Development Expenditure Account.

XIII)    Earning Per Share

 Basic earning per share is calculated by dividing the net Profi t or Loss for the period aƩ ributable to equity shareholders by the 
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. 

 For the purpose of calculaƟ ng diluted earnings per share, the net profi t or loss for the period aƩ ributable to equity shareholders 
and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the eff ects of all diluƟ ve potenƟ al equity 
shares.

XIV)    Excise Duty and Custom Duty

 Excise duty on fi nished goods stock lying at factories is accounted for at the point of manufacture of goods and accordingly, is 
considered for valuaƟ on of fi nished goods as on the Balance Sheet date. Custom duty on imported material in transit / lying in bonded 
warehouse is accounted for at the Ɵ me, the same are released from Customs/ Bonded warehouse.
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XV)    Financial DerivaƟ ves and Commodity Hedging TransacƟ ons 
 In respect of derivaƟ ve contracts, premium paid, gains/losses on seƩ lement and provision for losses for cash fl ow hedges are 

recognised in the Profi t and Loss Account, except in case where they relate to borrowing costs that are aƩ ributable to the acquisiƟ on 
or construcƟ on of fi xed assets, in which case, they are adjusted to the carrying cost of such assets. 

XVI)  Borrowing Costs
 Borrowing Costs relaƟ ng to acquisiƟ on / construcƟ on of qualifying assets are capitalized unƟ l the Ɵ me all  substanƟ al acƟ viƟ es 

necessary to prepare the qualifying assets for their intended use are complete. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes 
substanƟ al period of Ɵ me to get ready for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to revenue.

XVII)   TaxaƟ on
 Tax expenses comprises of current and deferred tax.  Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax 

authoriƟ es in accordance with the Indian Income Tax Act, 1961. Deferred income taxes refl ects the impact of current year Ɵ ming 
diff erences between taxable income for the year and reversal of Ɵ ming diff erences of earlier years.

 The deferred tax for Ɵ ming diff erences between the book and tax profi ts for the year is accounted for using the tax rates and laws 
that have been substanƟ ally enacted as on the Balance Sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that there is 
reasonable certainty that suffi  cient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised. If 
the company has carry forward unabsorbed depreciaƟ on and tax losses, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent there 
is virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that suffi  cient taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax 
asset can be realized.

XVIII)  Segment ReporƟ ng 
 a) IdenƟ fi caƟ on of segments
  The company has idenƟ fi ed its business segments as the primary segments. The company’s  businesses are organized and 

managed separately according to the nature of products/ services, with each segment represenƟ ng a strategic business unit that 
off ers diff erent product / services and serves diff erent markets. The analysis of geographical segments is based on the areas in 
which the customers of the company are located.

 b)  AllocaƟ on of Common Costs
  Common allocable costs are allocated to each segment on case to case basis applying the raƟ o, appropriate to each relevant 

case. Revenue and expenses, which relate to the enterprise as a whole and are not allocable to segment on a reasonable basis, 
have been included under the head “ Unallocated”.

  The accounƟ ng policies adopted for segment reporƟ ng are in line with those of the Company.
XIX)  Prior Period Expenses/Income
 Material items of prior period expenses/income are disclosed separately.
XX)  Provision, ConƟ ngent LiabiliƟ es and ConƟ ngent Assets
 Provisions involving substanƟ al degree of esƟ maƟ on in measurement are recognised when there is a present obligaƟ on as a result of 

past events and it is probable that there will be an ouƞ low of resources. ConƟ ngent LiabiliƟ es are not recognised but are disclosed in 
the notes. ConƟ ngent Assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the fi nancial statements.
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
MARCH 31, 2015

ParƟ culars  As at March 31, 2015  As at March 31, 2014

2. Share capital
a) Authorised:

70,000,000 (70,000,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 2/- each   1,400.00  1,400.00 
1,250,000 (1,250,000) Preference Shares of Rs. 20/- each  250.00  250.00 

 1,650.00  1,650.00 
b) Issued, Subscribed and fully paid-up Shares:

65,534,050 (65,534,050) Equity Shares of Rs. 2/- each fully paid up  1,310.68  1,310.68 
 1,310.68  1,310.68 

c) Details of aggregate number of shares, alloted without payment being received in cash,alloted as bonus shares and bought 
back, if any, for the period of fi ve years immediately preceeding the Balance Sheet date:
4,000,000 Equity Shares of Face Value of Rs. 2/- each were bought back and extinguished in the year 2010-11.

d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company:

 As at March 31, 2015  As at March 31, 2014
Name of Shareholders  No. of 

shares 
 % 

holding 
 No. of 
shares 

 % 
holding 

Basudeo Agrawal  95,00,115  14.50  82,24,385 12.55
Suresh Kumar Agrawal  94,02,740  14.35  81,27,010 12.40
Mahabir Prasad Agrawal  54,48,245  8.31  41,72,515 6.37
Basant Kumar Agrawal – –  33,83,130 5.16

e) ReconciliaƟ on of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporƟ ng period:
2014-15 2013-14

No. of shares No. of shares

Equity Shares
At the beginning of the year  6,55,34,050  6,55,34,050 
Outstanding at the end of the year  6,55,34,050  6,55,34,050 

f) The Company is not a Subsidiary Company.

g) No Shares has been reserved for issue under options and contracts/commitments for the sale of shares/
disinvestment

h) Terms/rights aƩ ached to each class of shares
Equity Shares: 
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 2/-. Each holder of equity shares is enƟ tled to one 
vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors 
is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General MeeƟ ng.

In the event of liquidaƟ on of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be enƟ tled to receive any of the remaining assets 
of the company, aŌ er distribuƟ on of all preferenƟ al amounts. The distribuƟ on will be in proporƟ on to the number of equity 
shares held by the shareholders.         

(` In Lacs)
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ParƟ culars  As at March 31, 2015  As at March 31, 2014

3. Reserves and surplus
A. Capital Reserve

As per last Balance Sheet  158.26   128.68  
Add: Created during the year  129.11  287.37  29.58  158.26 

B. Capital RedempƟ on Reserve 
As per last Balance Sheet  317.40  317.40 

C. SecuriƟ es Premium Reserve
As per last Balance Sheet  3,002.80  18,983.55 

Less : Transferred Pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement (Refer Note No. 32.2) –  3,002.80  15,980.75  3,002.80 
D. AmalgamaƟ on Reserve

As per last Balance Sheet  123.45  123.45 
E. Investment Reserve

As per last Balance Sheet  89.58  89.58 
F. General Reserve

As per last Balance Sheet  2,574.79  30,034.03 
Add : Transfer from Surplus in the Statement of profi t and loss –  1,000.00 
Less: Investment Cancelled (Refer Note No. 32.4)  20.00  –
Less: DepreciaƟ on (Refer Note No. 33)  57.64  –
Less : Transferred Pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement(Refer Note No. 32.2) –  2,497.15  28,459.24  2,574.79  

G. Foreign Currency TranslaƟ on Reserve
As per last Balance Sheet  12,211.97  (368.24)
Add: Created during the year  (8,761.35)  3,450.62  12,580.21  12,211.97 

H. Surplus in the statement of profi t and loss
As per last Balance Sheet  89,146.34  76,863.75 
Less : Transferred Pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement –  4,538.99 
Less : Transfer to General Reserve –  1,000.00 
Add : Profi t for the year  10,343.29  19,132.26 

 99,489.63  90,457.02 
Less: AppropriaƟ ons
         Dividend on Equity Shares  1,310.68  98,178.95  1,310.68  89,146.34 

Total 107,947.32 107,624.59 

 Non Current  Current  Non Current   Current 
4. Long term borrowings

Secured 
   Term/Equipment Loans: 
      From Bank
         Foreign Currency Loan  2,468.15  1,302.91  4,449.94  1,199.79 
         Local Currency Loan  1,407.74 –  2,445.99 –

Total  3,875.89  1,302.91  6,895.93  1,199.79 

(` In Lacs)

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
MARCH 31, 2015 (Contd.)
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Notes :
4.1 The Current part of Long Term Borrowings, as above, have been shown under Other Current LiabiliƟ es (Note No.9), as Current Ma-

turiƟ es of long term debt, as per the  requirement of Schedule III.  
4.2 Term / Equipment Loans:

(a) Term loan availed by MINL Ltd. is secured by issuances of Debentures over its Fixed Assets. 
(b) Term loan availed by Jebba Paper Mills Ltd. is secured by issuances of Debentures over its Fixed  & FloaƟ ng Assets. 
(c) Repayment Schedule of Consolidated Term/ Equipment Loan is as follows: 

Year Foreign Currency Loan Local Currency Loan
2014-15  987.61  315.30 
2015-16  987.61  312.83 
2016-17  987.61  312.83 
2017-18  492.93  312.83 
2018-19 –  312.83 
2019-20 –  156.41 

(d) Rate of Interest on Term Loan availed by  MINL Ltd is 7.00%p.a. and Libor+4% p.a.,  and Jebba Paper Mills is 90 days Libor+ 8% p.a.

ParƟ culars  As at March 31, 2015  As at March 31, 2014

5. Deferred tax liabiliƟ es (net)  
a) Deferred Tax Liability

Timing diff erence in depreciable assets  553.77  705.69 
b) Deferred Tax Assets

Expenses allowable against taxable income in future years  22.97  (1.87)
Net Deferred tax Liability  530.80  703.82 

6. Long term provisions
Provision for Employee Benefi t  126.40  130.79
Total  126.40 130.79

7. Short term provisions
Secured
a) Loans repayable on Demand (Working Capital Loans)

From Banks
Foreign Currency Loan –  2,633.69 
Local Currency Loan  2,403.77  2,812.17 

Unsecured
a) Other Loans and Advances

From Banks
   Local Currency Loan  13,270.03 –
From Bodies Corporate  1,126.57  779.27 

Total  16,800.37  6,225.13 
Notes :
7.2 MINL Ltd has availed working capital faciliƟ es by  issuances of Debentures on its Fixed Assets. 
7.3 Mark Steels Ltd., has availed working capital faciliƟ es by creaƟ ng  fi rst charge on  its Current Assets and second charge on  its Fixed 

Assets and also by providing personal guarantees of  its the directors.
7.4  Dynatech Industries Ghana Ltd. has availed Short term loan by providing Corporate Guarantee of MINL Ltd.

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
MARCH 31, 2015 (Contd.)

(` In Lacs)
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
MARCH 31, 2015 (Contd.) (` In Lacs)

ParƟ culars  As at March 31, 2015  As at March 31, 2014
8. Trade payables

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises* – –
Others  5,224.96  16,559.82 
Total   5,224.96  16,559.82 

*Disclosure of payables to MSME vendors as defi ned under the “Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006” is 
based on the informaƟ on available with the Company regarding the status of registraƟ on of such vendors under the said Act, as per 
the inƟ maƟ on received from them on requests made by the Company.

There are no overdue principal amounts/interest payable amounts for delayed payments to such vendors at the Balance Sheet date. 
There are no delays in payment made to such suppliers during the year or for earlier years and accordingly there is no interest paid 
or outstanding interest in this regard in respect of payments made during the year or brought forward from previous years.

ParƟ culars  As at March 31, 2015  As at March 31, 2014
9. Other current liabiliƟ es

Current MaturiƟ Ɵ es of Long Term Debt
     Term Loans:
          Foreign Currency Loan  1,302.91  1,199.79 
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings  73.42  62.70 
Unpaid dividends (Unclaimed)#  20.40  20.40 
Money refundable on Public Issue allotment (Unclaimed)#  3.14  3.14 
Income Received in advance  387.01  286.39 
Other Payables *  2,247.56  3,147.04 
Total  4,034.44  4,719.46 

* Other Payables includes Statutory Dues, Advances from Customers & temporary Overdrawn Balances from banks. 
# These fi gures do not include any amount which is due and outstanding for credit to Investor EducaƟ on and ProtecƟ on Fund. 

ParƟ culars  As at March 31, 2015  As at March 31, 2014

10. Short term provisions

Provision for Employee Benefi ts  56.11  36.48 

Others *  251.47  208.54 

Total  307.58  245.02 

*Includes LiabiliƟ es for excise duty on closing stock of Finished Goods.
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ParƟ culars
 No. of 
Shares/ 

Units

Face Value 
per Share/
Units (Rs.)

 As at 
 March 31, 

2015

 As at 
 March 31, 

2014
12. Non-current investments

(i)  Trade Investments
       Investment in Equity Instruments
         Quoted & Fully Paid Up
            United Spirits Ltd. 47 10  0.09  0.09 
            Mansarovar BoƩ ling Co. Ltd. 5000 10  0.87  0.87 
         Unquoted & Fully Paid Up
            Agro Co-OperaƟ ve Urban Bank Ltd. 300 100  0.30  0.30 
            Bengal Sponge Manuf. Mining (P) Ltd. 42500 10  4.25 4.25

(ii)  Other Investments
        Investment in Equity Instruments
           Unquoted & Fully Paid Up
              Singur - Haripal Rural Co-operaƟ ve Society Ltd. 90 10 0.01 0.01
              AGR Capital Markets Ltd. 30000 10 6.00 6.00
              Maxell SecuriƟ es Ltd. 47500 10 4.75 4.75
        Investment in Equity Shares of Companies
           Manaksia Aluminium Company Ltd.** –(500000) 1 –  5.00 
           Manaksia Coated Metals & Industries Ltd.** –(500000) 1 –  5.00 
           Manaksia Steels Ltd.** –(500000) 1 –  5.00 
           Manaksia Industries Ltd.** –(500000) 1 –  5.00 
       Investment in Government or Trust securiƟ es
         Unquoted & Fully Paid Up
            6 Years NaƟ onal Savings CerƟ fi cates 0.35 0.35

 16.62 36.62
            Aggregate amount of investments :
            Quoted  0.97  0.97 
            Unquoted  15.65  35.65 
            Market Value of Quoted Investments  1.25  1.75 

Note: 6 Years NaƟ onal Savings CerƟ fi cates are lodged with Directorate of Commercial Taxes.
** Refer Note No. 32.4

(` In Lacs)

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
MARCH 31, 2015 (Contd.)
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
MARCH 31, 2015 (Contd.)

(` In Lacs)

ParƟ culars  As at March 31, 2015  As at March 31, 2014

13. Long term loans and advances
(Unsecured, considered good) 
Capital advances –  29.61 
Security Deposit  32.53  25.00 
Total  32.53  54.61 

14. Current Investments
Investment in Mutual Fund - Unquoted, Fully Paid up 
   Relaince Liquid Fund  310.50 –
   (20,311 units @ 1,528.74 per unit Prev Year Nil)
Total  310.50 –

15. Inventories
At Lower of Cost or Net Realisable Value
Raw Materials  26,751.89  31,628.64 
Work-in-Process  445.49  375.07 
Finished Goods  6,639.69  5,694.79 
Stores & Spares  1,711.99  2,113.85 
Total  35,549.06  39,812.35 

16. Trade receivables
Unsecured
    Considered Good:

   Outstanding over six months  396.12  819.45 
   Other Debts  8,706.59  9,173.67 

Total  9,102.71  9,993.12 

17. Cash and Cash equivalents
Balances with Banks  1,906.93  3,220.85 
Fixed Deposits  21.33  19.86 
Unclaimed Dividend & Unclaimed Public Issue Allotment Money*  23.53  28.53 
Cash on Hand  344.38  167.85 
Total  2,296.17  3,437.09 
*These fi gures do not include any amount which is due and outstanding for credit 
to Investor EducaƟ on and ProtecƟ on Fund.

18. Short term loans and advances 
(Unsecured, considered good)
Loans and Advances (Others)  2,505.84  4,306.13 
Balances with Statutory AuthoriƟ es  851.68  740.98 
Advance Income Tax (Net of Provision)  641.23  75.54 
Others*  42,450.35  40,398.13 
Total  46,449.10  45,520.78 

* Includes primarily Prepaid Expenses, Advance to Creditors & Advance to Staff .
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
MARCH 31, 2015 (Contd.)

ParƟ culars
 For the year ended 

March 31, 2015
 For the year ended 

March 31, 2014
19. Total Revenue 

Sale of products 111,979.27 167,948.59 
Other OperaƟ ng Income  1,943.75  3,134.40 

113,923.02 171,082.99 
Less : Excise Duty & Service Tax  1,161.83  3,176.13 
Total 112,761.19 167,906.86 

19.1 ParƟ culars of Sale of Products
Packaging Products  18,102.18  27,136.94 
Mosquito Coil –  4,253.65 
Metal Products  93,809.98 133,365.49 
Others  67.11  3,192.51 

111,979.27 167,948.59 

20. Other Income
Income from Current Investment :
   Tax Free Dividends From Mutual Funds  9.82  66.30 
Interest Income
   From Banks  1.71  141.48 
   From Others  320.14  400.57 
Miscellaneous Income  97.54  45.43 
Total  429.21  653.78 

21. Cost of materials consumed
Opening Stock  31,628.64  33,789.49 
Add : Purchases & Procurement Expenses  67,536.39  98,283.32 
Less : Closing Stock  26,751.89  31,628.64 

 72,413.14 100,444.17 

22. Changes in Inventories of fi nished goods, Work-in-progress 
and stock-in-trade

Opening Stock
Finished Goods  5,694.79  9,158.32 
Work in Progress  375.07  4,879.38 
Scrap –  878.38 

 6,069.86  14,916.08 

Closing Stock
Finished Goods  6,639.69  5,694.79 
Work in Progress  445.49  375.07 
Scrap – –

 7,085.18  6,069.86 
Inventories given over pursuent to Scheme of Arrangement
Finished Goods –  3,984.21 
Work in Progress –  5,007.94 
Scrap –  376.23 

–  9,368.38 
 (1,015.32)  (522.16)

(` In Lacs)
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
MARCH 31, 2015 (Contd.)

ParƟ culars
 For the year ended 

March 31, 2015
 For the year ended 

March 31, 2014
23. Employee benefi ts expense

Salaries, Wages and Bonus  3,543.56  5,359.65 
ContribuƟ on to provident & other funds  105.81  195.45 
Staff  Welfare Expenses  919.74  1,145.40 
Total  4,569.11  6,700.50 

23.1 Disclosure as per AccounƟ ng Standard 15 "Employee Benefi ts"
Provision for Employee Benefi ts  126.40  130.79 
Employee Benefi ts
i) Defi ned contribuƟ on Plan

ContribuƟ on to defi ned contribuƟ on plan, recognized are charged of 
during the year as follows:
Employees’ contribuƟ on to Provident Fund  28.14  35.33 

ii) Defi ned benefi t plan
Gratuity is paid to employees under the Payment of Gratuity Act, 
1972 through unfunded scheme. The present value of obligaƟ on is 
determined based on actuarial valuaƟ on using projected unit credit 
method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to 
addiƟ onal unit of employee benefi t enƟ tlement and measures each 
unit separately to build up the fi nal obligaƟ on.
a) ReconciliaƟ on of opening and closing balances of defi ned 

obligaƟ on:
1) Defi ned benefi t obligaƟ on at the beginning of the year  130.79  130.35 
2) Current service cost  8.03 10.37
3) Interest cost  55.74 46.64
4) Actuarial (gain) / loss  (40.95)  (49.77)
5) Benefi t paid  (27.21) (6.80)
6) Defi ned benefi t obligaƟ on at the end of the year end  126.40 130.79

b) ReconciliaƟ on of fair value assets and obligaƟ ons:
1) Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the period  NIL NIL
2) Present value of obligaƟ ons as at end of the period  126.40 130.82
3) Amount recognized in balance sheet 126.40 130.82

c) Expenses recognized during the year (under the Note “Employee 
Benefi ts  Expense”)

 

1) Current service cost  8.03  10.37 
2) Interest cost  55.74  46.64 
3) Actuarial (gain) / Loss  (40.95)  (49.77)
4) Net amount  22.82  7.24 

d) Actuarial assumptions
1) Mortality table  LIC  LIC 
2) Discount rate (per annum) 7.75% 8.25%
3) Rate of escalation in salary (per annum) 5% 5%
4) Expected average remaining working lives of employees 

(years)
 12.97 18.68

The esƟ mates of rate of escalaƟ on in salary considered in actuarial valuaƟ on, takes into account infl aƟ on,seniority, promoƟ on and other 
relevant factors. The above informaƟ on has been cerƟ fi ed by the actuaries. 

(` In Lacs)
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
MARCH 31, 2015 (Contd.)

ParƟ culars
 For the year ended 

March 31, 2015
 For the year ended 

March 31, 2014
24. Finance costs

Interest Expenses
   To Financial InsƟ tuƟ ons / Banks    
       On Fixed Loans  953.84  1,261.24 
       On Others  1,470.54  1,448.72 
Other Borrowing Cost  423.20  1,009.04 
Total  2,847.58  3,719.00 

25. Other expenses
ConsumpƟ on of Stores and Consumables
   Indigenous  683.09  954.75 
   Imported  502.50  2,015.47 
Power & Fuel  5,505.52  8,143.78 
Processing Charges –  19.96 
Clearing Charges  120.16  528.54 
Carriage Inward  1,340.21  1,750.33 
Lease Rent  1.02  0.02 
Repairs to:
   Building  423.44  662.84 
   Machinery  1,937.33  2,554.17 
   Others  200.63  230.84 
Other Manufacturing Expenses  239.18  516.73 
Rent  135.62  176.49 
Insurance  521.77  589.23 
Rates & Taxes  70.31  324.00 
Packing Expenses  500.22  1,820.06 
Freight, Forwarding and Handling Expenses  1,031.53  2,990.10 
Exchange FluctuaƟ on  986.99  1,613.18 
CommunicaƟ on Expenses  107.02  162.12 
Travelling & Conveyance  328.20  676.20 
Bad Debt –  117.08 
Auditors' RemuneraƟ on 
   Audit Fees  34.57  59.50 
   Tax Audit Fees  0.35  3.43 
DonaƟ ons  11.06  12.71 
Commission  5.99  31.62 
Prior Period Items  0.21  35.85 
Net Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets  2.25  61.52 
Other Miscellaneous Expenses  2,114.21  2,881.20 

 16,803.38  28,931.72 

(` In Lacs)
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ADDITIONAL NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26. ConƟ ngent LiabiliƟ es & Commitments:

I) ConƟ ngent Liability

 Claims against the company/disputed liabiliƟ es not acknowledged as Debts (` In Lacs)

Sl. 
No.

ParƟ culars 31st March, 2015 31st March, 2014

1. Sales tax under appeal 395.31 376.93
2. Income tax demands under appeal 92.04 88.35
3. Excise duty liability on goods exported pending submission of proof of export 55.21 388.89
4. Service Tax 88.65 88.65
5. Counter Guarantees given in favour of Company’s Bankers for Bank Guarantees 

issued
136.52 119.67

6. Entry Tax demand under appeal 66.84 –
7. Central Excise demand under appeal 33.92 33.92

27. Earnings per share (EPS)

ParƟ culars 31st March, 2015 31st March, 2014
Profi t as per Profi t & Loss Account (` In Lacs) 10,343.29 19,132.26
Weighted average number of equity shares 6,55,34,050 6,55,34,050
Nominal value per equity share (`) 2 2
Basic and diluted earning per share (EPS) 15.78 29.19

28. Related Party Disclosure:

a)   Name & RelaƟ onship of the Related ParƟ es

ParƟ culars RelaƟ onship
Manaksia Aluminium Company Ltd.

EnƟ Ɵ es where KMP and RelaƟ ves have signifi cant infl uenceManaksia Coated Metals & Industries Ltd.

Manaksia Steels Ltd.

Mr. Suresh Kumar Agrawal 

Key Management Personnel

Mr. Basudeo Agrawal (w.e.f  23.11.2014)

Mr. Mahabir Prasad Agrawal (w.e.f  23.11.2014)

Mr. Raj Kumar Banthia (w.e.f 15.10.2014)

Mr. Sanjay Kumar Singhania (w.e.f  30.05.2014)

b.  TransacƟ ons during the year with related parƟ es (` In Lacs)

Sl. 
No.

Nature of TransacƟ ons
During the 

period of April -14 
to March -15

During the 
period of April -13 

to March-14
1 Interest Income

Manaksia Coated Metals and Industries Ltd. 53.10 NIL
Manaksia Aluminium Company Ltd. Nil 3.17
Total 53.10 3.17

2 Interest Expense
Manaksia Coated Metals and Industries Ltd. Nil 0.93
Manaksia Steels Ltd. 42.17 3.34
Manaksia Aluminium Company Ltd. 14.66 NIL
Total 56.83 4.27
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Sl. 
No.

Nature of TransacƟ ons
During the 

period of April -14 
to March -15

During the 
period of April -13 

to March-14
3 RemuneraƟ on of  KMP 

Mr. Suresh Kumar Agrawal 60.00 60.00
Mr. Mahabir Prasad Agrawal 10.67 NIL
Mr. Basudeo Agrawal 10.67 NIL
Mr. Raj Kumar Banthia 4.18 NIL
Mr. Sanjay Kumar Singhania 10.02 NIL
Total 95.54 60.00

4 Amount Due from/to as on 31st March, 2015
Loan Given
Manaksia Coated Metals & Industries Ltd. NIL 1150.00
Total NIL 1150.00

Notes : 
i)  TransacƟ ons have taken place on arm’s length basis. 
ii) No amount in respect of debts pertaining to the related parƟ es have been wriƩ en off  or wriƩ en back during the year.      
iii) No provision for doubƞ ul debts is required to be made for the year in respect of debt due from related parƟ es.

(` In Lacs)
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b) Secondary Segment InformaƟ on

ParƟ culars  31.03.2015 31.03.2014
1. Segment Revenue - External Turnover

   Within India  10,943.75  43,702.78 
   Outside India 102,979.27 127,380.21 
Total Segment Revenue 113,923.02 171,082.99 

2. Segment Assets
   Within India  12,337.53  88,992.42 
   Outside India 128,849.30  56,292.07
Total Segment Assets 141,186.83 145,284.49

3. Capital Expenditure
   Within India  29.69  205.40
   Outside India  5,545.75 6843.59
Total Capital Expenditure  5,575.44  7,048.99

Notes :
1) Primary Segment :  Business segment has been idenƟ fi ed as primary segment on the basis of the products of the company. 

Accordingly,  the company has idenƟ fi ed Packaging Product, Mosquito Coil,Metal Products, Others as the business segment.
- Packaging  consists of manufacture and sale of PP Cap, Crown Closures, Metal Containers, EP Liners, Washer,  EP Sheets etc.
- Mosquito Coils consists of manufacture and sale of Mosquito Repellant coils.
- Metal Product consists of manufacture and sale of Aluminium and Steel galvanized sheets, coils etc.
- Others consists of Manufacturing and Sales of Machine, Spare Parts etc.

2) Secondary Segment : Geographical segment has been idenƟ fi ed as secondary segment. Geographical segments considered 
for disclosure are :
- Within India
- Outside India

(` In Lacs)

30. ParƟ culars  31st March, 2015  31st March, 2014
Prior Period Items : 
(a) Expenditure

AdverƟ sement – 3.95
Bank Charges – 0.03
Commission – 1.67
Transport – 2.40
Duty Drawback – 5.84
Entry Tax – 3.37
Jobwork Charges – 0.51
PrinƟ ng and StaƟ onery – 0.02
Job Work Charges – 6.13
Professional Charges –        6.38
Repairs To Machinery – 0.19
Salaries, Wages and Bonus – 5.56
Service Tax 2.31 –
Total (a) 2.31 36.05

(b) Income
Telephone Charges-WriƩ en Back – 0.20
Professional Charges-WriƩ en Back 2.10 –
Total (b) 2.10 0.20
Total (Net) (a-b) 0.21 35.85

(` In Lacs)
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(b)    Disclosures mandated by Schedule III of Companies Act 2013, by way of addiƟ onal informaƟ on :

Name

Net Assets i.e. total assets 
minus total liabiliƟ es

Share in Profi t / (loss)

As a % of
Consolidated 

net assets

Amount                  
(` in lacs)

As a % of 
Consolidated 

Profit

Amount                   
(` in lacs)

Parent     
Manaksia Limited 7.27% 8,018.20 7.10% 737.06 
Subsidiary     
   Indian     
      Manaksia Ferro Industries Ltd. 0.27%         300.49 0.00%  (0.19)
      Manaksia Overseas Ltd. 0.00%         2.20 0.00% (0.30)
      Mark Steels Ltd. 3.11%  3,427.96 1.32% 137.58 
   Foreign     
      Dynatech Industries Ghana Ltd. -0.39%     (425.01) -1.78%   (185.11)
      Jebba Paper Mills Ltd. 11.31% 12,475.08 20.95% 2,175.51 
      MINL Ltd. 74.97% 82,679.36 92.67% 9,623.84 
Sub-Total 1,06,478.28 12,488.39 
Inter-Company EliminaƟ on and ConsolidaƟ on Adjustments 3.45%  3,808.11 -20.26% (2,103.82)
Grand Total  1,10,286.39  10,384.57 
Minority Interest in subsidiaries  (1,028.39)  (41.28)

32.1 The cerƟ fi ed copy of the Order of Hon’ble CalcuƩ a High Court sancƟ oning the Scheme of Arrangement under secƟ on 391 to 394 
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Scheme”) for demerger of the Aluminium, Steel, Packaging and Coated Metal & Mosquito Coil 
Undertakings of Manaksia Ltd. on a going concern basis w.e.f. the appointed date (i.e. 1st October 2013) into four wholly owned 
subsidiaries namely Manaksia Aluminium Company Limited, Manaksia Steels Limited, Manaksia Industries Limited and Manaksia 
Coated Metals & Industries Limited respecƟ vely as approved by shareholders in the court convened meeƟ ng on 7th January, 2014 
with requisite majority was received on 19th November, 2014 and with fi ling of the same with the Registrar of Companies, West 
Bengal on 23.11.2014, the scheme has become operaƟ onal.

31. (a)   The subsidiaries considered in the preparaƟ on of these consolidated fi nancial statements are :

Name Country of
IncorporaƟ on

Percentage of
voƟ ng power as at
31st March 2015

MINL Ltd. Nigeria 100.00
Jebba Paper Mills Ltd. (Subsidiary of MINL Ltd.) Nigeria 100.00
Dynatech Industries Ghana Ltd. Ghana 100.00
Mark Steels Ltd. (Subsidiary of Manaksia Ferro Industries Ltd.) India 70.00
Manaksia Ferro Industries Ltd. India 100.00
Manaksia Overseas Ltd. India 100.00
Euroasian Ventures FZE* UAE Nil
Euroasian Steels LLC (Subsidiary of Euroasian Ventures FZE)* Gerogia Nil
Manaksia Industries Ltd.* India Nil
Manaksia Aluminium Co Ltd.* India Nil
Manaksia Coated Metals & Industries Ltd.* India Nil
Manaksia Steels Ltd.* India Nil

 * Pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement, ceased to be Subsidiary of the Company w.e.f  01.10.2013
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32.2 Pursuant to the Scheme, the said transfer has been aff ected at the value appearing in the books of Manaksia Limited as at
30th September 2013 and recorded as such in the books of accounts of all the four transferee Companies. Moreover, the excess 
of net assets so transferred has been adjusted against Reserves in the Financial Statement. Details of such assets and liabiliƟ es 
transferred and consequent adjustment with Reserves are given in Notes of Standalone Balance Sheet of the Company. 

32.3 Further in terms of the Scheme, as on record date, shareholders of  Manaksia Ltd. holding 1 equity share of nominal value of 
Rs. 2/- each fully paid have received: 

 1) 1 (One) Equity Share of nominal value of Re 1/- credited as fully paid in Manaksia Aluminium Company Limited.

 2) 1 (One) Equity Share of nominal value of Re 1/- credited as fully paid in Manaksia Steels Limited.

 3) 1 (One) Equity Share of nominal value of Re 1/- credited as fully paid in Manaksia Coated Metals & Industries Limited.

 4) 1 (One) Equity Share of nominal value of Re 1/- credited as fully paid in Manaksia Industries Limited.

32.4. Pursuant to the Scheme  between Manaksia Limited and Manaksia Aluminium Company Limited, Manaksia Steels Limited, Manaksia 
Coated Metals & Industries Limited and Manaksia Industries Limited (the Companies), the Companies got demerged from the 
appointed date of 01.10.2013. Investment in Equity shares of the demerged Companies  were cancelled simultaneously upon 
allotment of shares by the demerged companies to the shareholders of Manaksia Ltd.  and this amount was adjusted with General 
Reserve of Manaksia Limited.

33.  Eff ecƟ ve from April 1, 2014, the Company has charged depreciaƟ on based on the revised remaining useful lives of the assets as per 
the requirement of Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. Due to above, depreciaƟ on charge for the year ended March 31, 2015, 
is higher and profi t aŌ er tax is lower by Rs. 38.16 lacs. An amount of Rs 57.64 Lacs (net of deferred tax) has been recognized in the 
opening balance of retained earnings for the assets where remaining useful life as per Schedule II is Nil.

34. Corresponding comparaƟ ve fi gures for the previous year have been regrouped and readjusted wherever considered necessary to 
confi rm to the current year presentaƟ on. 

35. Current period fi gures are for 12 months ended 31st March, 2015 in respect of residual undertaking remaining aŌ er demerger and 
previous period fi gures include the results  of  enƟ re undertaking from start of Financial year (i.e 1st April 2013) to period prior to 
appointed date of demerger (i.e 30th September, 2013). Since the reporƟ ng period of residual undertaking are not same, these 
fi gures are not comparable.

Signatures to Note 1 to 35
In terms of our Report on even date

For SRB & Associates 
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. No. 310009E  
Bisworanjan Sutar 
(Partner) 
Membership No.066708 
Kolkata 
15th day of May, 2015

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors
Suresh Kumar Agrawal Managing Director 
DIN:00520769    

Sunil Kumar Agrawal Director  
DIN:00091784    

Sanjay Kumar Singhania Chief Financial Officer

Raj Kumar Banthia Company Secretary
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Form AOC-1 
[Pursuant to fi rst proviso to sub-secƟ on (3) of SecƟ on 129 read with Rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]

Statement containing salient features of the fi nancial statement of 
Subsidiaries / Associate Companies / Joint Ventures

Sl Name of the 
Subsidiary

ReporƟ ng 
period 
for the 

subsidiary 
concerned 
if diff erent 
from the 
Holding 

Company’s  
ReporƟ ng 

Period

ReporƟ ng Currency 
and exchange rate 

as on the last date of 
the relevant fi nancial 

year in case of 
foreign subsidiary

Share 
Capital

Reserves & 
Surplus

Total assets Total 
liabiliƟ es

Invest-
ments

Turnover Profi t 
before 

taxaƟ on

Profi t 
aŌ er 

taxaƟ on

Proposed 
Dividend

% of 
share-

holding

1 MINL Ltd. 31.12.2014 INR 1 = 2.89 Niara  3,141.52  86,251.31  127,237.65  127,237.65  139.44 94,514.51 12,957.37 12,502.04  1,650.71 100%

2 Jebba Paper Mills 
Ltd.

31.12.2014 INR 1 = 2.89 Niara  69.20  12,915.48  17,834.29  17,834.29  – 11,654.36  1,921.69  1,903.42  – 100%

3. Mark Steels Ltd.  –  –  428.57  2,999.39  7,552.85  7,552.85  4.25 10,787.71  209.66  137.58  – 70%

4. Dynatech 
Industries Ghana 
Ltd.

31.12.2014 INR 1 = 0.051 CEDI  165.48  (449.97)  4,703.64  4,703.64  –  7,331.32  (550.73)  (526.66)  – 100%

5. Manaksia 
Overseas Ltd.

 –  –              5.00  (2.80)  2.26  2.26  –  –  (0.30)  (0.30)  – 100%

6 Manaksia Ferro 
Industries Ltd.

 –  –  305.00  (4.51)  300.55  300.55  300.00  3.00  (0.19)  (0.19) – 100%

(Rs. in Lacs)Part “A” – Subsidiaries
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